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CORPORATE CHART
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
TR B EE

| am pleased to present to shareholders the annual report of ITC
Corporation Limited (the "Company”) and its subsidiaries (the
"Group”) for the year ended 31st March, 2014.

BUSINESS REVIEW

Review of Financial Performance

For the year ended 31st March, 2014, the Group reported a profit
of HK$110 million attributable to shareholders (2013: HK$214
million). Basic earnings per share was HK9.49 cents compared
with HK27.12 cents of last year. The current year’s profit included
a net loss of HK$127 million on the net decrease in the Group’s
interest in ITC Properties Group Limited (*ITC Properties”) and an
impairment loss on interest in Rosedale Hotel Holdings Limited
("Rosedale”) of HK$126 million due to the Group’s proposed
disposal of Rosedale announced in April 2014 (refer to “Events
After The Year Ended 31st March, 2014" for details of the
fransaction). Without the aforesaid non-cash losses, the Group
achieved a profit of HK$363 million for the year as compared
with the corresponding profit of HK$217 million of last year.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
TRBEE

Analysis of the Group’s performance is as follows: REBRBZHOMWOT :
2014 2013
—E-NF —F=
HK$'M HKS'M
BEET B 2T
Share of results of associates: N E S
ITC Properties R E 134 234
PYI REE 23 70
Rosedale e 254 (43)
Burcon Burcon - (&)
411 257
Net loss from other investments REHMIEE R EEE 2
and operations B8 55 (48) (40)
363 217
Net loss from changes in interests REEE N Pl
in associates B85 127) 3)
Impairment loss on inferest in Rosedale RINERE = 2 R ERE (126) -
Profit attributable to shareholders PR FE A A 110 214
LISTED STRATEGIC INVESTMENTS T RBHEREEE

ITC Properties Group Limited ("ITC Properties”)

ITC Properties is principally engaged in property development
and investment in Macau, Mainland China and Hong Kong. ITC
Properties is also engaged in the development and investments
of golf resort and leisure operations in Mainland China, securities
investments and the provision of loan financing services.

In April 2013, the Group and Ms. Ng Yuen Lan, Macy (spouse of
Dr. Chan Kwok Keung, Charles) converted the convertible notes
of ITC Properties (the "ITCP Notes”) in the principal amounts of
HK$54.4 million and HK$297 million at the conversion price of
HK$2.102 per share, respectively. In order to benefit from the
continual return from ITC Properties, the Group invested HK$41.8
million in acquiring approximately 12.7 million shares of ITC
Properties on the open market and HK$55.1 million in acquiring
the ITCP Notes in an aggregate principal amount of HK$43.85
million in April 2013. Such HK$43.85 million ITCP Notes was also
converted by the Group into the shares of ITC Properties at the
conversion price of HK$2.102 per share in August 2013. Coupling
with ofhers’ conversions of their ITCP Notes and exercises of
share options and the issuance of scrip dividend shares by ITC
Properties, the Group'’s interest in ITC Properties decreased from
37.3% as at 31st March, 2013 to 30.6% as at 31st March, 2014.
As a result, the Group recorded a net loss on the above net
decrease in interest in ITC Properties of approximately HK$127
million.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
TR B EE

ITC Properties recorded a profit of HK$387 million attributable
to its shareholders for the year ended 31st March, 2014. The
decrease in profit for this year as compared with HK$580 million
for last year was mainly attributable to the absence of last year's
(i) profit from discontinued operation of HK$442 million resulted
from disposal of its partfial interest in Sanya golf and hotel
project; (ii) revaluation gain from its investment properties; and
(iii) share of profit from associates upon recognition of gain on
disposal of a parcel of land; coupling with this year’s recognition
of gain on disposal of partial interest in Sanya golf and hotel
project and remeasurement of fair value of its remaining interest
of HK$414 million; and gain on disposal of the Nathan Road
investment property. As a result, the Group shared a profit of
HK$134 million from ITC Properties for the year under review as
compared to a profit of HK$234 million of last year.

PYI Corporation Limited ("PYI”)

Based in Hong Kong. PYI focuses on ports and infrastructure
development and investment, and the operation of ports and
logistics facilities, in the Yangtze River region of Mainland
China. It also engages in land and property development
and investment in association with ports and infrastructure
development. In addition, PYl provides comprehensive
engineering and property-related services through Paul Y.
Engineering Group Limited.

The Group’s inferests in PYl remained at 26.8% throughout the
year. PYl recorded a profit attributable to shareholders of HK$86
million for the year ended 31st March, 2014 (2013: HK$262
million). The decrease was mainly attributable to the absence
of any substantial gain on disposal of investment for the year
ended 31st March, 2014 as compared to a non-recurring
substantial gain on deemed disposal of Louis Xl Holdings
Limited (“Louis XIlI") earned for the year ended 31st March, 2013.
As a result, the profit contributed by PYl decreased from HK$70
million to HK$23 million.

Rosedale Hotel Holdings Limited ("Rosedale”)

Rosedale is principally engaged in hotel operations and frading
of securities. Rosedale’s hotel operations comprised the three
"Rosedale” branded 4-star rated hotels (of which two hotels are
leased-and-operated hotels in Hong KongQ), the Times Plaza Hotel
in Shenyang and the Luoyang Golden Gulf Hotel.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
TRBEE

The Group’s interest in Rosedale remained at 29.7% throughout
the year. Rosedale recorded a profit of HK$382 million
attributable to its shareholders for the year ended 31st
December, 2013 as compared to a loss of HK$143 million for
the year ended 31st December, 2012. The improvement in result
was mainly aftributable to the gain before tax and minority
interest of HK$782 million on deemed disposal of partial intferests
and fair value gain on the remaining interest in Rosedale Hotel
Beijing Co., Ltd. ("Rosedale Beijing”) such that Rosedale’s
effective interest in Rosedale Beijing reduced from 88.7% to 17.7%
accordingly. In addition to the aforesaid profit, the Group also
shared a gain on Rosedale’s disposal of 60% interest and the fair
value gain on the remaining interest in Rosedale Hotel Kowloon
at Tai Kok Tsui, Hong Kong which was completed in March 2014.
Accordingly, the Group shared a profit of HK$254 million for the
current year as compared to a loss of HK$43 million of last year.

Burcon NutraScience Corporation ("Burcon”)

Burcon is a leader in developing functionally and nuftritionally
valuable plant-based proteins. Its shares are listed on the
Toronto Stock Exchange, the NASDAQ Global Market and the
Frankfurt Stock Exchange. Since 1999, Burcon has developed
a portfolio of composition, application, and process patents
originating from its core protein extraction and purification
technology. Burcon has developed CLARISOY™ soy protein, the
only vegetable-based protein that offers clarity and complete
protein nutrition for low pH beverage systems; Peazazz® a
uniquely soluble and clean-tasting pea protein isolate; and
Puratein®, Supertein™ and Nutratein® canola protein isolates with
unigque functional and nutritional attributes.

Burcon’s flagship protein technology, CLARISOY™, has been
licensed to Archer-Daniels-Midland Company (*ADM"), a leader
in the global food ingredient industry listed in the U.S., since
March 2011. Under the license agreement, Burcon will earn a
royalty based on a percentage of net revenue from sales of
CLARISOY™ by ADM. In December 2012, ADM notified Burcon
of the first commercial sale of CLARISOY™ and in March 2014,
Burcon received written notice from ADM that it intends to
expand to full-commercial scale production such that ADM
can retain its exclusive license. During the year, CLARISOY™
was recognised with the 2013 Food Innovation Award from
the Canadian Institute of Food Science and Technology. In
July 2013, ADM introduced CLARISOY™ 120, a powdered mix
prototype for use in powdered drinks and drink mixes.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
TR B EE

In June 2013, Burcon completed the building of a semi-works
production facility to produce Peazazz® pea protein. The new
plant utilises commercial-scale equipment and will be capable
of producing large quantities of Peazazz® required for market
development activities. In August 2013, the aforesaid plant
became fully commissioned and operational, marking a
significant advancement in the commercialisation of Peazazz®.
While the new semi-works plant utilises commercial-scale
equipment, it will only be used to produce the amounts of
Peazazz® needed for targeted market development activities with
certain prospective customers.

The Group’s interest in Burcon remained at 20.8% during the
year.

Note: CLARISOY™, a trademark of ADM, is under license fo Burcon from
ADM.

The Group'’s effective shareholding interests in the major listed
strategic investments are summarised below:

MR-ZZFE—=F,NA ' BurconTE i\ Bl Z — FEF iR
BAEERE AN AEEPeazazz?BE EHHE -
NHmEEREBERESRE LEE 7]7(5%
EPeazazz? A TR EBEMS GBS FE
T—ZFNA" EZT%ETEE&)\@W =2
Peazazz®? B ELFBEEE — 20 c AR RIE
%ﬁﬁ%Z SHETRERELE  BERERRNEE
BETRREFHB EEMSEREDMEND

% Z Peazazz® °

ARERE - REE R Burcon Z AE R 415 1220.8% ©
K1it © BurconZ CLARISOY™ 2 #F & f# 3 JEADM 7+
B IABADMZ F1Z -

ANEBRTE FHEREREER 2 BH R ERE
mta N

Effective interest

Note: The Group’s effective interest is held through ITC Properties
and PYI.

As at As at the
Name of 31st March, date of this
investee company Place of listing Stock code 2014 report
BERER
& AT R-ZE—NF RAE|E
ZEB T B [ &k a4 =A=+—H =]
ITC Properties Hong Kong Stock Exchange 199 30.8% 30.8%
EEEME BB ST
PYI Hong Kong Stock Exchange 498 26.8% 26.8%
REE BB
Rosedale Hong Kong Stock Exchange 1189 29.7% 29.7%
N BB
Burcon Toronto Stock Exchange BU 20.8% 20.8%
LREEHZH
NASDAQ Global Market BUR
METER 2B TS
Frankfurt Stock Exchange WKN 157793
EHERRBEFRS
Louis XIlI Hong Kong Stock Exchange 577 5.3% 5.3%
B2 T= BB (Note) (Note)
(K1:%) (H1:%)

Wiat - AEEZ B e B BIEH I ERIRERE -

ANNUAL REPORT 2014 & E #f &




ITC CORPORATION LIMITED Z # &

¥EB ARSI

CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
TRBEE

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

As at 31st March, 2014, the Group’s total assets and equity
attributable to shareholders were HK$3,116 million and HK$3,005
million respectively, similar to last year’'s corresponding amount
of HK$3,014 million and HK$2,854 million.

The Group continued to adopt a prudent funding and treasury
policy to manage its liquidity needs. The objective is fo maintain
adequate funds for financing working capital and seizing
investment opportunities, as and when they become available.

During the year, the Group invested an aggregate of HK$97
million in acquiring the ITCP Notes in the principal amount of
HK$43.85 million and 12.7 million shares of ITC Properties. As a
result, the Group’s current assets were reduced to HK$43 million
as at 31st March, 2014, decreased by 66% as compared with
the last year. During the year, the holders of the convertible
notes of the Company (the "Convertible Notes”) continued to
demonstrate their confidence in the Group by converting all
of the outstanding Convertible Notes in the principal amount
of HK$99 million into approximately 330 million shares of the
Company at the conversion price of HK$0.30 per share, therefore
the Group’s current liabilities were reduced to HK$109 million,
decreased by 31% as compared with the last year. Accordingly,
the Group'’s current ratio was 0.4 as at 31st March, 2014 (2013:
0.8).

GEARING

As at 31st March, 2014, the Group had bank deposits, bank
balances and cash of HK$32 million, bank borrowings of HK$63
million and margin account payable of HK$20 million. All bank
borrowings and margin account payable were denominated
in Hong Kong dollars, either repayable within one year or on
demand and at floating interest rates.

As a result of the conversion of the Convertible Notes, the
Group’s gearing ratio improved to 1.7% as at 31st March, 2014
(2013: 3.8%). The gearing ratio was calculated on the basis of
net borrowings of HK$51 million over the equity attributable to
shareholders of HK$3,005 million. The amount of net borrowings is
arrived at by deducting bank deposits, bank balances and cash
from the aggregate of borrowings and margin account payable.

EXCHANGE RATE EXPOSURE

Most of the assets and liabilities of the Group are denominated
in Hong Kong dollars, hence the Group’'s exposure to
fluctuations in foreign exchange rates is minimal and no foreign
exchanging hedging instruments are used.
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PLEDGE OF ASSETS

As at 31st March, 2014, certain assets of the Group with carrying
value of HK$612 million were pledged to financial institutions for
credit facilities granted to the Group.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31st March, 2014, the Group had no contingent liabilities,
except that upon disposal of subsidiaries in 2011, the Group had
given an indemnity relating to unrecorded taxation liabilities, if
any, and the affairs and business of the subsidiaries up to the
date of disposal fo the purchaser.

EMPLOYEE AND REMUNERATION POLICY

As at 31st March, 2014, the Group had a total of 64 employees.
The Group’s remuneration policy is to ensure that the Group’s
remuneration structure is appropriate and aligns with the
Group’s goals and objectives. The employees’ remuneration is
based on the employees’ skill, knowledge and involvement in
the Company’s affairs and is defermined by reference to the
Company’s performance, as well as remuneration benchmark in
the industry and the prevailing market conditions. The ultimate
objective of the remuneration policy is to ensure that the Group
is able to attract, retain and motivate a high-calibre team
which is essentfial to the success of the Company. The Group
also offers benefits to employees including discretionary bonus,
fraining, provident funds and medical coverage. The share
option scheme of the Company is established for the eligible
participants (including employees) but no share options were
granted during the year and there is no outstanding share
option as at 31st March, 2014 and as at the date of this report.

EVENTS AFTER THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH,
2014

The Group

In April 2014, the Group entered into a sale and purchase
agreement with a subsidiary of Hanny Holdings Limited whereby
the Group conditionally agreed to sell its subsidiaries, owning
approximately 195.7 million Rosedale shares, at a consideration
of HK$575 million. As part and parcel of the disposal, the said
195.7 million Rosedale shares shall be reduced by the Group’s
placement and/or donation of 47.2 million Rosedale shares
before completion and the net proceeds of the placement will
be paid to the Group. The agreement is subject fo, amongst
others, the approval by the shareholders of the Company.
As at the date of this report, such disposal has not yet been
completed.
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Burcon

In April 2014, Burcon announced completion of its rights offering
under which 1.86 million rights shares were issued at CAD2.82
(equivalent to HK$19.79) per share. The proceeds of CAD5.2
million (equivalent tfo HK$36 million) will be used for, amongst
others, research and development, patent applications,
maintaining Burcon’s intellectual property portfolio and general
working capital. The Group subscribed for approximately 0.4
million common shares under the rights offering to maintain its
proportional interest in Burcon. As compensation to the Group’s
commitment to subscribe, the Group received non-transferable
warrants enfitling the Group to acquire up to approximately
0.1 million common shares of Burcon at an exercise price of
CAD2.82 (equivalent to HK$19.79) per share. The issuance
and the exercise price of the aforesaid warrants are subject to
Burcon shareholders’ approval at Burcon’s next annual general
meeting in September 2014.

SECURITIES IN ISSUE

As a result of the issue of shares upon conversion of the
Convertible Notes and under the scrip dividend scheme for
final dividend for the year ended 31st March, 2013, the total
number of issued shares of the Company of HK$0.01 each was
1,270,229,989 as at 31st March, 2014 and as at the date of this
report.

FINAL DIVIDEND AND SPECIAL DIVIDEND

The Board has resolved to recommend the payment of a final
dividend of HK3.0 cents per share (2013: HK3.0 cents) and a
special dividend of HK3.0 cents per share (2013: Nil) for the year
ended 31st March, 2014 to the shareholders of the Company
whose names appear on the register of members of the
Company as at the close of business on Thursday, 28th August,
2014. The proposed final dividend and the special dividend
are expected to be paid to the shareholders of the Company
by post on or about Monday, 6th October, 2014 following
approval at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the
Company. The proposed final dividend and the special dividend
are conditional upon the passing of ordinary resolution(s) to
approve the dividends at the forthcoming annual general
meeting of the Company. The Board has also proposed that
the final dividend and the special dividend should be satisfied
in cash, with an opfion fo elect scrip dividend of shares, in
respect of part or all of such dividends. The market value of the
shares to be issued under the scrip dividend proposal will be
fixed by reference to the average of the closing prices of the
shares of the Company for the three consecutive trading days
ending 28th August, 2014 less a discount of five percent of such
average price or par value of shares, whichever is the higher.
The proposed scrip dividend is conditional upon the Hong Kong
Stock Exchange granfing the listing of, and permission to deal in,
the new shares to be issued and the passing at the forthcoming
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annual general meeting of the Company of ordinary
resolution(s) to approve the final dividend and the special
dividend. A circular giving full details of the scrip dividend
proposal and a form of election will be sent to shareholders of
the Company.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The register of members of the Company will be closed from
Tuesday, 26th August, 2014 to Thursday, 28th August, 2014, both
dates inclusive, during which period no transfer of shares will
be registered. In order to qualify for the proposed final dividend
and the special dividend, all transfers of shares of the Company
accompanied by the relevant share certificate(s) must be
lodged with the Company’s branch share registrar in Hong
Kong, Tricor Secretaries Limited at Level 22, Hopewell Centre, 183
Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong for registration by no later than
4:00 p.m. on Monday, 25th August, 2014.

OUTLOOK

The global economy remains uncertain and challenging. The
growth of Mainland China’s economy has slowed down to
about 7.5% due to the short term challenges brought by the
Central Government’s policies. Nevertheless, these policies are
implemented for the benefit of a healthy and sustainable growth
in the long term. The Group’s strategic framework will contfinue
to keep the Group well-poised for opportunities ahead. The
diversified business activities of the Group's strategic investments
would help to reduce the Group’s reliance on a particular
sector.

Looking ahead, the Board remains prudently optimistic about
the business outlook, and the Group will continue to pursue
its long ferm strategy of exploring investment opportunities in
a prudent but proactive approach in order to bring long-term
value tfo its shareholders.

APPRECIATION

On behalf of the Board, | would like to take this opportunity
to thank the shareholders for their continuous support to the
Company and extend my appreciation to all management and
staff members for their contribution and dedication throughout
the year.

Dr. Chan Kwok Keung, Charles
Chairman

Hong Kong, 25th June, 2014
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DIRECTORS

Chan Kwok Keung, Charles, aged 59, is the Chairman of
the Company. He joined the Group in February 1997 and is
responsible for the Group’s corporate strategies and planning.
Dr. Chan holds an Honorary Degree of Doctor of Laws and a
Bachelor’'s Degree in Civil Engineering and has over 34 years’
international corporate management and strategic investment
experience in a diversified range of businesses including
construction, property, infrastructure, entertainment and
media, hotel and related business, information technology,
pharmaceutical and health products. Dr. Chan is a non-
executive director of PYl Corporation Limited (0498.HK) and
Television Broadcasts Limited (0511.HK). Dr. Chan is the sole
director and beneficial owner of Chinaview International Limited
and Galaxyway Investments Limited which are substantial
shareholders of the Company as disclosed in the section
headed ‘“Interests and short positions of substantial shareholders
in shares of the Company” in the directors’ report of this annual
report. He is the father of Mr. Chan Yiu Lun, Alan and the elder
brother of Mr. Chan Kwok Chuen, Augustine, who are both
executive directors of the Company.

Chau Mei Wah, Rosanna, aged 59, is the Deputy Chairman and
Managing Director of the Company. She is also the Chairman
of the Corporate Governance Committee, a member of the
Nomination Committee and the Remuneration Committee
of the Company and a director of various subsidiaries of the
Group. She joined the Group in February 1997 and is responsible
for the Group’s operations and business development. Ms.
Chau has over 34 years’ experience in international corporate
management and finance. She holds a Bachelor's Degree and a
Master's Degree in Commerce and has professional accounting
qualifications and experience in different jurisdictions. She is
a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and the CPA Australia, and a member of the
Certified General Accountants’ Association of Canada. Ms.
Chau is a director of Burcon NutraScience Corporation, the
securities of which are listed on the Toronto Stock Exchange
(BU.TSX), the NASDAQ Global Market (BUR.NASDAQ) and the
Frankfurt Stock Exchange (WKN 157793-FWB). She is a General
Committee member of The Chamber of Hong Kong Listed
Companies.
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Chan Kwok Chuen, Augustine, aged 55, joined the Company
as an executive director in November 1997 and is also a
director of various subsidiaries of the Group. Mr. Chan holds a
diploma in arts and has over 31 years’ experience in trading
business in the PRC. Mr. Chan was the executive director and
managing director of Hanny Holdings Limited (0275.HK) unfil
August 2011. Mr. Chan is the younger brother of Dr. Chan Kwok
Keung, Charles, the Chairman of the Company and the sole
director and beneficial owner of Chinaview International Limited
and Galaxyway Investments Limited which are substantial
shareholders of the Company, and is the uncle of Mr. Chan Yiu
Lun, Alan, an executive director of the Company.

Chan Fut Yan, aged 60, joined the Company as an execufive
director in December 1997. He is also a member of the
Corporate Governance Committee of the Company and a
director of various subsidiaries of the Group. Mr. Chan has over
41 years’ experience in the local construction field specialising
in planning of construction business. He is also the managing
director of ITC Properties Group Limited (0199.HK). Mr. Chan
was the deputy chairman and an executive director of Louis Xl
Holdings Limited (0577.HK) until February 2013.

Chan Yiu Lun, Alan, aged 30, joined the Company as an
executive director in March 2009 and is also a director of
various subsidiaries of the Group. Mr. Chan graduated from
Trinity College of Arts and Sciences of Duke University, United
States of America, with a Bachelor of Arts Degree in Political
Science - International Relations. He previously worked in the
investment banking division of The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc.
Mr. Chan is an executive director of ITC Properties Group Limited
(0199.HK) and PYI Corporation Limited (0498.HK) ("PYI"); and
an alternate director to Dr. Chan Kwok Keung, Charles, a non-
executive director of PYIl. He is a director of Burcon NutraScience
Corporation, the securities of which are listed on the Toronto
Stock Exchange (BU.TSX), the NASDAQ Global Market (BUR.
NASDAQ) and the Frankfurt Stock Exchange (WKN 157793-FWB).
Mr. Chan is an advisor to Bisagni Environmental Enterprise (BEE
Inc.). Mr. Chan is a son of Dr. Chan Kwok Keung, Charles, the
Chairman of the Company and the sole director and beneficial
owner of Chinaview International Limited and Galaxyway
Investments Limited which are substantial shareholders of the
Company. Mr. Chan is also a nephew of Mr. Chan Kwok Chuen,
Augustine, an executive director of the Company.
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Chuck, Winston Calptor, aged 58, joined the Company as an
independent non-executive director in November 2001. He is also
the Chairman of the Remuneration Committee and a member
of the Audit Committee, the Corporate Governance Committee
and the Nomination Committee of the Company. Mr. Chuck
graduated from the University of Western Ontario, Canada with
a Bachelor of Arts Degree. He is a practising solicitor in Hong
Kong and has over 32 years’ experience in the legal fields. Mr.
Chuck is also an independent non-executive director of Starlight
International Holdings Limited (0485.HK) and Sunley Holdings
Limited (1240.HK).

Lee Kit Wah, aged 58, joined the Company as an independent
non-executive director in July 2004. He is also the Chairman
of the Audit Committee and a member of the Corporate
Governance Committee, the Nomination Committee and the
Remuneration Committee of the Company. Mr. Lee graduated
from University of Toronto, Canada with a Bachelor’'s Degree in
Commerce. He is a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants, the Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants and the Taxation Institute of Hong Kong.
He is a member of the Institute of Chartered Accountants in
England and Wales. He has been practising as a certified public
accountant in Hong Kong since 1988 and is the managing
director of an accounting firm. Mr. Lee is also an independent
non-executive director of Datronix Holdings Limited (0889.HK). He
resigned as an independent non-executive director of SinoCom
Software Group Limited (0299.HK) on 10th September, 2013.
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Hon. Shek Lai Him, Abraham, css, sp, aged 69, joined the
Company as an independent non-executive director in June
2006. He is also the Chairman of the Nomination Committee
and a member of the Audit Committee of the Company. Mr.
Shek graduated from the University of Sydney, Australia with a
Bachelor of Arts Degree. Mr. Shek has been a member of the
Legislative Council of the Hong Kong Special Administrative
Region of the People’s Republic of China representing the real
estate and constfruction functional constfituency since 2000.
Currently, Mr. Shek is a member of both the Court and the
Council of the University of Hong Kong and a member of the
Court of Hong Kong University of Science and Technology. He is
also a director of The Hong Kong Mortgage Corporation Limited
and the Vice Chairman of the Independent Police Complaints
Council in Hong Kong. Mr. Shek was appointed as a Justice of
the Peace in 1995. He was awarded the Silver Bauhinia Star in
2007 and was further awarded the Gold Bauhinia Star on 1st
July, 2013. Mr. Shek is the vice chairman and an independent
non-executive director of ITC Properties Group Limited (0199.HK).
He is the chairman and an independent non-executive director
of Chuang’s China Investments Limited (0298.HK). Mr. Shek is
also an independent non-executive director of NWS Holdings
Limited (0659.HK), Midas International Holdings Limited (1172.
HK). Paliburg Holdings Limited (0617.HK), Lifestyle International
Holdings Limited (1212.HK), Chuang’s Consortium International
Limited (0367.HK), Country Garden Holdings Company Limited
(2007.HK), MTR Corporation Limited (0066.HK), Hop Hing
Group Holdings Limited (0047.HK), SJM Holdings Limited (0880.
HK), China Resources Cement Holdings Limited (1313.HK),
Dorsett Hospitality International Limited (2266.HK) and Lai Fung
Holdings Limited (1125.HK). He is also an independent non-
executive director of Eagle Asset Management (CP) Limited,
the manager of Champion Real Estate Investment Trust (2778.
HK). He is also an independent non-executive director of
Regal Portfolio Management Limited, the manager of Regal
Real Estate Investment Trust (1881.HK). He was appointed
as an independent non-executive director of Cosmopolitan
International Holdings Limited (0120.HK) on 18th December,
2013. He ceased to be an independent non-executive director
of Titan Petrochemicals Group Limited (1192.HK) upon the
expiry of his confract on 27th February, 2014. He refired as an
independent non-executive director of Hsin Chong Construction
Group Ltd. (0404.HK) on 12th May, 2014.

SECRETARY

Kam Suet Fan, aged 49, is the Company Secretary of the
Company. She is also the secretary of a subsidiary of the
Company. Ms. Kam has over 25 years’ experience in company
secretarial field. Prior fo joining the Group in May 2002, she was
the company secretary of certain companies listed in Hong
Kong. She holds a Bachelor’'s Degree in Law from a university
in China and a Master of Arts Degree in Language and Law.
She is an associate member of both The Hong Kong Institute of
Chartered Secretaries and The Institute of Chartered Secretaries
and Administrators.
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The Company is committed to maintaining a high standard of
corporate governance practices and procedures. The Company
believes that good corporate governance practices are essential
for effective management to enhancing shareholders’ value. The
corporate governance principles of the Company emphasise
a quality Board, sound internal controls, and transparency
and accountability to all shareholders of the Company (the
“Shareholders”).

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CODE

The Company has, throughout the year ended 31st March, 2014,
complied with the code provisions of the Corporate Governance
Code (the "Code”) contained in Appendix 14 to the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the "Hong Kong Stock
Exchange”).

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has continued to adopt the Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers set out
in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules (the "Model Code") as its
own code of conduct regarding securities transactions by the
directors of the Company (the “Directors”). All Directors have
confirmed, following specific enquiry by the Company, that they
have complied with the required standard set out in the Model
Code throughout the year ended 31st March, 2014.

The Company has also continued to adopt a code of conduct
governing securities fransactions by employees who may
possess or have access to inside information of the Company or
its securities.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

THE BOARD

The members of the Board are individually and collectively
responsible for the leadership and control, and for promoting
the success, of the Company by directing and supervising
the Company’s affairs. As at the date of this report, the Board
comprises eight Directors, including the Chairman, the Deputy
Chairman and Managing Director, three other executive
Directors, and three independent non-executive Directors.
The Board has a balanced composition of executive and
independent non-executive Directors so that strong independent
elements are included in the Board, enabling the Board to
exercise judgment independently and make decision objectively
in the interests of the Company and its shareholders as a whole.

The Company recognises and embraces the benefits of having
a diverse Board and therefore has adopted a policy on Board
diversity in June 2013. With a view fo achieving a sustainable
and balanced development, the Company sees increasing
diversity at the Board level as an essential element in supporting
the attainment of its strategic objectives and its sustainable
development. Board diversity would be considered based on a
number of measurable objectives, including but not limited to
skills, knowledge, experience, gender, age, length of services
and cultural and education background. All Board candidates
will be considered and appointed based on meritocracy,
contribution that the selected candidates will bring to the Board
against objective criteria, having due regard for the benefits of
diversity on the Board. The ultimate decision will be based on
merit and contribution that the selected candidates will bring
to the Board. The Nomination Committee will review the policy,
as appropriate, and recommend any proposed changes to the
Board for approval.

The Nomination Committee of the Company has obligation to
review the size, structure and composition of the Board on an
annual basis. The Company has a diversified Board composition
which meets the aforesaid measurable objectives of the Board
diversify policy. Biographical details of the Directors are set out
on pages 14 to 17 of this annual report. A list containing the
names of all Directors and their roles and functions is published
on the respective websites of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange
and the Company, which would be updated from time to time
when there are any changes. The Board members have no
financial, business, family or other material/relevant relationship
with each other, except that Dr. Chan Kwok Keung. Charles is the
elder brother of Mr. Chan Kwok Chuen, Augustine and Mr. Chan
Yiu Lun, Alan is a son and a nephew of Dr. Chan Kwok Keung,
Charles and Mr. Chan Kwok Chuen, Augustine respectively.
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As part of an ongoing process of Director’s training, the Directors
are updated on the latest developments regarding the Listing
Rules. They are provided with written materials from fime to time
to enhance and refresh their knowledge and skills. All Directors
participated in continuous professional development in the year
under review by way of attending fraining/briefing/seminar
on topics relevant to their duties. The Company has received
confirmation from all Directors of their respective training records
for the year ended 31st March, 2014.

The Board is responsible for the success and sustainable
development of the Company. It has delegated the Executive
Board with authority and responsibility for handling the
management functions and operations of the day-to-day
business of the Company, while reserving certain key matters
for the approval by the Board. The types of decisions to be
taken by the Board include annual and interim period financial
reporting and conftrol, equity fund raising, declaration of interim
dividend and making recommendation of final dividend or other
distributions, notifiable transactions under Chapters 14 and T14A
of the Listing Rules and making recommendation for capital
reorganisation or scheme of arrangement of the Company.

During the year under review, four regular Board meetings were
held with at least fourteen days’ notice given to all Directors and
additional Board meeting(s) were held as and when necessary.
Directors are provided with relevant information to make
informed decisions. The Chairman met with the independent
non-executive Directors without the executive Directors being
present during the year. The Board and each Director have
separate and independent access to the Company’s senior
management. A Director who considers a need for independent
professional advice in order to perform his/her duties as a
Director may convene, or request the secretary of the Company
(the "Company Secretary”) to convene, a meeting of the
Board to approve the seeking of independent legal or other
professional advice. The Company has arranged directors and
officers liability insurance coverage in respect of legal action
against the Directors.
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The attendance of each individual member of the following
meetings during the year under review is set out in the following
table:

& A% B R B B4R [ PO b T @ 32 R R )
RT

St

Meetings Attended/Eligible to attend
HEEE FEREREZER
Corporate Annual
Audit Governance Nomination Remuneration General
Board  Committee Committee ~ Committee Committee Meeting
Name of Director EEnR Ezg B TEER BE ¥ REREF
ZE8 ZE8 ZEE ZEE V-1
Executive Directors HITEF
Chan Kwok Keung, Charles  BREI 38 4/4 1
(Chairman) (£/)
Chau Mei Wah, Rosanna BEE 4/4 2/2 /1 3/3 1
(Deputy Chairman and (BI+E
Managing Director) FEZLTIE)
Chan Kwok Chuen, Augustine FRE £ 4/4 11
Chan Fut Yan kR 4/4 2/2 A
Chan Yiu Lun, Alan PR 2 2% 4/4 A
Independent non-executive BV IHEHITEE
Direcfors
Chuck, Winston Calptor 258 4/4 2/2 2/2 11 3/3 11
Lee Kit Wah FhEE 4/4 2/2 2/2 171 3/3 171
Shek Lai Him, Abraham VSEEE S 4/4 2/2 11 1/1
CHAIRMAN AND MANAGING DIRECTOR FTERESHELE

The roles of the Chairman and Managing Director are
segregated and are held by different individuals. The Chairman
is responsible for the Group’s strategic planning and the
management of the operations of the Board, while the
Managing Director takes the lead in the Group’s operations and
business development. There is a clear division of responsibilities
between the Chairman and Managing Director of the Company
which provides a balance of power and authority.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The independent non-executive Directors are appointed for
a specific term, subject to re-election, which will run until the
conclusion of the third annual general meeting from the date
of their last re-election and in accordance with the Company’s
amended and restated bye-laws (the "Bye-laws”). One of
the independent non-executive Directors has appropriate
professional qualifications or accounting or related financial
management expertise as required under Rule 3.10 of the Listing
Rules. The Company has received the annual confirmation of
independence from each of the independent non-executive
Directors as required under Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The
Company considers all independent non-executive Directors to
be independent.
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NOMINATION, APPOINTMENT AND RE-ELECTION OF DIRECTORS

Under the Bye-laws, the Directors shall have the power to appoint
any person as a Director at any time either to fill a casual
vacancy on the Board or as an addition to the existing Board
and such person is subject to retirement and re-election at the
first general meeting or first annual general meeting respectively
after his/her appointment. All Directors are subject to retirement
and re-election by the Shareholders on a rotation basis and
pursuant to the Bye-laws, at each annual general meeting, one-
third of the Directors for the time being shall retire from office by
rotation such that each Director shall be subject to retirement by
rotation at least once every three years at the annual general
meeting. The Board published the procedures for Shareholders
to propose a person for election as a Director on the Company’s
website and delegated its authority to the Nomination
Committee for making recommendation to the Board on the
appointment or reappointment of Directors.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Board set up the Nomination Committee of the Company
comprising three independent non-executive Directors, namely,
Mr. Shek Lai Him, Abraham (Chairman of the Nomination
Committee), Mr. Chuck Winston Calptor and Mr. Lee Kit Wah,
and the Deputy Chairman and Managing Director, Ms. Chau
Mei Wah, Rosanna. The terms of reference of the Nomination
Committee adopted by the Board, which follow closely the
requirements of the code provisions of the Code as set out in
the Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules, are posted on the websites
of the Company and the Hong Kong Stock Exchange. During
the year under review, the terms of reference of the Nomination
Commifttee were amended to reflect its responsibility to, infer
alia, review the Company’s policy on Board diversity.

The appointment of a new Director shall first be considered by
the Nomination Committee. In considering the appointment
of a Director, the Nomination Committee applies the criteria in
the nomination policy of the Company and identifies suitably
qualified candidate to become Board members to complement
the Company’s corporate strategy. The recommendations of
the Nomination Committee will then be put to the Board for
consideration and approval. A candidate to be appointed
as independent non-executive Director must also satisfy the
independence criteria set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

During the year under review, the Nomination Committee had
reviewed the structure, size and composition of the Board,
reviewed the independence of each of independent non-
executive Directors, made recommendation to the Board for
putting forward Directors, who are subject to retirement by
rotation, for re-appointment as Directors at the annual general
meeting.
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Board has set up a Remuneration Committee of the
Company with a majority of the members being independent
non-executive Directors. As at the date of this report, the
Remuneration Commiftee comprises two independent non-
executive Directors, namely, Mr. Chuck, Winston Calptor
(Chairman of the Remuneration Committee) and Mr. Lee Kit
Wah, and the Deputy Chairman and Managing Director, Ms.
Chau Mei Wah, Rosanna.

The principal responsibilities of the Remuneration Committee
include making recommendations to the Board on the
Company’s policy and structure for all remuneration of Directors
and the senior management and on the establishment of a
formal and fransparent procedure for developing policy on
such remuneration. The Remuneration Committee, pursuant
to its terms of reference, has power either (i) to determine,
with delegated responsibility, the remuneration packages of
executive Directors and senior management; or (ii) to make
recommendations to the Board on the remuneration packages
of individual executive Directors and senior management. During
the year under review, the Remunerafion Committee determined,
with delegated responsibility, the remuneration of executive
Directors and the Company Secretary. The terms of reference
of the Remuneration Committee adopted by the Board, which
follow closely the requirements of the code provisions of the
Code, are posted on the websites of the Company and the Hong
Kong Stock Exchange. The Remuneration Committee is provided
with sufficient resources to discharge its duties.

During the year under review, the Remuneration Committee had
principally performed the followings: making recommendation to
the Board on Directors’ fees for the approval by the Shareholders
at the annual general meeting, approving/recommending the
directors’ fees of Directors and reviewing and approving the
remuneration and/or discretionary bonus of executive Directors
and the Company Secretary.

With the recommendation of the Remuneration Committee, the
Board sets the remuneration policy of Directors and the senior
management of the Company. It is the Company’s policy to
ensure that its remuneration structure is appropriate and aligns
with the Company’'s goals and objectives which should be
sufficient to attract, retain and motivate the directors and senior
management of the Company to run the Group successfully
without paying more than necessary. Besides, the procedure for
setting policy on all Directors’ remuneration packages should be
formal and transparent.

The Remuneration Committee shall consult the Chairman
and/or the Managing Director of the Company about their
remuneration proposals for other executive Directors and senior
management.
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The emoluments of Directors and senior management are based
on their skill, knowledge and involvement in the Company’s
affairs of each Director or senior management and are
determined by reference to the Company’s performance, as well
as remuneration benchmark in the industry and the prevailing
market conditions. No Director should be involved in deciding
his/her own remuneration.

The ultimate objective of the remuneration is fo ensure that the
Company is able to attract, retain and motivate a high-calibre
team which is essential to the success of the Company.

The Board will make appropriate disclosure of details of
Director’'s and past Director's emoluments on an individual and
named basis, and of any remuneration payable to members of
senior management by band, as well as details of this policy in
the Company’s annual report pursuant to the requirement of the
Listing Rules.

The monthly salary for Mr. Chan Kwok Chuen, Augustine and Mr.
Chan Yiu Lun, Alan were adjusted to HK$180,000 commencing
from 1st April, 2014. Information on emoluments of the directors
of the Company for the year ended 31st March, 2014 is set out
in note 6 to the consolidated financial statements. During the
year under review, no Director or any of his/her associates was
involved in deciding his/her own remuneration.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE

As at the date of this report, the Corporate Governance
Committee of the Company consists of two executive Directors,
namely Ms. Chau Mei Wah, Rosanna (Chairman of the
Corporate Governance Committee) and Mr. Chan Fut Yan and
two independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Chuck,
Winston Calptor and Mr. Lee Kit Wah.

The principal duties of the Corporate Governance Committee
include making recommendations to the Board on the
Company’s policies and practices on corporate governance;
reviewing and monitoring (i) the training and continuous
professional development of the Directors and the senior
management of the Company; (ii) the Company’s policies
and practices in compliance with the legal and regulatory
requirements; (iii) the code of conduct and compliance manual
(if any) applicable to the Company’s employees and the
Directors; and (iv) the Company’'s compliance with the Code
and disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report. The terms
of reference of the Corporate Governance Committee, which
follow closely the requirements of the Code, was adopted by the
Board. The Corporate Governance Committee is provided with
sufficient resources to discharge its duties.
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During the year under review, the Corporate Governance
Committee reviewed the corporate governance policy and the
compliance policy of the Company, and the code of conduct
for the Directors and the employees of the Company, reviewed
the compliance of the Code for the year ended 31st March,
2013 and for the six months ended 30th September, 2013, made
recommendation to the Board for the approval of the Corporate
Governance Report, and reviewed the training and confinuous
professional development of the Directors and the Company
Secretary.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

As at the date of this report, the Audit Committee of the
Company consists of three independent non-executive Directors,
namely Mr. Lee Kit Wah, Mr. Chuck, Winston Calptor and Mr.
Shek Lai Him, Abraham. The Audit Committee is chaired by
Mr. Lee Kit Wah, who is a qualified accountant with exftensive
experience in financial reporting and controls.

The principal duties of the Audit Committee include reviewing
the Company’s financial reporting system and internal conftrol
procedures (including the adequacy of resources, staff
qualifications and experience, fraining programmes and budget
of the Company’s accounting and financial reporting function),
reviewing the Group’s financial information and reviewing the
relationship with the external auditor of the Company. The terms
of reference of the Audit Committee adopted by the Board,
which follow closely the requirements of the code provisions of
the Code, have been posted on the websites of the Hong Kong
Stock Exchange and the Company. The Audit Committee is
provided with sufficient resources to discharge its duties.

The Audit Committee performed the responsibilities under its
terms of reference and other duties as set out in code provisions
of the Code applicable to the Committee. It met with the
Directors and external auditors to review the interim/annual
results and reports. It considered and discussed the reports
with external auditors, with a view of ensuring that the Group’s
consolidated financial statements are prepared in accordance
with accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong.

During the year under review, the Audit Committee reviewed
and made recommendation for the Board’s approval of the
draft audited financial statements of the Group for the year
ended 31st March, 2013 and the draft unaudited interim
financial statements of the Group for the six months ended
30th September, 2013, discussed the accounting policies and
practices which may affect the Group with the management
and the Company’s external auditor, made recommendation
on the re-appointment of external auditor for the approval of the
Shareholders in the annual general meeting of the Company,
reviewed the fees charged by the external auditor; and reviewed
the internal control system of the Group.

REBEFE CEERREGRNARAZLE
EABRENARBEAREZERARAEE 212
SER - BREE_T-=ZF=A=1T—HILLF
ERBE-Z-—=FNAA=+RHILXMEAZFH
ETER  REZFERAELEERRSEERD
HEEZENARBTEERARAWE ZHII L
BEEXER-

EREES"

RARSAH  ARBZERZESRE=28
VHRTEE AFHRELLE 2SFEEERA
BMAEMEK - BERZ B EHFHRELLRE
MREEREEE  RPBERNMEZETH AR

B8 = 4w
LELR -

EVZEGZIZRAEBERIARRZHKE
BEGEAMEERERF (BRARREE MM
HERBETANER BTEEMMERED R
o ARBIREREBAEEXEERR) &
BIAREEPEER - U Rigs EARF IS B
A BER - KEF SR BAE BN TR 25 Al
BXEBRZBZZEGRERLE CTERAR
AINEBHMIMEY BV ESREHRENE
IREITH B -

BRZEEREEBESERTANERANEE
2 2 TRAIGNEITERE - RESMEEE NI
Brgmen  RETH FEXENEE -
BeHINERHBMEE R RZERE  5ER
RAKBEZEAMBERRDBREFTBERRA Z
SR RAGR

% B

REEFER EZZESCERNYEAESS
HWEAEEBEE T =F=-A=+—HILFE
CRECHBERRERARAEEARE—_F—=
FHAAZTBIUEANEAZREEZT MU B RE
BHA - BEIRERARRZINEZ A i 4
BRI R EAKEZ @ BRMER - BEBRR
KRB S RS EHEER NS Z B8N - F|BIHD
BRI B2 ER AR AEEZ AEE

ANNUAL REPORT 2014 £ 3 &



ITC CORPORATION LIMITED % # @© # % AR oI

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
TXERB®RSE S

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu ("Deloitte”), the Group’s
principal auditor, was re-appointed by the Shareholders at the
annual general meeting of the Company held on 16th August,
2013 as the Company’s external auditor until the next annual
general meeting. For the year ended 31st March, 2014, the total
fee paid/payable in respect of statutory audit and non-audit
services provided by Deloitte is set out in the following table:-

B BT B =

ARBE-Z—=F A+ BET2ZRREF
REL AEBEZTERHMEY - -BERLS
AET (8 ERREBRARRZIIERK
2D ERETERRBFAGR/L -BE-T
—OE=A=+—HILFE REHAEH X
ERBRIIFRBRB BN BN 2 EREEH
IRTER

Fee paid/payable
1t A E A
Services rendered Frig ER 7% for the year ended 31st March,
BE=A=+—HLEFE
2014 2013
—Z-mEF —F—=
HKS$’000 HKS 000
FET FHET
Audit services RS 1,810 1,798
Non-audit services IEZ B R
Taxation advisory MR 35 35
Special engagements FEEZLHE 7 7
Total fee paid/payable for the year FEREHRN ENFZ2ERAAH 1,852 1,840
DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE FINANCIAL EEYHKRERZ2EE

STATEMENTS

The Directors are responsible for the preparation of the financial
statements for each financial period which give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs of the Group and of the results and
cash flows for that period. In preparing the financial statements
for the year ended 31st March, 2014, the Directors have selected
suitable accounting policies and applied them consistently,
made judgments and estimates that are fair and reasonable
and prepared the financial statements on a going concern
basis. The statement by the auditor of the Company regarding
their reporting responsibilities on the financial statements of the
Group is set outf in the Independent Auditor’s Report on pages 43
and 44 of this annual report.
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INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board has the overall responsibility for maintaining a sound
and effective system of internal control and for reviewing its
effectiveness, particularly in respect of the controls on financial,
operational, compliance and risk management, to achieve
the Company’s business strategies and the Group’s business
operations. The Directors have adopted an internal control
policy for the Group. The internal control policy is fundamental
to the successful operation and day-to-day running of a business
and it assists the Company in achieving its business objective.

The policy has been developed with a primary objective of
providing general guidance and recommendations on a
basic framework of internal control and risk management. The
Company’s internal control system comprises a well established
organisational structure and comprehensive policies and
standards. Procedures have been designed to safeguard assets
against unauthorised use or disposition, fo ensure maintenance
of proper accounting records for the provision of reliable
financial information for internal use or for publication, and
to ensure compliance with applicable laws and regulations.
The purpose of the Company’s internal control is to provide
reasonable, but not absolute, assurance against material
misstatement or loss and to manage rather than eliminate
risks of failure in operational systems and achievement of the
Company’s objective.

The Board has conducted an annual review of the effectiveness
of the system of internal control of the Group, covering
all material controls, including financial, operational and
compliance controls and risk management functions and
particularly the adequacy of resources, staff qualifications and
experience, training programmes and budget of the Group’s
accounting and financial reporting function.

COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company Secretary is responsible for facilitating the Board
process, as well as communications among Board members. The
Company Secretary’s biography is set out in the "Biographies of
Directors and Secretary” of this annual report. The remuneration
paid to the Company Secretary during the year ended 31st
March, 2014 were within the remuneration band between
HK$1,000,000 to HK$2,000,000.

The Company Secretary confirmed that she has complied with
all the qualifications and training requirements under the Listing
Rules.

B BE 4

EEeRERETAR EREMARZARE
mAEG - WHHIBMT - 28 ARKERER
Z R R - AR AR A 2 AR N
AEBZEKEE - EFCARAEERH—ER
ERESIER - AMEEEE IR INEERBEE
BEEZER  BPARFEINEEKRR -

PEREE  TEBNDREARNBERER
KR EE T R EERES NER c ARAZ
ABEZERCERTEZABERBRLEE 2K
REER - ARRIERAEF WRBEERX
ARRBEEANREZFE  BERBRMIERE
FERARARBER A EMBERGRZEGTL
8% WHERETERAZERLER - ARAZA
MEREERBERERBARBRIEH-REGIE (F
WIBE) RIE - LEIR (MIFTRMHE) BIER
MRz AR ANERARBZBRE -

EXec i AEEAMEE AR IR ETRS
BL REMBEAERE  BEMKER 2E
B AREEURREREEDRE  LEEZEEXR
SEESt MU BERBENTENER B1&
BEREBEDEH  URBIRELRAEES
B e

REAME

REMEAERHESTSRF  URTEEFEK
BR#EITER RAMEZBEEBEN SN AT
RNESEKMWEREGN IR - ARIWERERE
TE-NMFZA=Z+—HUEFEZENEENT
1,000,000/ 7T £ 2,000,000/ 7T ©
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Board makes its endeavour to maintain an on going
and transparent communication with the Shareholders and,
in particular, uses general meetings to communicate with
them and encourage their participation. The Company
also uses various other means of communication with the
Shareholders, such as publication of annual and interim reports,
announcements, circulars and additional information on the
Group’s business activities and development on the Company’s
website: www.itc.com.hk.

A shareholders communication policy was adopted to ensure
that Shareholders are provided with ready, equal and timely
access to balanced and understandable information about the
Company.

During the year under review, there is no change to the
memorandum of association of the Company and the Bye-laws
after its adoption in August 2012. An up-to-date memorandum
of association and the Bye-laws is available at the “Corporate
Governance” section of the Company’s website.

During the year under review, all resolutions put forward at the
annual general meeting were conducted by way of poll and poll
results were posted on the websites of the Company and the
Hong Kong Stock Exchange in compliance with the requirements
of the Listing Rules. Details of procedure for conducting a poll
was explained at each general meeting of the Company and
questions from Shareholders regarding the voting procedures
were answered. Notice of not less than 20 clear business days
was sent to the Shareholders for the annual general meeting of
the Company during the year under review.
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SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS

Shareholder(s) carrying not less than one-tenth of the total
voting right at general meeting of the Company have the right,
by signed written requisition to the Company’s registered office
and principal place of business in Hong Kong, fo require a
special general meeting to be called for the business specified
in such requisition.

Shareholder(s) carrying not less than one-twentieth of the total
voting right at general meeting or not less than 100 Shareholders
have the following rights by depositing the following documents
at the Company’s registered office and principal place of
business in Hong Kong:

(i) not less than six weeks before the annual general meeting,
a signed written request for a proposed resolution (other
than a proposal for election as a director) to be moved at
that meeting; and

(i) not less than one week before the general meeting, a
signed statement of not more than 1,000 words with respect
to any proposed resolution or business to be dealt with in
that general meeting.

For the above purpose, the Shareholder(s) concerned shall
also deposit with the Company a sum of money reasonably
sufficient fo meet the expenses in serving the request/statement
to all Shareholders. Procedures for Shareholder(s) to propose
for election as a director of the Company are available at the
"Corporate Governance” section of the Company’s website.

Shareholders who have enquires to the Board may write to

the Company Secretary at the Company’s principal place of
business in Hong Kong.

By Order of the Board

Kam Suet Fan
Company Secretary

Hong Kong, 25th June, 2014
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The directors have pleasure to present their report and the
audited consolidated financial statements of the Company and
its subsidiaries (the "Group”) for the year ended 31st March,
2014.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company.

The principal activities and particulars of the Company’s
principal subsidiaries and the Group’s principal associates as at
31st March, 2014 are set out in notes 38 and 16, respectively, to
the consolidated financial statements.

SEGMENTAL INFORMATION

An analysis of the Group’s revenue and conftribution to operating
results for the year ended 31st March, 2014 is set out in note 5 to
the consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31st March, 2014 are
set out in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income on page 45 of the annual report.

The directors have resolved to recommend the payment of a
final dividend of HK3.0 cents per share (2013: HK3.0 cents in
cash with scrip option) and a special dividend of HK3.0 cents
per share (2013: Nil) for the year ended 31st March, 2014, which
will be payable in cash with an option to elect scrip dividend of
shares to shareholders whose names appear on the register of
members of the Company on 28th August, 2014.

RESERVES

Details of the movements in the reserves of the Group during the
year are set out in the consolidated statement of changes in
equity on pages 48 to 50 of the annual report.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The aggregate revenue attributable to the Group’s five largest
customers during the year were less than 30% of the Group’s
total turnover.

The aggregate purchases attributable to the Group’s five largest

suppliers during the year were less than 30% of the Group’s total
purchases.
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the
Group for the past five financial years is set out on page 135 of
the annual report.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in the property, plant and equipment
of the Group during the year are set out in note 13 to the
consolidated financial statements.

INVESTMENT PROPERTY

Details of the revaluation and movements of the investment
property of the Group during the year are set out in note 14 to
the consolidated financial statements. As at 31st March, 2014,
the Group had only one investment property which is situated
at No. 1946/50 West Broadway, Vancouver, B.C., Canada for
commercial use and the lease term of such property is freehold.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in the share capital of the Company
during the year are set out in note 26 to the consolidated
financial statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES OF THE COMPANY

Under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as amended), the
contributed surplus account of the Company is available for
distribution. However, the Company cannot declare or pay a
dividend, or a distribution out of contributed surplus if:

(a) it is, or would after the payment be, unable to pay its
liabilities as they become due; or

(b) the realisable value of its assets would thereby be less than
its liabilities.

In the opinion of the directors, subject to the restrictions as
stipulated in the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda as described
above, the Company’s reserves available for distribution to
shareholders as at 31st March, 2014 were as follows:

MBRE

REBRBERETBRFEZEEREEREGRE
BEFHINARFREI3E °

ME- BERRE

AEBEZME  BEMKBREFANZIZHFEH
SRR & B MR M3 o

REWR

REEBZEEVERFAZEHRESHFEH
Rt A HREWFI14- R - —NE=ZA
—+—H XEBEERE—EREVELAMERE
B S ENo. 1946/50 West Broadway{E R 3
B BERAMEZHEFHAEKAERE-

N

RRARZBARFERNzZ B FBEINGE T
mRETFE26 ©

RKRABZODIki#E
REEBRE1981FRANE (KIERT)  ARFIZE

HBHBEAESIR - AN - ARFTEATBERT
BUEBABTIRIURNRESIMEFRIEL DK

(o) BEFRMEAREEEDNHEE X

2

(o) HREEZEREBEEINEAR -

SERE BELIAMNBREIBIFARNERT
FIR > ARRIR —_ZE—WNE=ZA=+—Ha#H»
K FREMREEHEDT

2014 2013

—F-NE =T =%

HK$°000 HK$000

FAET FET

Contributed surplus AR 222,435 222,435
Accumulated profits Epianl 901,796 955,339
1,124,231 1,177,774
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BORROWINGS

Bank and other borrowings repayable within one year or on
demand are classified as current liabilities. Details of bank and
other borrowings of the Group as at 31st March, 2014 are set out
in note 23 to the consolidated financial statements.

DIRECTORS

The directors of the Company during the year and up to the
date of this report were:

Executive directors:
Chan Kwok Keung, Charles (Chairman)
Chau Mei Wah, Rosanna

(Deputy Chairman and Managing Director)
Chan Kwok Chuen, Augustine
Chan Fut Yan
Chan Yiu Lun, Alan

Independent non-executive directors:
Chuck, Winston Calptor

Lee Kit Wah

Shek Lai Him, Abraham

In accordance with Bye-law 98(A) of the Company’s Bye-laws,
Dr. Chan Kwok Keung, Charles, Ms. Chau Mei Wah, Rosanna
and Mr. Shek Lai Him, Abraham will retire by rotation at the
forthcoming annual general meeting. All retiring directors, being
eligible for re-election, offer themselves for re-election.

The independent non-executive directors are appointed for
a specific term, subject to re-election, which will run until the
conclusion of the third annual general meeting from the date
of their last re-election and in accordance with the Company’s
Bye-laws. No director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming
annual general meeting has a service contract with the Group
which is not determinable by the Group within one year without
payment of compensation, other than statutory compensation.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at 31st March, 2014, the interests and short positions of the
directors and chief executives of the Company in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company or any
associated corporations, within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (the "SFO"), as recorded in
the register of the Company required to be kept under Section
352 of the SFO, or as otherwise nofified to the Company and
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Hong Kong
Stock Exchange”) pursuant to the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the "Model Code”) set
out in Appendix 10 fo the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”) were as
follows:

(a) Interests and short positions in shares, underlying shares
and debentures of the Company

-HEROREREE ZE

E-ME=A=+—H8" ZK’A?i%&IK
THRABRARRHEMBEER (FERE
&Hﬁ,éﬂ%H(T FRBE G F+ R 2k
B REEETRHEREES MPERK
1§‘J%’352f ABRNARRMREFECMAZE
¥)325')*(75 SRBEEEBARSMBERAR (&

AT R %Lm%ﬁﬁ'(Ttmiﬁﬁ'JJ)Wﬁ*—?—
ZJ:I‘D§§TT/\§$1§TT E5RZNFEESTA (1R

EFAI) MASITHE ARG REB ﬁXFﬁZ%
mERBEWT

(@) REDFz2RHG - HEROREREE 2 &
mRKR

Approximate

Number of percentage of

shares of the issued

Long position/ the Company share capital

Name of director Capacity Short position held of the Company

SN EARBE BT

BExgs 54 HERKR R 8B REMOE D

Chan Kwok Keung, Beneficial owner Long position 262,446,848 20.66%
Charles BB A Sy} (Note)
PR [ o (Htez)

Chan Kwok Keung, Interest of controlled Long position 202,681,534 15.96%
Charles corporation (Note) S} (Note)
BR B 38 MNEEHER Z #a (K1et)

(Htiz)
Note: W1aT -

Galaxyway Investments Limited was a wholly-owned subsidiary of
Chinaview Infternational Limited which was, in furn, wholly-owned by
Dr. Chan Kwok Keung, Charles. Dr. Chan Kwok Keung, Charles was
deemed to be interested in 202,681,534 shares of the Company held
by Galaxyway Investments Limited. Dr. Chan Kwok Keung, Charles
held 262,446,848 shares of the Company.

During the year ended 31st March, 2014, Dr. Chan Kwok Keung,
Charles converted the convertible notes of the Company in an
aggregate principal amount of HK$36,000,000 at the conversion
price of HK$0.3 per share into 119,999,997 shares of the Company.

Galaxyway Investments Limited/&Chinaview
International LimitedZ 2 &K B QA © M
Chinaview International Limited 8l F FR B 58 1§ £
2 EHA - MR8 1+ 18 E % B Galaxyway
Investments LimitedffT#§ 2 202,681,534fK A8 &
AR 2 R % o PRIBISRIE 13555 262,446,848 7
RNARG °

REE-_ZT—NWF-_A=F+—HLEFER &
HAB T ERARESRIIBE LERELAS S
%136,000,0008 T2 AR A BB BE KR A
119,999,997% X A B % 19 °
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES

(continued)

(b) Interests and short positions in shares, underlying shares
and debentures of ITC Properties Group Limited (“ITC
Properties”)

(b) REFBESEERIA ([BHEHBE]) 2
Bt - HEROREEZ2ESZRLR

Approximate

Number of percentage
Number of underlying of the
shares of shares of issued share
Long position/ ITC Properties ITC Properties capital of
Name of director Capacity Short position held held ITC Properties
iR E R E
s E Z N8 ERTRA
EEpE 4% BR/ KR BR&H&E LAy 4= BRBEA L
Chan Kwok Keung, Interest of controlled Long position 211,052,123 - 30.65%
Charles corporation HE (Note 1)
B B o (Note 1) (Btet1)
REEHEE 2 B
(Hfiz1)
Chan Kwok Keung, Beneficial owner Long position 6,066,400 - 0.88%
Charles ExlEBA HE
R B8
Chan Kwok Keung, Interest of spouse Long position 141,294,005 - 20.52%
Charles (Note 1) HE (Note 1)
BR B 58 L £ (Krat1)
(Hfiz1)
Chau Mei Wah, Beneficial owner Long position 9,933,111 - 1.44%
Rosanna ERBAA e (Note 2)
EES: (Hfit2)
Chau Mei Wah, Beneficial owner Long position - 1,100,000 0.16%
Rosanna ERBAA HE (Note 2)
X (Bizt2)
Chan Fut Yan Beneficial owner Long position 1,900,000 - 0.28%
bR 58 B EnBEEA HE (Note 2)
(Hfit2)
Chan Fut Yan Beneficial owner Long position - 2,100,000 0.30%
bR B EmEAA TE (Note 2)
(Br#t2)
Chan Yiu Lun, Beneficial owner Long position 1,500,000 - 0.22%
Alan BEmHEA 55}
Chan Yiu Lun, Beneficial owner Long position - 1,500,000 0.22%
Alan ExnlBA HE (Note 2)
R 2 Bt (Kr#tz)
Shek Lai Him, Beneficial owner Long position - 370,000 0.05%
Abraham ERBAA e (Note 2)
SELE (K1it2)
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES

(continued)

(b) Interests and short positions in shares, underlying shares
and debentures of ITC Properties Group Limited (“ITC
Properties”) (continued)

Notes:

1.

An indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company held
211,052,123 shares of ITC Properties. By virtue of his direct and
deemed interests in approximately 36.62% of the issued share
capital of the Company, Dr. Chan Kwok Keung, Charles was
deemed to be inferested in these shares of ITC Properties held
by the indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company.

Fortune Crystal Holdings Limited, a company indirectly
wholly-owned by Ms. Ng Yuen Lan, Macy (the spouse of Dr.
Chan Kwok Keung, Charles), held 141,294,005 shares of ITC
Properties. Dr. Chan Kwok Keung, Charles was deemed to be
interested in these shares of ITC Properties held by Fortune
Crystal Holdings Limited.

Details of outstanding share optfions (unlisted equity
derivatives) granted to the directors of the Company by ITC

>
(&

HEROREEEZE

(o) REFHERERRAA ([BHFHE])
2RO HEAROREEIZEERKXA

(%)

Hat

1. ARR—EHEE2ENBRARSEEEN
EE211,052,123 & 10 2z - AR HEE R
WRVEHE R AR R B BT AL)36.62%2 1
@ RERELIEGERAAR—BBES
BB AR AT A 2 2 S ER D T %

Bk -

ERREERER AR AL AMLLHERE

RN

HARBERIE L 2 BB - #E

=R EE 141,294,005 f% (7 o PR B 38 18 1%
BIEREBIERER NGB E 2 ZEEH

WERDTEEER -

2. RIZE—ME=A=+—H EFHERT
ARBEEZMARITE ZBIEGELTR

Properties as at 31st March, 2014 were as follows: AOTETE)FBIT -
Number of share options Exercise price
REREE per share of
Outstanding Granted Exercised Outstanding ITC Properties as at
Name of as at during during as at 31st March, 2014
optionholder Date of grant Option period * 1.4.2013 the year the year 31.3.2014  (subject to adjustments)
R=%-=F R=Z2-mF ERERBERD
BRE mA-8 ZA=t-B R-B-MEZR=+-A
REARE RABH BREFNE WARTE ERRH ERT HATE ZRE(TTHER
HKS
V3
Chau Mei Wah, 29.3.2010 29.3.2010 f0 28.3.2014 1,500,000 - (1,500,000 - 227
Rosanna —E-%% ZT-TEZAZTNHEE
AxE ZA-tAA ZZ-BE=A=+)\H
Chau Mei Wah, 17.10.2013 17.10.2014 t0 16.10.2017 - 1,100,000 1,100,000 3.00
Rosanna “E-ZF “Z-PmETATEAE
AxE TATtH ZE-+ETATRA
Chan Fut Yon 29.3.2010 29.3.2010 f0 28.3.2014 2,900,000 - (2,900,000 - 2227
iR —2-%f% “E-TEZAZTNHEE
ZAZtNH ZE-ME=RZTN\A
Chan Fut Yan 17.10.2013 17.10.2014 10 16.10.2017 - 2,100,000 2,100,000 3.00
RER “3-=f “E-METATLAR
tAT+H I S R
Chan Yiu Lun, 29.3.2010 29.3.2010 10 28.3.2014 1,500,000 - (1,500,000 - 227
Alon “E-%% “E-ZEZA-TARE
RiRE ZA-tNA —Z-MEZA=t)NA
Chan Yiu Lun, 17.10.2013 17.10.2014 t0 16.10.2017 - 1,500,000 1,500,000 3.00
Alan ZZ-ZF ZE-METATLAE
Rigg: TATtH ZELETATRA
Shek Lai Him, 17.10.2013 17.10.2014 t0 16.10.2017 - 370,000 370,000 3.00
Abraharm ZZ-F ZT-METATLAZE
higk tAT+H S S R
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EFETE®mEF

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN EERRGD MHEROREESZE

SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES mRREE)

(continued)

(b) Interests and short positions in shares, underlying shares (b) RERFHWEEBERLT((EBEME]
and debentures of ITC Properties Group Limited (“ITC ZRE HEROEREERIBZEZRARE
Properties”) (continued) ()

Notes: (continued) K1t - (&)
2. (continued) 2. (#&)

* In relation to the grant of share options on 29th March, * BRZE-ZEF=ZA-t+AEREZ
2010 and subject to the terms and conditions of the EREMs RIBEIREFHMER S
share option scheme of ITC Properties adopted on 26th Z_FNAZ+NHRMNZERER
August, 2002, the share options shall be exercisable at B 7 & AR R - BB AR RE ] B AR
any fime during the option period and subject further to a HAME N R R TT(E - HEE D & %50%
maximum of 50% of the share options shall be exercisable BRETRE —_FHB(ZE—F=
during the second year period commencing from 29th A-+hBE-_ZE——F=A=-+N
March, 2011 to 28th March, 2012 with the balance of the H) AT - B R 1T A Al 1
share options not yet exercised may be exercised during —E-—F=AZthBE-ZE—MN
the period commencing from 29th March, 2012 to 28th F=ZAZ+N\BEBHERITE-

March, 2014.

In relation to the grant of share options on 17th October, PR ZE—=F+B8++tBAEHLZE
2013 and subject to the terms and conditions of the KEmMS REBEEEEfAMER S
share option scheme of ITC Properties adopted on 17th ——FENA++LtBERRZERETE
August, 2012, the share options shall be exercisable at ZIER LA BRETR —_E—m
any time during the period from 17th October, 2014 to FE+A++EE-_Z—+E+ A+~
16th October, 2017 and provided that up to a maximum HHEIR AEREETE HEP 5%
of 50% of the share options shall be exercisable during 50%EE R E R NEIfS (2 —WE+ A
the period commencing from 17th October, 2014 to 16th ++tHE-ZE—FRFEF+A+B)RA
October, 2015 with the balance of the share options TE EHMARTEBERETR S
not yet exercised may be exercised during the period —FFE+Ht++RE-_ZE—+EF1+ A
commencing from 17th October, 2015 to 16th October, +NHHEBAITE -

2017.

**  During the year, Ms. Chau Mei Wah, Rosanna, Mr. Chan v RFRBAEELLT BRBRELEER
Fut Yan and Mr. Chan Yiu Lun, Alan exercised the share PER W2 4 A LA T IR B R s EE AR (0 2. 2278
options of ITC Properties at HK$2.22 per ITC Properties TCATIE R 2 BE AR A
share.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EFETE®mEE

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES

(continued)

(c) Interests and short positions in shares, underlying shares

EERNRGD HEROREES &
BmRRE @

(c) REEEEBRAFA(HRED) 2BH A

and debentures of PYl Corporation Limited ("PYI”) RO EEESEEZRKR
Approximate
percentage
Number of of the
Long position/ shares of issued share
Name of director Capacity Short position PYI held capital of PYI
HRE
FrisRE EBRTRAE
EEpE 40 BE/ KA RoEE BABSH
Chan Kwok Keung, Interest of controlled Long position 1,226,971,695 26.81%
Charles corporation (Note) 59}
R B8 REEHER 2 &
(Hiz)
Chan Kwok Keung, Beneficial owner Long position 35,936,031 0.79%
Charles BEmHEA 59}
R B8
Shek Lai Him, Beneficial owner Long position 6,000 0.00%
Abraham BEmHEA 59}
VSELE

Note:

An indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company held
1,226,971,695 shares of PYl. By virtue of his direct and deemed
interests in approximately 36.62% of the issued share capital of
the Company, Dr. Chan Kwok Keung, Charles was deemed to be
interested in these shares of PYl held by the indirect wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company.

Hiat

AAEl—EEEEEN B QA5 H1,226,971,695
BRRER G - EREEZELEREREEAAGE
BATHR A H36.62% 2 s » BRI TH AR ER
HARR—MEE2EWNBERRMBE ZZER
EROFHREELS -
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

EFETE®mEF

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES

(continued)

(d) Interests and short positions in shares, underlying shares

and debentures of Rosedale Hotel Holdings Limited

("Rosedale™)

HEROREEREZE

>
&)

P
mp 55

(d) REBBEEZRERLABD((HE]D 2R

7 HEROREEREERKAR

Approximate

Charles

RS

EZBAA

iR

percentage
Number of of the issued share
shares of capital of Rosedale
Long position/ Rosedale held {HEAE
Name of director Capacity Short position FEHE ERITRA
EEns 51 Be/ KR ROHE BOED
Chan Kwok Keung, Interest of controlled Long position 195,706,000 29.76%
Charles corporation (Note) e
BR 58 REZEHEE
Z
(Hiz)
Chan Kwok Keung, Beneficial owner Long position 1,132,450 0.17%

Note:

An indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company held
195,706,000 shares of Rosedale. By virtue of his direct and deemed
interests in approximately 36.62% of the issued share capital of
the Company, Dr. Chan Kwok Keung, Charles was deemed to be
interested in these shares of Rosedale held by the indirect wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company.
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AR A —HEE2EN B R R H195,706,0008%
BRD - ERNEEE R EIERE AR R %
TR AN #936.62% 1 5% + PR S8 18 LW B ER B A
AE—HEEE2EWNBERRBE ZZSHER
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EFETE®mEE

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES

(continued)

(e) Interests and short positions in shares, underlying shares
and debentures of Burcon NutraScience Corporation
("Burcon”)

CHEHEROREREZE
(&)

(e) MBurcon NutraScience Corporation
(TBurcon) 2R} - HERHO REERZ
EERAR

Number of
underlying
shares (in Approximate
respect of the percentage
share options of the
Number of (unlisted equity issued share
Long position/ shares of derivatives)) capital of
Name of director Capacity Short position Burcon held of Burcon held Burcon
Fr#%Burcon
ZHER G
(ERBERE
(LT {&Burcon
Fi#Burcon BRARSTE ERITRE
BEspns 54 Be/ KA BOHA IR))#E BREA L
Chau Mei Wah, Beneficial owner Long position 405,389 - 1.28%
Rosanna EnEBA gE
EES
Chau Mei Wah, Beneficial owner Long position - 23,846 0.08%
Rosanna EREAA e (Note)
GES (Hit)
Chau Mei Wah, Beneficial owner Long position - 80,000 0.25%
Rosanna EnEBA gE
Chan Yiu Lun, Beneficial owner Long position - 125,000 0.40%
Alan EnEBA gE
R 12
Nofte: Vi

Ms. Chau Mei Wah, Rosanna was allotted with 405,389 rights to
subscribe for 23,846 shares of Burcon at CAD2.82 per share under
the rights offering of Burcon.

As af 31st March, 2014, ITC Properties, PYl, Rosedale and Burcon
were associated corporations of the Company within the
meaning of Part XV of the SFO.

Dr. Chan Kwok Keung, Charles was, by virtue of his direct and
deemed interests in approximately 36.62% of the issued share
capital of the Company, deemed to be interested in the shares
and underlying shares (in respect of equity derivatives), if any,
of the associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of
the SFO) of the Company held by the Group under Part XV of the
SFO.

L BBurconZ R IEHEEIE - FEELTER
E£405,38917 £ B & - 7] LA2.8200 7T 32 23,846 %
Burconfi& 17 °

RZE—WF=ZA=+—H BREZHFMHE
BAIE+RIB 2 ERE @ EFEHE - RE - HER
BurconJ3 R A &) 2 MHEE A H o

ERRERAELTERERRREREAARRE H
1T ARKI36.62% 2 # sk - RIBE 7 R REIERIIFE
THE  RERERAREFE 2 AR RIEE

(EEREFMBEGRDIE T 2 &E
B (BRARATTETR) (E) G #n o
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EFETE®mEF

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES

(continued)

Save as disclosed above, as at 31st March, 2014, none of
the directors and chief executives of the Company had any
interests and short positions in the shares, underlying shares or
debentures of the Company or any associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) as recorded in the
register of the Company required to be kept under Section 352 of
the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Hong
Kong Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The share option scheme of the Company was adopted on 19th
August, 2011 ("2011 Scheme”). No share options were granted,
exercised, cancelled or lapsed during the year. At 31st March,
2014, there was no outstanding share option granted by the
Company pursuant to the 2011 Scheme.

Save as disclosed herein, at no time during the year was the
Company or any of its subsidiaries a party fo any arrangements
which enabled the directors of the Company to acquire
benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or debt
securities including debentures of, the Company or any other
body corporate, and none of the directors, chief executives or
their spouse or children under the age of 18, had any right to
subscribe for securities of the Company, or had exercised any
such right during the year.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed in note 36 to the consolidated financial
statements, no contracts of significance to which the Company
or any of its subsidiaries was a party and in which a director
of the Company had a material interest, whether directly or
indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any fime during
the year.

DIRECTORS' INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESSES

None of the directors of the Company were interested in any
business apart from the Group’s businesses which compete or is
likely to compete, either directly or indirectly, with the businesses
of the Group as at 31st March, 2014.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the year ended 31st March, 2014, there was no
connected transaction or continuing connected fransaction
of the Company which is required fo be disclosed pursuant
to Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. None of the related party
fransactions set out in note 36 to the consolidated financial
statements are such fransactions required to be disclosed
pursuant to Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

ANNUAL REPORT 2014 4 [ 3 &

EERRGOD HEROREESZE
BmRRE @

BREXPBEEEIN RZTE-—NF=R=+—
B ARAEZERIZITRAERERARR L
ERBEE (EXRESFRREGRIIE+RE)
ZRAn - AR B RE T REAREE S R
E1RPIEI521KBE TR AR BRI E LM A
ZAIEf R FOAR - RIRBFEETRIMASITA
EARANBBMIMZEDLRE

BRESE

ARARZF——F A+ L BRABRE
([ ZF——F58l) RERNALEBREE
BT FHIEARX-R_F-—NF=A
=+—B BERE_Z——FiEaAQa%
2 HRITE 2 R -

BRAXREEI - RARSEEMMERRR
FREMRERESETIERZEE - UWEAR
AIERA B ARR A ST EMEABEZ K
MREBESF (BEERE) MEN - BEE - =
ZITBABHBREZEBIARB T /N\RZFER
FARERARBARBBF 2EMN - TFEITRE
TR EERN -

ESREZEANhzER

Brira M MR EEIN  ARAIRE
EEARAFEEMMBRARNFERERKEF
NEARBRI L2 EZROTMEERNEZE
BEAR#E -

EENBHBRFEXEB 2ES

RZZ-—NF=ZA=1t—B HBELXRFAEERN
ERRE XM E & MR B A e
F2AEMER (REEZEBIRIN) A EE

BERXZ

HEZFT—NF=A=1+—HILFE  XQAAL
ERES S RHEMER FERE L DRAIE
VAT - 524 85 R I EEaeBT BB A+
2 BRI X 5B RS LR RIE14AE
W -

40



ITC CORPORATION LIMITED & # & # % AR I

41

DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EFETE®mEE

INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF
SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS IN SHARES OF
THE COMPANY

As at 31st March, 2014, so far as is known to the directors
and the chief executives of the Company, the interests or
short positions of substantial shareholders in the shares and
underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the register of
the Company required to be kept under Section 336 of the SFO
were as follows:

FERRRADARDZ2EZR KA

R-ZZE-—NF=ZA=1+—8 BARAZEEK
TETBRABMAE REEFLRBEEIHE
336 RIFZ AR R B MAALHE 2 EFZRRRN
ARB 2B RAARRD ZERIORRMT

Approximate

Number of percentage of

shares of the issued

Long position/ the Company share capital

Name Capacity Short position held of the Company

FREARQT EARBE BT

wE/ A8 ) BE KR RHEE BRABNBD L

Chan Kwok Keung, Beneficial owner Long position 262,446,848 20.66%
Charles EmlAA e} (Note)
PR B 58 (Htiz)

Chan Kwok Keung, Interest of controlled Long position 202,681,534 15.96%
Charles corporation (Note) e (Nofte)
PR B 58 MEZEHER 2w (Bt7z)

(Kt:E)

Chinaview International Interest of controlled Long position 202,681,534 15.96%
Limited corporation (Note) e} (Nofte)
MEZEHER 2w (Bt7z)

(Kt:E)

Galaxyway Investments Beneficial owner Long position 202,681,534 15.96%
Limited ERnEAA Sy} (Note)
(Bt7z)

Ng Yuen Lan, Macy Interest of spouse Long position 465,128,382 36.62%
R B (Note) FE (Note)
FoiB#E s (L) (Bt7z)

Nofte: Htit -

Galaxyway Investments Limited, which held 202,681,534 shares of the
Company, was a wholly-owned subsidiary of Chinaview International
Limited which was, in turn, wholly-owned by Dr. Chan Kwok Keung,
Charles. Ms. Ng Yuen Lan, Macy is the spouse of Dr. Chan Kwok Keung,
Charles. Chinaview International Limited, Dr. Chan Kwok Keung, Charles
and Ms. Ng Yuen Lan, Macy were deemed to be interested in these shares
of the Company held by Galaxyway Investments Limited. Dr. Chan Kwok
Keung, Charles held 262,446,848 shares of the Company. Ms. Ng Yuen
Lan, Macy was deemed to be interested in the shares of the Company
held by Dr. Chan Kwok Keung, Charles.

Save as disclosed above, no other parties were recorded in the
register of the Company required fo be kept under section 336
of the SFO as having interests or short positions in the shares or
underlying shares of the Company as at 31st March, 2014.

Galaxyway Investments Limited&Chinaview
International LimitedZ — 2 EWEB AR HiEH
202,681,534[% A A A% 15 + MChinaview Internationall
Limited Bl FREISRIE 2 & A - M2 - AR
B+ Z BB - Chinaview International Limited ~ [ Bl 34
18 4 & (R 150 38 22 -39 #5 1R YE R Galaxyway Investments
LimitedfTI5 B 2 Z SRR AIRM P A - RE®
8 135 5262,446,84808 R A A IR o (R BIE Z AR
ERBHRBIAETAFE 2 A RRIRNDFPEEER -

B EXFEEEIN R _FT—EF
B REES R R R BI36 1R AR DA AR

MR 2 EEHAR -
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EFETE®mEF
RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES

Information on the Group’s retirement benefit schemes is set out
in note 31 to the consolidated financial statements.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s Bye-laws, or the applicable laws of Bermuda, which
would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata
basis to existing shareholders.

PUBLIC FLOAT

As at the date of this report, the Company has maintained the
prescribed minimum public float under the Listing Rules, based
on the information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the directors.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'’S LISTED SECURITIES

During the year ended 31st March, 2014, there was no purchase,
sale or redemption by the Company, or any of its subsidiaries, of
the Company’s listed securities.

EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Details of significant event occurring after the reporting period
are set out in note 39 to the consolidated financial statements.

AUDITOR

A resolution will be submitted to the forthcoming annual general
meeting to re-appoint Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu as the
external auditor of the Company.

On behalf of the Board

Dr. Chan Kwok Keung, Charles
Chairman

Hong Kong, 25th June, 2014
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
B Y 2 B HRE S

Deloitte.
=2

TO THE MEMBERS OF ITC CORPORATION LIMITED
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
ITC Corporation Limited (the "Company") and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the "Group") set out on pages
45 to 134, which comprise the consolidated statement of
financial position as at 31st March, 2014, and the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income,
the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended,
and a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that give a frue and
fair view in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the
directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit and fto report our
opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance with Section
90 of the Bermuda Companies Act, and for no other purpose.
We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to
any other person for the contents of this report. We conducted
our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with
ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial
statements are free from material misstatement.

a3t

BEFLEXEEARARNZEBRR
(RERZAMELZBRLA])

AAZBED UAT B[ #(F)) B B %5 HN 545
FVUMERFCLEEEERAF (U THREIER
A EREMBAR (ATHEIEEE]) NEE
BHEE EER-_Z-—NE=A=+—HH
RAEPBRAE  URBEZBELEFENGAR
mREMEEBAR  GERSEIRREAR
TRER  UARETESTHRBMEREMBEEE
£t o

ESHACMBRRARENSR

BERRMNERABERBEESAMASRMAN
(FRMBHRELEL) REEC(RAHEPD A FE
RERNGEFBEHRE  USHEAP BRI
BEEMAFHRREEEER SRS E MHHR
RFTLBEEAEES] - AEEAMBHRE T FE
B PO R RF BB AR T B B E K S R R

2 B Y B AE

BANEECRRERMNBEZEZSFEEYHER
RIFLER  WIRBARERRDEFEOBFRRER
FEBERRELRS - AR BIEEMAR - &
P TRARE c AREEMEMA TR L&
EEML - BMCRBETEGFHMASRANEE
B ERETEZ - ELERBERRMBTER
RE - WRBIRBITER  NEEBEUETES
MBBRRESTFREAERERRML -
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
B Y & M HRE S

An audit involves performing procedures to obtfain audit
evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected
depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of
the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to
the entity's preparation of consolidated financial statements that
give a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal
control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the
overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group as at 31st March,
2014, and of the Group's profit and cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards and have been properly prepared in accordance
with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong
25th June, 2014
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

= A
nj\ |

5 @m kK H M 2@ W A X

For the year ended 31st March, 2014 #Z - F—M#F= H=+—HI - FZF

2014 2013
Notes —E—-{F —E—=F
HKS’000 HKS 000
Biat FET FHET
Revenue WA 5 7,121 17,798
Management and other related EEREMARH
service income PR 7S U A 4,217 3,828
Interest income A 2B A 1,527 12,567
Property rental income PIER S WA 1,063 1,089
Other income E A YA 1,098 975
Gain on conversion options embedded in AR SRR 1 2 S
convertible notes Z Wz - 9,702
Gain on change in fair value REDI NV EEZED
of investment property 2 e 975 66
Administrative expenses THHAX (50,071) (53,960)
Finance costs EURID RN 7 (7.280) (14,382)
Net loss on net decrease in interests Bt AR ERFRD 2
in associates B85 5 8 (153,204) (35,330)
Share of results of associates B N R EE
- share of results —H(HEE 411,089 257,178
- gain on acquisitions of additional — R R N RIESN
interests in associates W 2 W 16 26,427 32,403
Profit before taxation and impairment BREA e — M = A Rl A
loss on interest in an associate 2 B ETIE Bl i A 235,841 214,136
Impairment loss on interest in an associate —fElE R AR
BEEE 16 (126,131) =
Profit before taxation R A5 AT A 9 109,710 214,136
Taxation Bi1E 10 122) ©)
Profit for the year REE A 109,588 214,128
Other comprehensive (expenses) income: Ha2E (FAs) WA -
Items that may be reclassified HETEH SR a0
subsequently to profit or loss: ZHEA :
Exchange differences arising on translation BMEBINETREE 2
of foreign operations VE =58 (2.199) (395)
Share of other comprehensive (expenses) BEEmeE R rHEMEAE
income of associates (Fx) WA (6.380) 17,965
Reclassification adjustment on reserves Bk N Rl i R TR D
released on net decrease in interests %ﬁfﬁ%ﬁZ%%ﬁ
in associates DI (2.528) (416)
Items that will not be reclassified REHTEEFTSEE
subsequently to profit or 10ss: Bwm A -
Gain on revaluation of land and buildings EA T REF WS 240 104
Deferred tax arising on revaluation BHTMEEFEELE Y
of land and buildings RIETIE (30) 13)
Other comprehensive (expenses) income AFEFEHMmEE (%)
for the year WA (10,897) 17,245
Total comprehensive income for the year AEEEEW AL 98,691 231,373
HK cents HK cenfs
B JEA
Earnings per share Fhk&AF 12
Basic SN 9.49 27.12
Diluted e 8.98 13.47

45?
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

e BB KRR X

At 31st March, 2014 R=F—gF=H=+—H

2014 2013
Notes —E—-mF —E—=%F
HK$'000 HKS 000
k=2 FET FHET
Non-current assets IRBEE
Property, plant and equipment Y - BB & EE 13 4,650 7.637
Investment property "EME 14 21,150 21,966
Intangible assets mAE 15 1,641 1,825
Interests in associates AN b= 16 3,045,256 2,785,380
Debt portion of convertible notes AR ER 2 EIEH S 17 - 52,741
Conversion options embedded AR EIR 2
in convertible notes i g3 17 - 18,634
3,072,697 2,888,183
Current assets RBEE
Inventories FE - 29
Debtors, deposits and prepayments JEUERTR ~ 5] RTBFUIA 18 9,355 3,641
Note receivable from an associate JEW—F'W%%QTET@ 19(a) - 50,000
Amounts due from associates JiE W Bt & N B RN IE 19(b) 1,857 4,244
Loans receivable FEWE K 20 - 28,000
Short-term bank deposits, bank balances MHARITIE R IR1TET
and cash MIRE 21 31,726 39,635
42,938 125,549
Current liabilities pE =R
Creditors and accrued expenses FET BE%K&E?E@SE 22 27,018 9,898
Margin account payable FERHRE R BRF IR 23(a) 19,596 S
Bank overdrafts RITEX 23(b) 62,653 52,555
Convertible notes payable AT AR =R FE (T RR 24 - 95,852
109,267 158,305
Net current liabilities RBAEEFE (66.329) (32,756)
Total assets less current liabilities BEERRBAR 3,006,368 2,855,427
ANNUAL REPORT 2014 £ [ & ? 46



ITC CORPORATION LIMITED & # & # % AR I

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

e BB KRR X

At 31st March, 2014 R=F—gF=H=+—H

2014 2013
Nofes —E-mF —T-=F
HK$’000 HK$'000
k3 FETT FEIT
Non-current liability FRBEE
Deferred tax liabilities EEIEEE 25 1,187 1,035
Net assets EEFE 3,005,181 2,854,392
Capital and reserves B G#EE
Share capital [N 26 12,702 9,276
Share premium and reserves f& A (B M 2,992,479 2,845,116
Total equity MR 3,005,181 2,854,392

The consolidated financial statements on pages 45 to 134 were
approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on
25th June, 2014 and are signed on its behalf by:

Chan Kwok Keung, Charles

BN FASBEEFIMBEZREUBRRENR S
—mEXNAZ+H Ez%§$/*¢z/ﬁ&?x%¥lJ§§

VTHTINEEREREFERS

Chau Mei Wah, Rosanna

PR Bl 3 Ax#E
Chairman Deputy Chairman and Managing Director
FE BT EREFHAEE
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ITC CORPORATION LIMITED & # & # % AR

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
REE@ ® B R

For fhe year ended 37sf March, 2014 Btz =F—mMF=A=+—HIFZ

Attributable fo owners of the Company

KLARAARL
Reserve  Capital Property Investment Converfible
Share Share Contributed on redemption Other revaluation revaluation Translation notes Accumulated
capifal  premium  surplus acquisition  reserve  reserve  reseve  reserve  reserve  reserve profits Total
et [e N%Ef  REER 78R

R%  RHER RABE  WEGE B EfRE i i EXGE FERE  ZHEA &
HKS000  HKSO00  HKSO00  HKSO00  HKSO00  HKSO00  HKSO00  HKSO00  HKSO00  HKSO00  HKSO00  HKS'000

Tt TEr  TEr  TEr  TEr  TEr  TEr  TEr  TEr  TEr  TEr T

(Notea)  (Nofeb) (Note c)
(i) () (W)

At 1t Apri, 2012 R-E-—ENA-H 1710 577,765 196,676 (24,890) 908 11,559 2,346 (m) 167,246 17205 1657404 2,613,260
Proft for the year REREA - - - - - - - - - - B 4R
Exchange diferences arising on BEBNEREE,

franslaion offoreign operations @i%@ - - - - - - - - (39%) - - (3%)
Shore of other comprehensiveincome. BEBERTIE(

of associates %Wjﬁ - - - - - - - 17.7% 169 - - 17,965
Reserves released on nef decreose BERTERTHIR

in inerests n associes ElEE - - - 10 - 8) - ) ) - - ()
Gain on revaluafion of and EffTIRETL

ond buidings Y& - - - - - - ] - - - - ]
Deferred fox arsing on revaluafion B THRETELL

ofland and buidings EERE - - - - - - (13) - - - - (13)
Totol comprehensive income KEERERA

(expenses) forthe year (%)% - - - 10 - 89 9 (654) B Y I KK
Isue of shares Efilkh

- conversion of convertible nofes -BRTARSE 1467 46208 - - - - - - - (5.309) -

- serip dividend -HREE ki 177 - - - - - - - - - 1756
Transacion costs on issue of shares EIRAZRANA - (59) - - - - - - - = = (%)
Dividend paid (nofe 11) ﬁH& (i) - (T - - - - - - - - ey )
Decrease in associates' equiy aftibutable  FRBEL 77 RARHER

fothe Group's inferests rising on equity ZKE ERBENTRERS

fransacfion ofthe associates E&AD - - - K1) - (18 - - - - ®3) e
At 315t Marh, 2013 RoB-ZE2A=1-R oMb SN e 508) 6 9615 24 169 b8 NS 1808 28439
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ITC CORPORATION LIMITED & # & # % AR I

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
T EEEE:

For the year ended 31st March, 2014 #Z - F—M#F= H=+—HI - FZF

Attributable fo owners of the Company

KAARAARL
Reserve  Capital Property Investment Converfible
Share Share Contributed on redemption Other revaluation revaluation Translation notes Accumulated
capifal  premium  surplus acquisition  reserve  reserve  reseve  reserve  reserve  resemve profits Total
it [d NXEf  REEH 78R

R%  RHER RABE  WEGE B EfRE i B EXRE FERE  ZHEA el
(000 HKS000  HKSO00  HKSOOD  HKSOOD  HKSO00  HKSO00  HKSO00  HKSOO0  HKSOOO  HKSO00  HKS'000
TEr  TEr  TEr TEr i TEr TR TEr TR TEr TR T

(Nofea)  (Nofe b) (Note )
W) (Hite) (Wske)

At Tst April, 2013 WZE-=FRA-A 9216 623,949 196,676 (25,087) 908 9,615 2037 16992 166,592 1194 1841088 2854392

Profit for the yeor KER T - - - - - - - - - - 10588 109588

Exchange diferences ariing on BEBNEREE,

fransafion of foreign operafions &i%@ - - - - - - - BN AL - - 2199)

Shore of other comprehensiveincome. BEBEATIE(

(etpenses) of associates 2EMARR) - - - - - - - BB () - - ()

Reseves released on nef decrease BERTERTHIR

innterest n on associote Bl - - - 9 - - - M) () . - 05

Gain on revaluafion of and EffTIRETL

ond buidings Y& - - - - - - 2% - - - - 2%
Deferred fox arsing on revaluafion BRETHRETELL

oflond and builings EIERE - - - - = g (30) 2 = = - (30)
Totol comprehensive income M 2EAA

(expenses) for the year (7%)4% - - - 9 - - 20 21875 (33,073) - 109588 98,691
Issue of shares Efikh

- conversion of convertible nofes -BRTARSE 330 106262 - - - - - - - (9% - 941

- scrip dividend -IRKEE 12 6272 - - - - - - - - - 639

Transaction costs on issue of shares HIRAZRARA - (26) - - - - - - - = = (2)

Dividend paid (nofe 11) ﬁﬁ&‘ g () - (6.39%) - - - - - - - - WK (00

Decrease in associates’ equiy aftibutable  FREEL TZMX%W

fo the Group's inferests rising on equity NEERARERR
transacfions of the associafes = = = = = (1.204) = = = = (39) (1.660)

At 315t March, 2014 R-Z-RE=A=1-H 000 7059 19618 (24%9) 908 831 260 W8T 13519 - 1906448 3005781

Nofes: K1z -

(a) The contributed surplus of the Group comprises the difference () NEBZERASBBEEARE—_NNL_F—A
between the nominal amount of the ordinary share capital issued “+mAZzARIEAKE BB AR 2T
by the Company in exchange for the nominal amount of the BZREMBIT AN LT EKRKATLE  EfF
share capital of a subsidiary acquired pursuant to a corporate e AN E 4B A AN B IS N AR T A A 2 MR
reorganisation on 24th January, 1992 and the credits arising from CETH  NEFeMEARESREETRE Y
the changes in the capital and reserves of the Company in capital EEmBE a2 8EE -

reorganisations and the transfers to the accumulated profits for
offsetting the loss on distribution of assets to shareholders as
approved by the board of directors.

(b) The reserve on acquisition represents the amount of fair value (b) WHEREEE —HBEE L ARKBE —HNEA RS
changes shared by the Group in relation to the acquisition of GNREZSRE  AREBFREBHEc AT BESESHLHE -

addifional interest in a subsidiary by an associate.
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ITC CORPORATION LIMITED & # & # % AR

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

.

ITVAAY

For the year ended 31st March, 2014 #Z - F—M#F= H=+—Hi - FZ

N

B & @

Notes: (continued)

©

Included in the balance as at 31st March, 2014 is the Group's share
of reserves of its associates, representing (i) share of the statutory
reserve of subsidiaries incorporated in the People's Republic
of China (the "PRC") of an associate standing to the credit of
HK$21,865,000 (2013: HK$20,331,000); and (ii) share of the deficit
of a reserve arising from increases in interests in subsidiaries that
is already controlled by an associate of HK$13,514,000 (2013:
HK$10,716,000).

PRC statutory reserve is required by the relevant laws in the PRC
applicable to the entities incorporated in the PRC, whereas the
allocation to which is mandatory at certain rates of profit affer
taxation of the relevant entities prepared under the PRC Generally
Accepted Accounting Principles until the balance of the reserve
reaches certain levels of the contributed capital of the relevant
entitfies.

When an associate of the Group increase its interest in an entity that
is already controlled by the associate, it is accounted for as equity
tfransaction by the associate. The carrying amounts of the equity
attributable to the owners of the associate and its non-controlling
interests are adjusted fo reflect the changes in their relative interests
in that entity. The difference between the amount by which the
relevant non-controlling interests are adjusted and the fair value of
the consideration paid by the associate is recognised directly in the
equity of the associate.
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13,514,000/ 7 (— & —=4F : 10,716,000/ 7T ) °
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ITC CORPORATION LIMITED & # & # % AR I

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
E BH EME K

For fhe year ended 31st March, 2014 #Z—F—WFE=H=+—HIF FE

2014 2013
—E-MF T =%
HK$’000 HK$ ‘000
FiET FEIT
OPERATING ACTIVITIES reEER
Profit before taxation R B4 A 109,710 214,136
Adjustments for: BRE TS EELFAE
Amortisation of intangible assets A E 184 161
Depreciation of property, plant M BELE&REZ
and equipment e 1,903 5,098
Gain on disposal of property, plant HEME BERZEZ
and equipment Wz (659) (519)
Interest income FLEWA (1.527) (12,567)
Interest expenses B 7.280 14,382
Gain on: Wz
- change in fair value of investment —REMELTER
property & (975) (66)
- conversion options embedded — AR
in convertible notes i - (9.702)
Net loss on net decrease in interests B & R rERFR D Z
in associates 1855 153,204 35,330
Share of results of associates 2 NI E S (437,516) (289,581)
Impairment loss on interest in —EE A RERL
an associate BIEEE 126,131 =
Operating cash flows before movements LEECEHR IKEER
in working capital ReEn= (42,265) (43,328)
Decrease in inventories FERL 29 3
Increase in debtors, deposits JEUERFR « 5T &
and prepayments TEATFRIEIE AN (7.158) (589)
Decrease in amounts due from associates JE Wit & R A R IR R > 2,387 968
Decrease (increase) in loans receivable ERERRD () 28,000 (18,000)
Increase (decrease) in creditors FERTBR R R FERT RIS
and accrued expenses #m ORd) 19,255 (732)
Cash from (used in) operations reEXBHmE (BR) 28 248 (61,678)
Dividends received from associates B Ut & N RIS 56,591 41,149
Interest received =R & URE) 2,727 7,483
NET CASH FROM (USED IN) REEKFRE (BH) 2
OPERATING ACTIVITIES BeFE 59,566 (13,046)
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ITC CORPORATION LIMITED & # & # % AR

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

e BRITME X

For the year ended 31st March, 2014 #Z - F—M#F= H=+—Hi - FZ

2014 2013
—E-{F —E—=F
HK$’000 HKS 000
FETT FEIT
INVESTING ACTIVITIES REXEK
Acquisition of convertible notes W BE AT IR AR 4R (55.152) (11,085)
Acquisition of additional interests in i B Bt 2 R =) RSN
associates e (41,862) (11,611)
Additions to property, plant and equipment NEME - BE RE&E 412) (1,097)
Transaction costs on conversion HIRHE N R B EE 2
of associate’s convertible notes TSR (300) -
Repayment of note receivable —EEE N REE
from an associate W = 15 50,000 50,000
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEWE - WE NMK&RE
plant and equipment FR18 308 2,125 529
Additions fo intangible assets NERVEE - (337)
NET CASH (USED IN) FROM BRELK (BA) FE
INVESTING ACTIVITIES REFHE (45,601) 26,399
FINANCING ACTIVITIES RMEEK
Dividends paid ERRE (43,832) (29,631)
Interest paid BERHE (7.017) (8,317)
Repayment of margin account payable FEHRE IR P 3B 2 R GIE (937) =
Transaction costs on issue of shares BTG Z X HEAR (26) (55)
Increase in margin account payable FE AR RE & BR = R IR L AN 20,000 =
NET CASH USED IN FINANCING MEXEKBH2Z
ACTIVITIES HEFE (31,812) (38,003)
NET DECREASE IN CASH AND CASH HeHERESEHEER
EQUIVALENTS W FRE (17.847) (24.650)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AREESHESEE
BROUGHT FORWARD HH (12,920) 11,684
EFFECT OF FOREIGN EXCHANGE RATE SEERSE 2
CHANGES =4 (160) 46
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS EEBSHRESEE
CARRIED FORWARD 1§ (30,927) (12,920)
ANALYSIS OF THE BALANCES OF REeWASEHEER
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS RO
Short-term bank deposits, bank balances RERRITTE R - RITETT
and cash kB 31,726 39,635
Bank overdrafts RITEX (62,653) (52.555)
(30,927) (12,920)
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ITC CORPORATION LIMITED & # & # % AR I

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MWK WA

For the year ended 31st March, 2014 #Z - F—M#F= H=+—HI - FZF

1.

531

GENERAL

The Company is an exempted company incorporafted in
Bermuda with limited liability. Its shares are listed on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the "Hong Kong
Stock Exchange”). The addresses of the registered office
and the principal place of business of the Company are
disclosed in the “Corporate Information” section of this
annual report.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in
Hong Kong dollars ("HKD"), which is also the functional
currency of the Company.

The Company is an investment holding company. The
principal activities of the Company’s principal subsidiaries
and the Group’s principal associates are set out in notes 38
and 16, respectively.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(*HKFRS(s)")

In the current year, the Group has applied, for the first time,
the following new or revised HKFRSs issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants ("HKICPA")
that are relevant for the preparation of the Group’s
consolidated financial statements:
Amendments fo HKAS 1 Presentation of ltems of Other
Comprehensive Income
Annual Improvements to HKFRSs
2009-2011 Cycle

Amendments o HKFRSs

Amendments to HKFRS 7 Disclosures - Offsetting Financial
Assets and Financial Liabilities
Consolidated Financial Statements,

Joint Arrangements and
Disclosure of Inferest in Other

Entities: Transition Guidance

Amendments to HKFRS 10,
HKFRS 11 and HKFRS 12

HKAS 19 (as revised in 2011)  Employee Benefits
HKAS 27 (as revised in 2011)  Separate Financial Statements

HKAS 28 (as revised in 2011)  Investments in Associates and Joint

Ventures
HKFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements
HKFRS 11 Joint Arrangements
HKFRS 12 Disclosure of Interests in Other
Enfities
HKFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement

HK(IFRIC) - Int 20 Stripping Costs in the Production

Phase of a Surface Mine

]
=

ARARBREEMALRIBRERD
al ka&% BAERZHMARAE (&
BEERFT]) B o AR R G E R S E
TEEXHMHCORAFRIAAER] 4
EHRE -

FAEMBHERAET ([ET]) 25 - B
RARARZINEE -

KATBIREER AT - KXABZTEHB A
ARAEETFEBE N2 TEEKS I
5 AT 5E38 5216 ©

RAEE  REBERRAATHEESS
MAg ((ERGMAE]) B EAE
BiRBIF A M RRAB AT REERTE
BB mEER

HA G AR Hin2EWAEE 2
%] ‘7»2{9 uT %5”

BB REER BBM RS AR
ZAER] “ZEENFR

—E-—FHEE
FEME

BB R R R FE-IREEHEE
BIFZIERT kemas

BB RS %R RENMKHREK A%
F10% - M ZHERBEERNE A
15 M ERE 2R

B A0 RS %R B M
F125 2 1ER]

BB ELE195% EERF
(ZZ——FKE35])

BB ERFE275 BN B SRR
(_iﬁffiz«(ﬂk )

BB e ERIF 285 REENTIRAE
(ZE——F&E5]) rEZRE

BB R R R REMBRE
1057

BB B RS LR BELH

F115

BB B EER BERNEMER
125 W &

BB B E LR NEEERE
%135

B (BB KRE BABSEERERZ
RELEE) KB AR
—REE20%

ANNUAL REPORT 2014 & E 3§ &



ITC CORPORATION LIMITED Z # &

¥EB ARSI

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B Ww R MG

For the year ended 31st March, 2014 é]é_—t_ =

2,

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRS(s)") (continued)

New and revised standards on consolidation, joint
arrangements, associates and disclosures

In the current year, the Group has applied for the first time
HKFRS 10, HKFRS 11, HKFRS 12 and HKAS 28 (as revised in
2011) together with the amendments to HKFRS 10, HKFRS 11
and HKFRS 12 regarding the transitional guidance. HKAS 27
(as revised in 2011) is not applicable to these consolidated
financial statements as it deals only with separate financial
statements. The directors of the Company made an
assessment as at the date of initial application of these new
and revised standards (i.e. 1st April, 2013) and concluded
that the application of these new and revised standards has
had no impact to the Group.

HKFRS 13 “Fair Value Measurement”

The Group has applied HKFRS 13 for the first time in
the current year. HKFRS 13 establishes a single source
of guidance for, and disclosures about, fair value
measurements, and replaces those requirements previously
included in various HKFRSs.

The scope of HKFRS 13 is broad, and applies to both
financial instrument items and non-financial instrument
items for which other HKFRSs require or permit fair
value measurements and disclosures about fair value
measurements, subject fo a few exceptions. HKFRS 13
contains a new definition for “fair value” and defines fair
value as the price that would be received to sell an asset
or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
in the principal (or most advantageous) market at the
measurement date under current market conditions. Fair
value under HKFRS 13 is an exit price regardless of whether
that price is directly observable or estimated using another
valuation technique. Also, HKFRS 13 includes extensive
disclosure requirements.

The directors of the Company considered that the
application of HKFRS 13 has had no material effect on
the amounts recognised in these consolidated financial
statements.
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ITC CORPORATION LIMITED & # & # % AR I

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MWK WA

For the year ended 31st March, 2014 #Z - F—M#F= H=+—HI - FZF

2,

55?

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRS(s)") (continued)

Amendments to HKAS 1
Comprehensive Income”

“Presentation of Items of Other

The amendments tfo HKAS 1 introduce new terminology
for statement of comprehensive income and income
statement. Under the amendments to HKAS 1, a statement
of comprehensive income is renamed as a statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income and an
income statement is renamed as a statement of profit
or loss. The amendments to HKAS 1 retain the option to
present profit or loss and other comprehensive income
in either a single statement or in two separate but
consecutive statements. However, the amendments to
HKAS 1 require additional disclosures to be made in the
other comprehensive section such that items of other
comprehensive income are grouped into two categories:
(a) items that will not be reclassified subsequently to profit
or loss; and (b) items that may be reclassified subsequently
to profit or loss when specific conditions are met. Income
tax on items of other comprehensive income is required
to be allocated on the same basis - the amendments do
not change the existing option fo present items of other
comprehensive income either before tax or net of tax. The
amendments have been applied retrospectively, and hence
the presentation of items of other comprehensive income
has been modified to reflect the changes.

Except as described above, the application of the other
new or revised HKFRSs in the current year has had no
material effect on the amounts reported and/or disclosures
set out in these consolidated financial statements.

2.

XA R

R&EES

W
Eli
T

& B 1%

#a*
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B (T&7 JH%#E%%E'JJ) (,%E)

EEEHERFEIREMBEZERARRZ
23]z EaT

B8 Eu+$EIJ%1%EZﬂ%ET?Jﬁ%EH&ZA%E&
WAFKS|IAFMGE - BRIBF B ST 2ERI S
SR2ER]  2EABARERABEREME
ARAR  MBEARBEZABZR &8
gn‘l’@ﬁ']%]%ﬁ f pT1% aJ LA Til«)(“
WMERIAMEDHEEECWMERETNERER
Hi2EBA - A EB ST ERE15
ZIEEIREAEREMEE DB RIEDBEINE
BoUAKEMEERAEE S HME  (a)
HEg BT Tes5FfoBEBE2HEE kD)
REEREREREETEEENHDEEE
w2IER c Hib2EUWAIEE 2 TR AR
MR E %S AL — BB BE 5] AN Nf 5 o B 3R I
AMERR B AT SR F R EEZ 5 2 E IR A
JHE 2BE - BREFIEEBPRM - AltE
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Ry E -
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ITC CORPORATION LIMITED Z # &

¥EB ARSI

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B Ww R MG

For the year ended 31st March, 2014 é?é_—t_ =

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRS(s)") (continued)

The Group has not early applied the following new and
revised HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet
effective:
Amendments to HKFRSs Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2010 - 2012 Cycle*

Amendments to HKFRSs Annual Improvements to

HKFRSs 2011 - 2013 Cycle?

Amendments to HKFRS 9
and HKFRS 7

Mandatory Effective Date of
HKFRS 9 and Transition
Disclosures®

Amendments to HKFRS 10,
HKFRS 12 and HKAS 27

Investment Entities!

Amendments to HKFRS 11 Accounting for Acquisitions of
Interests in Joint Operations®

Clarification of Acceptable
Methods of Depreciation and
Amortisation®

Defined Benefit Plans: Employee
Contributions?

Offsetting Financial Assets and
Financial Liabilities!

Recoverable Amount Disclosures
for Non-Financial Assets’

Novation of Derivatives and
Continuation of Hedge
Accounting’

Financial Instruments?®

Amendments to HKAS 16
and HKAS 38

Amendments to HKAS 19
Amendments to HKAS 32
Amendments to HKAS 36

Amendments to HKAS 39

HKFRS 9

HK(IFRIC) - Int 21 Levies!

L Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st January,
2014, with earlier application permitted

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st July, 2014.
Early application is permitted

9 Available for application - the mandatory effective date will
be determined when the outstanding phases of HKFRS 9 are
finalised

& Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st July, 2014,
with limited exceptions

8 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st January,
2016
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ITC CORPORATION LIMITED & # & # % AR I

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BB WK M

For the year ended 31st March, 2014 #Z2 =%

2,

571

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRS(s)") (continued)

Amendments to HKAS 36 "Recoverable Amount
Disclosures for Non-Financial Assets”

The amendments to HKAS 36 remove the requirement to
disclose the recoverable amount of a cash-generating unit
("CGU") to which goodwill or other intangible assets with
indefinite useful lives had been allocated when there has
been no impairment or reversal of impairment of the related
CGU. Furthermore, the amendments introduce addifional
disclosure requirements regarding the fair value hierarchy,
key assumptions and valuation techniques used when the
recoverable amount of an asset or CGU was defermined
based on its fair value less costs of disposal.

The directors of the Company do not anticipate that the
application of these amendments to HKAS 36 will have a
significant impact on the consolidated financial statements
of the Group.

HKFRS 9 “Financial Instruments”

HKFRS 9 issued in 2009 introduces new requirements for
the classification and measurement of financial assefts.
HKFRS 9 was subsequently amended in 2010 to include
the requirements for the classification and measurement
of financial liabilities and for derecognition, and further
amended in 2013 to include the new requirements for
hedge accounting.

Key requirements of HKFRS 9 are described as follows:

o All recognised financial assefs that are within the
scope of HKAS 39 “Financial Instruments: Recognition
and Measurement” are subsequently measured
at amortised cost or fair value. Specifically, debt
investments that are held within a business model
whose objective is to collect the contractual cash
flows, and that have contractual cash flows that
are solely payments of principal and interest on the
principal outstanding are generally measured at
amortised cost at the end of subsequent accounting
periods. All other debt investments and equity
investments are measured at their fair values at the
end of subsequent reporting periods. In addition, under
HKFRS 9, entities may make an irrevocable election to
present subsequent changes in the fair value of an
equity investment (that is not held-for-trading) in other
comprehensive income, with only dividend income
generally recognised in profit or loss.
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ITC CORPORATION LIMITED & # & # % AR

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B Ww R MG

For the year ended 31st March, 2014 é]é_-t_ T—FE=H="1—HIFZF

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA. In
addition, the consolidated financial statements include
applicable disclosures required by the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange
(the ‘“Listing Rules”) and by the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.
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2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG 2. RAFIIRKEBITEBUBBREE
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS B ([E8MBHREER]) &)
("HKFRS(s)") (continued)

HKFRS 9 “Financial Instruments” (continued) EHEEFEER Fog [ o T H|(Z)
. With regard to the measurement of financial liabilities M EEETEATLEBENERYEZS
designated as at fair value through profit or loss, HKFRS BmEEMS  BESEFEREENSE
9 requires that the amount of change in the fair value 9SRFETE - B IEMN ,\WEEJ&]\E}:E@J
of the financial liability that is attributable to changes BEZIEERRNIE H\ R ES i = Fy
in the credit risk of that liability is presented in other qﬂgiﬁ/;}}%j( =FiEfRd - RAIRBREZ
comprehensive income, unless the recognition of the ZER &k‘zi‘ﬁﬁ%|ﬁﬁmﬂﬁ{§£\\z‘z{ﬁfﬁ
effects of changes in the liability’s credit risk in other %58 “@)75 REMEEIAFIER -
comprehensive income would create or enlarge an SRBEZEZERRES B A BES
accounting mismatch in profit or loss. Changes in fair @H{éﬂ_ﬁﬁ/\%gﬁﬁﬁp FEHHE - BESR
value of financial liabilities attributable to changes in B ER|E305 - IEEIHEAFEEBERN
the financial liabilities” credit risk are not subsequently BRIEZESHBEZ AT EBEE
reclassified to profit or loss. Under HKAS 39, the entire ThEENREBEFR R o
amount of the change in the fair value of the financial
liability designated as fair value through profit or loss
was presented in profit or loss.
The new general hedge accounting requirements retain the T2 —RE R e s ABERIRE =B he
three types of hedge accounting. However, greater flexibility % o AR e EARMAS BB IEL het
has been introduced to the types of transactions eligible ZRETGEIABERNEEE  FRIEEREE
for hedge accounting, specifically broadening the types BRIEAY AT E 7 TEHIERIREEBIEL
of instruments that qualify for hedging instruments and the et ZIESRIBR 2RO I 2 a5 o 1t
types of risk components of non-financial items that are Gh o B RGBIS D EE R M A & ERE | JRE
eligible for hedge accounting. In addition, the effectiveness R - BHEEBEHE R - T2 5| A
test has been overhauled and replaced with the principle ERAERERMREBE I ZHEEZ R -
of an “economic relationship”. Retrospective assessment of
hedge effectiveness is also no longer required. Enhanced
disclosure requirements about an entity’s risk management
activities have also been introduced.
The directors of the Company anticipate that the adoption NANREETBEAFANET S B RE LR F9
of HKFRS 9 in the future may have an impact on the %ﬁEfﬁ}KH—yT“b‘%ﬂSE.Z(ﬁﬁﬂ‘iﬁéﬁﬁ#ﬁi
amounts reported in respect of the Group's financial assets. CETHEESETMZE - R BEEANEEZ
Regarding the Group's financial assets, it is not practicable SREEEATKIFMASITE  WEEES
to provide a reasonable estimate of that effect until a TE i H BT % HE B 7 s 2 o
detailed review has been completed.
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. TEEHEXK
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ITC CORPORATION LIMITED & # & # % AR I

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BB WK M

For the year ended 31st March, 2014 #Z - F—M#F= H=+—HI - FZF

3.

soff

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
on the historical cost basis except for certain properties
and financial instruments, which are measured at revalued
amounts or fair values, as explained in the accounting
policies set out below. Historical cost is generally based on
the fair value of the consideration given in exchange for
goods.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an
asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date,
regardless of whether that price is directly observable or
estimated using another valuation technique. In estimating
the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Group takes into
account the characteristic of the asset or liability if market
participants would take those characteristics into account
when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date.
Fair value for measurement and/or disclosure purposes
in the consolidated financial statements is determined on
such a basis, except for share-based payment transactions
that are within the scope of HKFRS 2 “Share-based
Payment®, leasing transactions that are within the scope
of HKAS 17 ‘“Leases”, and measurements that have some
similarities to fair value but are not fair value, such as net
realisable value in HKAS 2 ‘“Inventories” or value in use in
HKAS 36 “Impairment of Assets”.

In addition, for financial reporting purpose, fair value
measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based
on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value
measurements are observable and the significance of the
inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety, which
are described as follows:

. Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity
can access at the measurement date;

. Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices
included within Level 1, that are observable for the

asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

. Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or
liability.

The principal accounting policies are set out below.
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ITC CORPORATION LIMITED & # & # % AR

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BB WKW

For the year ended 31st March, 2014 #Z - F—M#F= H=+—Hi - FZ

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the
financial statements of the Company and entities controlled
by the Company (its subsidiaries). Control is achieved when
the Company:

. has power over the investee;

o is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee; and

. has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee
if facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes
to one or more of the three elements of control listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group
obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when the
Group loses control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income
and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of
during the year are included in the consolidated statement
of profit and loss and other comprehensive income from the
date the Group gains control until the date when the Group
ceases to control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the Company.
When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies
in line with the Group’s accounting policies. All infragroup
assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash
flows relating to transactions between members of the
Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

Changes in the Group’s ownership interest in an existing
subsidiary that do not result in the Group losing control over
the subsidiary are accounted for as equity transactions.
Any difference between the amount by which the non-
controlling interests are adjusted and the fair value of the
consideration paid or received is recognised directly in
equity and attributed to owners of the Company.
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3.

611

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Basis of consolidation (confinued)

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, a gain or
loss is recognised in profit or loss and is calculated as the
difference between (i) the aggregate of the fair value of the
consideration received and the fair value of any retained
interest and; (ii) the previous carrying amount of the assets
(including goodwill), and liabilities of the subsidiary. All
amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive
income in relation to that subsidiary are accounted for as
if the Group had directly disposed of the related assets or
liabilities of the subsidiary (i.e. reclassified to profit or loss
or fransferred to another category of equity as specified/
permitted by applicable HKFRSs). The fair value of any
investment retained in the former subsidiary at the date
when control is lost is regarded as the fair value on initial
recognition for subsequent accounting under HKAS 39,
when applicable, the cost on initial recognition of an
investment in an associate.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment, other than land and
buildings, are stated in the consolidated statement of
financial position at cost less subsequent accumulated
depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Land and buildings held for use in the production or supply
of goods or services, or for administrative purposes, are
stated in the consolidated statement of financial position at
their revalued amount, being the fair value at the date of
revaluation less any subsequent accumulated depreciation
and any subsequent accumulated impairment losses.
Revaluations are performed with sufficient regularity such
that the carrying amount does not differ materially from that
which would be determined using fair values at the end of
the reporting period.

Any revaluation increase arising on revaluation of land and
buildings is recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in property revaluation reserve, except to the
extent that it reverses a revaluation decrease of the same
asset previously recognised in profit or loss, in which case
the increase is credited to profit or loss to the extent of the
decrease previously charged. A decrease in net carrying
amount arising on revaluation of an asset is recognised
in profit or loss to the extent that it exceeds the balance,
if any, on the property revaluation reserve relating to a
previous revaluation of the same asset. On the subsequent
sale or retirement of a revalued asset, the attributable
revaluation surplus is transferred to accumulated profits.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31st March, 2014 #Z - F—M#F= H=+—Hi - FZ

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Property, plant and equipment (continued)
No depreciation is provided in respect of freehold land.

Depreciation is recognised so as fo write off the cost or
fair value of items of property, plant and equipment over
their estimated useful lives, using the straight-line method.
The estimated useful lives and depreciation method are
reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with the
effect of any changes in estimate accounted for on a
prospective basis.

If an item of property, plant and equipment becomes
an investment property because its use has changed as
evidenced by end of owner-occupation, any difference
between the carrying amount and the fair value of that item
at the date of fransfer is recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in property revaluation reserve.
On the subsequent sale or retirement of the asset, the
relevant revaluation reserve will be transferred directly to
accumulated profits.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any
gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an item
of property, plant and equipment is determined as the
difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset and is recognised in profit or loss.

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms
of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as
operating leases.

The Group as lessor

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in profit
or loss on a straight-line basis over the terms of the relevant
lease.

The Group as lessee

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense
on a straight-line basis over the lease term.
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3.

63?

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Leasing (confinued)
Leasehold land and building

When a lease includes both land and building elements,
the Group assesses the classification of each element as
a finance or an operating lease separately based on the
assessment as to whether substantially all the risks and
rewards incidental to ownership of each element have
been transferred to the Group, unless it is clear that both
elements are operating leases in which case the entire
lease is classified as an operating lease. Specifically,
the minimum lease payments (including any lump-sum
upfront payments) are allocated between the land and the
building elements in proportion to the relative fair values
of the leasehold interests in the land element and building
element of the lease at the inception of the lease.

To the extent the allocation of the lease payments
can be made reliably, interest in leasehold land that is
accounted for as an operating lease is presented as
“prepaid lease payments” in the consolidated statement of
financial position and is released over the lease term on a
straight-line basis except for those that are classified and
accounted for as investment properties under the fair value
model. When the lease payments cannot be allocated
reliably between the land and building elements, the
entire lease is generally classified as a finance lease and
accounted for as property, plant and equipment.

Investment properties

Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals
and/or for capital appreciation.

Investment properties are initially measured at cost,
including any directly atftributable expenditure. Subsequent
to initial recognition, investment properties are measured
at their fair values. Gains or losses arising from changes in
the fair value of investment property are included in profit or
loss for the period in which they arise.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or
when the investment property is permanently withdrawn
from use and no future economic benefits are expected
from its disposals. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition
of the property (calculated as the difference between the
net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the
asset) is included in profit or loss in the period in which the
item is derecognised.
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For the year ended 31st March, 2014 #Z - F—M#F= H=+—Hi - FZ

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Investments in associates

An associate is an entity over which the Group has
significant influence. Significant influence is the power to
participate in the financial and operating policy decisions
of the investee but is not control or joint control over those
policies.

The results and assets and liabilities of associates are
incorporated in these consolidated financial statements
using the equity method of accounting. The associate uses
accounting policies that differ from those of the Group
for like transactions and events in similar circumstances.
Appropriate adjustments have been made to conform
the associate’s accounting policies to those of the Group.
Under the equity method, an investment in an associate
is initially recognised in the consolidated statement of
financial position at cost and adjusted thereafter to
recognise the Group’s share of the profit or loss and other
comprehensive income of the associate. When the Group’s
share of losses of an associate exceeds the Group’s interest
in that associate (which includes any long-term interests
that, in substance, form part of the Group’s net investment
in the associate), the Group discontinues recognising its
share of further losses. Additional losses are recognised
only to the extent that the Group has incurred legal or
constructive obligations or made payments on behalf of the
associate.

An investment in an associafte is accounted for using
the equity method from the date on which the investee
becomes an associate. On acquisition of the investment in
an associate, any excess of the cost of the investment over
the Group’s share of the net fair value of the identifiable
assets and liabilities of the investee is recognised as
goodwill, which is included within the carrying amount of
the investment.

Any excess of the Group’s share of the net fair value of
the identifiable assets and liabilities over the cost of the
investment, after reassessment, is recognised immediately
in profit or loss in the period in which the investment is
acquired.
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3.

65/

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
Investments in associates (continued)

The requirements of HKAS 39 are applied to determine
whether it is necessary to recognise any impairment loss
with respect to the Group’s investment in an associate.
When necessary, the entire carrying amount of the
investment (including goodwill) is tested for impairment in
accordance with HKAS 36 “Impairment of Assets” as a single
asset by comparing its recoverable amount (higher of value
in use and fair value less costs of disposal) with its carrying
amount. Any impairment loss recognised forms part of the
carrying amount of the investment. Any reversal of that
impairment loss is recognised in accordance with HKAS 36
to the extent that the recoverable amount of the investment
subsequently increases.

The Group discontinues the use of the equity method from
the date when the investment ceases to be an associate,
or when the investment (or a portion thereof) is classified
as held for sale. When the Group retains an interest in the
former associate and the retained interest is a financial
asset, the Group measures the retained interest at fair value
at that date and the fair value is regarded as its fair value
on initial recognition in accordance with HKAS 39. The
difference between the carrying amount of the associate
at the date the equity method was discontinued, and
the fair value of any retained interest and any proceeds
from disposing of a part interest in the associate or joint
venture is included in the determination of the gain or
loss on disposal of the associafte. In addition, the Group
accounts for all amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income in relation to that associate on
the same basis as would be required if that associate
had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities.
Therefore, if a gain or loss previously recognised in other
comprehensive income by that associate would be
reclassified to profit or loss on the disposal of the related
assets or liabilities, the Group reclassifies the gain or
loss from equity to profit or loss (as a reclassification
adjustment) when the equity method is discontinued.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Investments in associates (continued)

The Group continues to use the equity method when an
investment in an associate becomes an investment in a
joint venture. There is no remeasurement to fair value upon
such changes in ownership interests.

When a group entity transacts with an associate of the
Group (such as a sale or contribution of assets), profits and
losses resulting from the transactions with the associate
are recognised in the Group’s consolidated financial
statements only to the extent of interests in the associate
that are not related to the Group.

Acquisition or deemed acquisition of additional interests
in associates

On acquisition or deemed acquisition of additional interests
in associates, any excess of the cost of acquisition over the
Group’s share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets
and liabilities of that associate attributable fo the additional
interests obtained is recognised as goodwill, which is
included within the carrying amount of the investment.
Any excess of the Group’s share of the net fair value of
the identifiable assets and liabilities aftributable to the
additional interests obtained over the cost of acquisition,
after reassessment, is recognised immediately in profit or
loss.

Disposal or deemed disposal of partial interests in
associates

On disposal or deemed disposal of partial interests
in associates without losing significant influence, the
difference between the carrying values of the underlying
assets and liabilities attributable to the interests disposed
of, or deemed to be disposed of and the consideration
received, if any, is credited or charged to the profit or
loss as gain/loss on disposal or deemed disposal of
interests in associates. In addition, the Group reclassifies
to profit or loss in relation to the partial interests disposed
of a proportionate amount of the gain or loss previously
recognised in other comprehensive income if that gain or
loss would be reclassified to profit or loss on the disposal of
the related assets or liabilities.
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671

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately and with finite useful
lives are carried at costs less accumulated amortisation
and any accumulated impairment losses. Amortisation
for intangible assets with finite useful lives is provided on
a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives. The
estimated useful life and amortisation method are reviewed
at the end of each reporting period, with the effective
of any changes in estimate being accounted for on a
prospective basis. Intangible assets with indefinite useful
lives that are acquired separately are carried at cost less
any subsequent accumulated impairment losses (see
the accounting policy in respect of impairment losses on
tangible and intfangible assets below).

An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal, or when no
future economic benefits are expected from use or disposal.
Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible
asset are measured at the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset
and are recognised in profit or loss in the period when the
asset is derecognised.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in
the consolidated statement of financial position when a
group entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions
of the instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially
measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly
atftributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets
and financial liabilities (other than financial assets and
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are
added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial
assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial
recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the
acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair
value through profit or loss are recognised immediately in
profit or loss.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets

The Group’s financial assets are classified into financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss ("FVTPL") and loans
and receivables. The classification depends on the nature
and purpose of the financial assets and is determined at
the time of initial recognition. All regular way purchases or
sales of financial assets are recognised and derecognised
on a trade date basis. Regular way purchases or sales are
purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery
of assets within the time frame established by regulation or
convention in the marketplace.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial asset and of allocating
interest income over the relevant period. The effective
interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash receipts (including all fees and points paid or
received that form an integral part of the effective interest
rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of the financial asset, or, where
appropriate, a shorter period to the net carrying amount on
initial recognition.

Interest income is recognised on an effective interest basis
for debt instruments other than those financial assefs
classified as at FVTPL, of which interest income is included in
net gains or losses.

Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets at FVTPL have two subcategories, including
financial assets held for trading and those designated as at
FVTPL on initial recognition.

A financial asset is classified as held for trading if:

. it has been acquired principally for the purpose of
selling in the near future; or

. it is a part of an identified portfolio of financial
instruments that the Group manages together and has
a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-taking; or

o it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as
a hedging instrument.
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3.

69?

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)

Financial assets at FVTPL (contfinued)

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value,
with changes in fair value arising from remeasurement
recognised directly in profit or loss in the period in which
they arise. The net gain or loss recognised in profit or loss
includes inferest but excludes dividend earned on the
financial assets.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted
in an active market. Subsequent to initial recognition,
loans and receivables (including note receivable from an
associate, debtors, amounts due from associates, loans
receivable, debt portion of convertible notes, cash held
by securities brokers, short-term bank deposits and bank
balances and cash) are carried at amortised cost using
the effective interest method, less any identified impairment
losses (see accounting policy on impairment loss on
financial assets below).

Convertible notes held by the Group are separately
presented as a debt portion and conversion option
embedded in convertible notes. On initial recognition,
the debt portion represents the residual between the fair
value of the convertible notes and the fair value of the
embedded conversion option. The debt portion is classified
as loans and receivables and is subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method.

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets, other than those at FVTPL, are assessed for
indicators of impairment at the end of the reporting period.
Financial assets are considered to be impaired where there
is objective evidence that, as a result of one or more events
that occurred after the initial recognition of the financial
asset, the estimated future cash flows of the financial assets
have been affected.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)
Impairment of financial assets (continued)

For loans and receivables, objective evidence of
impairment could include:

. significant financial difficulty of the issuer or
counterparty; or

. breach of contract, such as default or delinquency in
interest or principal payments; or

o it becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or financial re-organisation.

For certain categories of financial assets, such as trade
debtors, assets that are assessed not to be impaired
individually are, in addition, assessed for impairment
on a collective basis. Objective evidence of impairment
for a portfolio of receivables could include the Group’s
past experience of collecting payments, an increase in
the number of delayed payments in the portfolio past
the credit period and observable changes in national or
local economic conditions that correlate with default on
receivables.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount
of the impairment loss recognised is the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of the
estimated future cash flows discounted at the financial
asset’s original effective interest rate.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by
the impairment loss directly for all financial assets with
the exception of trade debtors, note receivable from
an associate, amounts due from associates and loans
receivable, where the carrying amount is reduced through
the use of an allowance account. Changes in the carrying
amount of the allowance account are recognised in
profit or loss. When a balance aforesaid is considered
uncollectible, it is written off against the allowance account.
Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off are
credited to profit or loss.
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3.

71?

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)
Impairment of financial assets (continued)

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in
a subsequent period, the amount of impairment loss
decreases and the decrease can be related objectively
to an event occurring after the impairment losses was
recognised, the previously recognised impairment loss is
reversed through profit or loss to the extent that the carrying
amount of the asset at the date the impairment is reversed
does not exceed what the amortised cost would have been
had the impairment not been recognised.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by a
group entity are classified as either financial liabilities or as
equity instruments in accordance with the substance of the
contractual arrangements and the definitions of a financial
liability and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instfrument is any confract that evidences a
residual interest in the assets of the Group after deducting
all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Company
are recognised atf the proceeds received, net of direct issue
costs.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating
intferest expense over the relevant period. The effective
interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash payments (including all fees and points paid or
received that form an integral part of the effective interest
rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of the financial liability, or, where
appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying amount
on initial recognition.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest basis.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)
Financial liabilities and equity instruments (confinued)
Convertible notes payable

Convertible notes payable issued by the Company
that contain both the liability and conversion option
components are classified separately into respective items
on initial recognition in accordance with the substance
of the contractual arrangements and the definitions of
a financial liability and an equity instrument. Conversion
option that will be settled by the exchange of a fixed
amount of cash or another financial asset for a fixed
number of the Company’s own equity instruments is
classified as an equity instrument.

On initial recognition, the fair value of the liability
component is determined using the prevailing market
interest rate of similar non-convertible debts. The difference
between the gross proceeds of the issue of the convertible
notes payable and the fair value assigned to the liability
component, representing the conversion option for the
holder to convert the notes into equity, is included in equity
(convertible notes reserve).

In subsequent periods, the liability component of the
convertible notes payable is carried at amortised cost
using the effective interest method. The equity component,
representing the option to convert the liability component
info ordinary shares of the Company, will remain in
convertible notes reserve until the embedded option is
exercised (in which case the balance stated in convertible
notes reserve will be transferred to share premium). Where
the option remains unexercised at the expiry date, the
balance stated in convertible notes reserve will be released
to accumulated profits. No gain or loss is recognised in
profit or loss upon conversion or expiration of the option.

Transaction costs that relate to the issue of the convertible
notes payable are allocated to the liability and equity
components in proportion to the allocation of the
gross proceeds. Transaction costs relating to the equity
component are charged directly to equity. Transaction
costs relating to the liability component are included in
the carrying amount of the liability porfion and amortised
over the period of the convertible notes payable using the
effective interest method.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)
Financial liabilities and equity instruments (confinued)
Other financial liabilities

Other financial liabilities (including creditors, margin
account payable and bank overdrafts) are subsequently
measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest
method.

Derivative financial instruments

Derivatives that do not qualify for hedge accounting
are deemed as financial assets held for trading. Such
derivatives are initially recognised at fair value at the date
a derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently
remeasured to their fair value at the end of the reporting
period. The resulting gain or loss is recognised in profit or
loss immediately.

Embedded derivatives

Derivatives embedded in non-derivative host contfracts are
separated from the relevant host contracts and deemed
as held for tfrading when they meet the definition of a
derivative, their characteristics and risks are not closely
related to those of the host contracts and the host contfracts
are not measured at fair value with changes in fair value
recognised in profit or loss.

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire,
or when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all
the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another
entity.

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the
difference between the asset's carrying amount and the
sum of the consideration received and receivable and
the cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity is
recognised in profit or loss.

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when and only
when, the Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or
expire. The difference between the carrying amount of the
financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid
and payable is recognised in profit or loss.
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For the year ended 31st March, 2014 #Z - F—M#F= H=+—Hi - FZ

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Inventories

Inventories represent finished goods which are stated at the
lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost is calculated
using the first-in, first-out method. Net realisable value
represents the estimated selling price for inventories less all
estimated costs of completion and costs necessary to make
the sale.

Impairment losses on tangible and intangible assets

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its fangible and intangible assets
with finite useful lives to determine whether there is any
indication that those assets have suffered an impairment
loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of
the asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of the
impairment loss, if any. When it is not possible to estimate
the recoverable amount of an individual asset, the Group
estimates the recoverable amount of the CGU to which the
asset belongs. Where a reasonable and consistent basis
of allocation can be identified, corporate assets are also
allocated to individual CGU, or otherwise they are allocated
to the smallest group of CGU for which a reasonable and
consistent allocation basis can be identified.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are tested for
impairment at least annually, and whenever there is an
indication that they may be impaired.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs
to sell and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset for which the estimates of future cash
flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset is estimated to be
less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the
asset (or a CGU) is reduced to its recoverable amount. An
impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss,
unless the relevant asset is carried at a revalued amount
under another standard, in which case the impairment loss
is freated as a revaluation decrease under that standard.
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3.

75?

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Impairment losses on tangible and intangible assets
(continued)

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset (or CGU) is increased fo
the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so
that the increased carrying amount does not exceed the
carrying amount that would have been determined had no
impairment loss been recognised for the asset (or a CGU)
in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised
as income immediately, unless the relevant asset is carried
at a revalued amount under another standard, in which
case the reversal of the impairment loss is treated as a
revaluation increase under that standard.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable and represents amounts receivable
for services provided in the normal course of business, net
of discounts and sales related taxes.

Service income is recognised when services are rendered.

Dividend income from investments is recognised when the
Group'’s right to receive payment has been established
(provided that it is probable that the economic benefits
will flow to the Group and the amount of revenue can be
measured reliably).

Interest income from a financial asset is recognised when
it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the
Group and the amount of income can be measured
reliably. Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by
reference to the principal outstanding and at the effective
interest rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly
discounts the estimated future cash receipts through
the expected life of the financial asset to that asset’s net
carrying amount on initial recognition.

Rental income under operating leases is recognised on a
straight-line basis over the terms of the relevant lease.
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For the year ended 31st March, 2014 é]é_—t_ =

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual
group entity, transactions in currencies other than the
functional currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are
recorded in the respective functional currency (i.e. the
currency of the primary economic environment in which
the entity operates) at the rates of exchanges prevailing on
the dates of the transactions. At the end of the reporting
period, monetary items denominated in foreign currencies
are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that date. Non-
monetary items carried at fair value that are denominated
in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing
on the date when the fair value was determined. Non-
monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost
in a foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settflement of monetary
items, and on the retranslation of monetary items, are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they arise.
Exchange differences arising on the refranslation of non-
monetary items carried at fair value are included in profit
or loss for the period except for exchange differences
arising on the refranslation of non-monetary items in
respect of which gains and losses are recognised directly
in other comprehensive income, in which cases, the
exchange differences are also recognised directly in other
comprehensive income.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s foreign
operations are translated into the presentation currency
of the Group (i.e. HKD) using exchange rates prevailing
at the end of the reporting period. Income and expenses
items are translated at the average exchange rates for the
year, unless exchange rates fluctuate significantly during
the year, in which case, the exchange rates prevailing at
the dates of transactions are used. Exchange differences
arising, if any, are recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in equity under the heading of
the translation reserve.

On the disposal of a foreign operation (i.e. a disposal of the
Group’s entire interest in a foreign operation, or a disposal
involving loss of control over a subsidiary that includes a
foreign operation, or a disposal involving loss of significant
influence over an associate that includes a foreign
operation), all of the exchange differences accumulated
in equity in respect of that operation attributable to the
owners of the Company are reclassified to profit or loss.

ANNUAL REPORT 2014 4 [ 3 &

—HmFE=A=+—HIFZ

3l

2R (&)

5

REEEETENERZMBERRE - A%
ERZMEEEUINEE ONE)ETZXR
5 BIXZAPZBITERFTESEINGEE
BAZEBLLEEBAETERBEREL
BE)AR - RBREHAKR - RINEIIEZE
KIEERZAZBITEREHRHRE - BAF
EEAKRZAINEIIEZIFEEIAR  &E
EERAFEESAZBTERSNRE - 1
BESEKAGTEZAINESEIFEEIRE AT
BEXBE -

%ﬁfﬁglﬁﬁ SELICHEE PR FﬁFEER#
% RZEEZEELHR 2B #ER -
ﬁ%ﬁ%*?ﬁ@ﬂ?ﬁfﬁﬁﬁﬁzaEi‘fﬁﬁlﬁaFﬁ%i
EXEEAARANER  EENREREE
ERERERZIEEBEMELZRR
Sh - RUEBERT EXEREEERNEMEE
WA HERR o

IEEMBRRZEINAMNE - AEEE
SR EERBBRRBERNRBITZE
FBRERAEE 258 (BET) < WA
EAXBRRZFREZFOEXRE - RIF
RAFRE 2 EXGHBKE  EHERT

REMRXZE R ZBITEEX - EEZER%

B(E) REMEEKARER - WREST
UE R ERmBERA -
EAm BINER (BIHERKEERFINER

EEERE S RREHBEBINEBH —
F'?MTJ%/ATZT HlEZHE  HKREHEE
BINEBN—RBERRZEARE N2
’i)ﬁ% RAREIER ARBEZEF MR IE

SRR AR ZREN D EERS

t76



ITC CORPORATION LIMITED & # & # % AR I

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BB WK M

For the year ended 31st March, 2014 #Z - F—M#F= H=+—HI - FZF

3.

77?

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Foreign currencies (continued)

In addition, in relation to a partial disposal of a subsidiary
that does not result in the Group losing control over
the subsidiary, the proportionate share of accumulated
exchange differences are re-attributed to non-conftrolling
interests and are not recognised in profit or loss. For all
other partial disposals (i.e. partial disposals of associates
that do not result in the Group losing significant influence),
the proportionate share of the accumulated exchange
differences is reclassified to profit or loss.

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the
year. Taxable profit differs from profit before taxation as
reported in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income because it excludes items of
income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other
years and if further excludes items that are never taxable or
deductible. The Group’s liability for current tax is calculated
using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the
consolidated financial statements and the corresponding
tax base used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred
tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable
temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are generally
recognised for all deductible temporary differences to
the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be
available against which those deductible temporary
differences can be utfilised. Such assets and liabilities are
not recognised if the temporary difference arises from
goodwill or from the initial recognition (other than in a
business combination) of other assets and liabilities in a
tfransaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the
accounting profit.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Taxation (continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries and
associates, except where the Group is able to control the
reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable that
the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable
future. Deferred ftax assets arising from deductible
temporary differences associated with such investments are
only recognised to the extent that it is probable that there
will be sufficient taxable profits against which to utilise the
benefits of the temporary differences and they are expected
to reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed
at the end of each reporting period and reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable
profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be
recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply in the period in which the
liability is seftled or the asset is realised, based on tax rate
(and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets
reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the
manner in which the Group expects, at the end of the
reporting period, to recover or seftle the carrying amount of
its assets and liabilities.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax liabilities or
deferred tax assets for investment properties that are
measured using the fair value model, the carrying amounts
of such properties are presumed to be recovered entirely
through sale, unless the presumption is rebutted. The
presumption is rebutted when the investment property is
depreciable and is held within a business model whose
objective is to consume substantially all of the economic
benefits embodied in the investment property over time,
rather than through sale. If the presumption is rebutted,
deferred tax liabilities and deferred tax assets for such
investment properties are measured in accordance with
the above general principles set out in HKAS 12 (i.e. based
on the expected manner as to how the properties will be
recovered).

Current and deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss,
except when it relates to items that are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case,
the current and deferred tax are also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively.
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3.

791

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Retirement benefit costs

Payments to defined conftribution retirement benefit plans/
the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme are recognised
as an expense when employees have rendered service
entitling them to the contributions.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time
to get ready for their intended use or sale, are added
to the cost of those assets unfil such time as the assets
are substantially ready for their infended use or sale.
Investment income earned on the temporary investment of
specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying
assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for
capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in
the period in which they are incurred.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGMENTS

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which
are described in note 3, the directors of the Company are
required to make judgments, estimates and assumptions
about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are
not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and
associated assumptions are based on historical experience
and other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual
results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on
an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised
if the revision affects only that period, or in the period of
the revision and future periods if the revision affects both
current and future periods.

The following are the key assumptions concerning the
future, and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at
the end of the reporting period, that have a significant risk
of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities within the next financial year.
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4.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGMENTS (continued)

Interests in associates

The Group’s interests in associates are carried at share
of net assets of associates together with goodwill which
arose on their acquisition. As at 31st March, 2014, the
carrying value of the Group'’s inferests in certain listed
associates in Hong Kong exceeded the market value of the
Group’s holding therein by an amount of approximately
HK$1,974 million (2013: HKS$1,967 million). Management has
assessed the recoverable amounts of the Group's interest in
associates. This assessment involves significant assumptions
about fair value of underlying assets and liabilities of the
associates and market conditions that the amount can
be realised may be different as projected if and when the
Group is to dispose this interest.

For acquisition of additional interests in associates, any
excess of the Group’s share of the net fair value of the
identified assets and liabilities attributable to the additional
interests obtained over the cost of acquisition is calculated
using fair value information of the net identifiable assets
and liabilities at the dates the additional interests are
acquired, and are recognised, after assessment, in profit
or loss. The fair value informatfion of the net identifiable
assets and liabilities involves significant assumptions about
fair value of the underlying assets and liabilities of the
associates as set out above.

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

Revenue represents the amounts received and receivable
from outside customers for the year. An analysis of the
Group’s revenue for the year is as follows:
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2014 2013
—E-0F —E-=fF
HK$'000 HKS 000
FET FHET

Management and other related BEEREMEBRH
service income i e N 4,217 3,828
Interest income from investments FEMBWA 1,527 12,567
Property rental income wEHRS WA 1,063 1,089
Others HAth 314 314
7,121 17,798
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For the year ended 31st March, 2014 #Z - F—M#F= H=+—HI - FZF
5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 5. IWARDEER &)

(continued)
Segment information PHER
The Group’s operating segments, based on information AREFBZRKENE  BEERTFEIEEER
reported to the chief operating decision maker, being the RALT(BIARRIZHITES) 2E R E
Executive Directors of the Company, for the purposes of BREIMERBAIHZAZWOT :
resource allocation and performance assessment are as
follows:
Finance - loan financing services [ - BEXRERY
Long-term investment - investment in investments EHIKE - KERKEBEBED
such as convertible notes & NA T2
issued by the associates AR EE
Other investment - investment in available-for-sale HEWEE - BERIHEE
investments and trading of WENKE S
securities BEE
Others - leasing of investment property, H At - KREWERE  HHE
leasing of motor vehicles and HEREIR
management services i%i
Information regarding the above operating segments, B LEMEEDWZER  ERAKREETA]
which are also reportable segments of the Group, is SRz HE 2RO

reported below.
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For the year ended 31st March, 2014 #Z - F—M#F= H=+—Hi - FZ

5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 5. KARDHBER (&)
(continued)
Segment information (continued) SEER (&)
The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and LNTAEKREB ZIMAREEIRKEE LT 2R
results by operating and reportable segment: SIREN D 2 DT
For the year ended 31st March, 2014 BE-_ZE—NWE=A=+—RHALEE
Long-term Segment
Finance investment Others total  Eliminations Consolidated
BE RERE Het yiRar e b &E
HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$' 000 HK$ 000
FEn FAET FET FEn FE% FEx
SEGMENT REVENUE FHURA
External sales HOMAE 760 701 5,660 7.121 - 7121
Infer-segment sales PHEEE 3,717 - - 3717 (3.717) -
Total st 4,477 701 5,660 10,838 3.7117) 1121
RESULT
Segment result PHEE 2,424 582 1,639 4,645 - 4,645
Central administration costs RRITBA A (45,836)
Finance cosfs FBRA (7.280)
Net loss on net decrease in interest ~ —fRIES & 1\ Al F D
in an associate LB (153,204)
Share of results of associates EEHEDRRE
- share of resulfs —Bh%E 411,089
- gain on acaquisitions of —WE-HEE R R
additional inferests in BIMER L
an associate g 26,427
Profit before taxation and BHR-FEBEAR
impairment loss on interest En 2 REBEH
in an associate bkl 235,841
Impairment loss on inferest L NG
in an associate REER (126,131)
Profit before taxation BRART 109,710

ANNUAL REPORT 2014 4 [ 3 &

tis2



ITC CORPORATION LIMITED & # & # % AR I

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MWK WA

For the year ended 31st March, 2014 #Z - F—M#F= H=+—HI - FZF

5.

831'

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

(continued)

5. KARDHESR (&)

Segment information (continued) SEER (&)
For the year ended 31st March, 2013 HE—_ T =F=A=+—HILFE
Long-ferm Segment
Finance investment Others total  Eliminations  Consolidated
#HE RHRE Hith 7 EBE i ga
HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS'000
FATL FET FET T FAT FET
SEGMENT REVENUE AHEA
External sales HHNHE 5,386 7,155 5,257 17,798 - 17,798
Infer-segment sales DEEHE 1,794 - - 1794 (1.794) -
Total @it 7,180 7,155 5,257 19,592 (1,794) 17,798
RESULT 4|
Segment result PEEE 7,088 16,645 87 23,820 - 23,820
Central administration costs RRITHRA (49,553)
Finance costs HBHA (14,382)
Net loss on net decrease e R AERTR D
in inferests in associates LEERE (35.330)
Share of results of associates 4 YNG4
- share of resulfs = L 257,178
- gain on acquisitions 1N
of addifional inferests EIMER 2
in associates Wa 32,403
Profit before faxation B A& 214,136

Inter-segment sales are charged at prevailing market rate or
at terms determined and agreed by both parties.

Segment result represents the result of each segment
without allocation of central administration costs, including
directors’ salaries, finance costs and items related to
interests in associates. During the year ended 31st March,
2013 and 2014, there was no activity in other investment
segment.

DESESHE DIRBT T ESIZE T RTE KE
B2 ARFUER ©

DEEBREE DM EE  EAD BB RTT
BRAKN(BREESFHFH) ﬁﬁ‘%)ﬁﬂ‘&ﬁﬁiﬁ

BERNREZABIAR - REE =
FR-F-—MFE=A=1— E!Jti& it
BREDRLEEXB RS -
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ITC CORPORATION LIMITED & # & # % AR

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B Ww R MG

For the year ended 31st March, 2014 é?é_t_7 —E=H="1—HIFZF
5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

(continued)

Segment assets and liabilities

As at 31st March, 2014

5. KARDHBER (&)

ITHMEEREE

R=2-mE=A=+-8

Long-term Other Segment
Finance  investment  investment Others total  Unallocated Total
HE RERE  HttRE Bt S¥aH KR 54
HKs'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKs'000 HKs'000 HK$ 000
Tin TEr FEr TEn TEn - TEn
SEGMENT ASSETS IHEE
Segment assets PHEE - - 14 22,060 22,074 - 22,074
Inferests in associates H“ %1 NGl - - - - - 3,045256 3,045,256
Unallocated corporate assets RARZLEEE - - - - - 48,305 48,305
Total assefs BEE - - 14 22,060 22,074 3,093,561 3,115,635
As at 31st March, 2013 RZE—=F=A=+—H
Long-ferm Other Segment
Finance investment  investment Others fotal  Unallocated Total
BE  RHBE  HMRE it AHAEH AR e

HK$ 000 HKS 000

HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000

AT TAT FHT FAT AT AT AT
SEGMENT ASSETS PHEE
Segment assets PHEE 80,479 73,042 16 23,036 176,573 - 176,573
Interests in associates 5% EA R - - - - - 2785380 2785380
Unallocated corporate assefs ANECRFEE - - - - - 51,779 51,779
Total assefs BEE 80479 73,042 16 23,036 176,573 2,837,159 3,013,732

For the purposes of monitoring segment performance and
allocating resources among segments:

0 all assets are allocated to operating segment other
than interests in associates, intangible assets, short-
term bank deposits, bank balances and cash,
property, plant and equipment, debtors and
prepayments, and amounts due from associates.

no segment liabilities information is provided as no
such information is regularly provided to the chief
operating decision maker of the Company on making
decision for resources allocation and performance
assessment.

Interest income was allocated to segments. However the
related short-term bank deposits and bank balances are
not reported to the Group’s chief operating decision maker
as part of segment assets. This is the measure reported
to the Group’s chief operating decision maker for the
purposes of resource allocation and assessment of segment
performance.
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ITC CORPORATION LIMITED & # & # % AR I

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BB WKW

For the year ended 31st March, 2014 #Z - F—M#F= H=+—HI - FZF

5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

(continued)

Other information

For the year ended 31st March, 2014

5. KARDHESR (&)

BE-Z-—NE=A=+t—HLEE

Long-term Other
Finance investment investment Others Total
BE RERE Hitz & Hitr @t
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000 HK$’' 000
FEx FEx FE7 FET FET
Amounts included in STENHEER
the measure of BECHE
segment result:
Inferest income FEWA 760 701 - 66 1,527
Gain on change in fair REMEATEE
value of investment BHELr
property Wegx - - - 975 975
For the year ended 31st March, 2013 BE_Z—=6=-A=1+—HLEE
Long-term Other
Finance investment investment Others Total
BE RERE Hinik & g @&
HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
FET FET FAET FET FET
Amounts included in STENHEER
the measure of BIECHE
segment result:
Interest income MBBA 5,386 7,155 - 2 12,567
Gain on: Yoz
- conversion options -BREE
embedded in M 75 2
convertible nofes X - 9,702 - - 9,702
- change in fair value -RENE
of investment ALEE
property 23 - - - 66 66

gsif
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ITC CORPORATION LIMITED Z # &
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B Ww R MG

For the year ended 31st March, 2014 é]é_-t_ T—FE=H="1—HIFZF

5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 5.

(continued)

Geographical information

The Group’s operations are located in Hong Kong and
Canada.

Information about the Group’s revenue from external
customers or counterparties is presented based on the
locations of transactions conducted. Information about
the Group’s non-current assets (other than interests in
associates) is presented based on the geographical
locations of the assets. Information about the Group’s
interests in associates is presented based on the places of
listing of the associates.

WARDEBER (&)

it E & R

AEEZEBURBERMERK -

AEEREHINEFEARFHF ZWRAETR

TRETR 2B EE D

AEBEIFER

HEE (BERARERRIN ERTDREE
WEMES D  AREABBERRELE L

BRI RSN E) LT R85

o

Carrying amount

Revenue of non-current assets
LON FRBEEREE
2014 2013 2014 2013
—E-MF —F—= —E-MF —F—=
HK$°000 HK$ 000 HK$°000 HK$ 000
FET FET F#ET FET
Hong Kong B 1,828 12,874 3,043,055 2,786,226
Canada mnEx 5,293 4,924 29,642 30,582
7.121 17,798 3,072,697 2,816,808

Non-current assefs excluded debt portion of convertible
notes and conversion options embedded in convertible
notes.

Information about major customers

There was no single customer who accounted for over
10% of the Group’s total revenue for the year ended 31st
March, 2014. During the year ended 31st March, 2013, the
Group recognised interest income from the convertible
notfes issued by an associate which contributed over 10% of
the total revenue of the Group amounted to HK$7,155,000.
The interest income is included in the long-term investment
segment.

Major revenue by services and investments

The Group’s major revenue by services and investments was
disclosed in the segment revenue above.
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ITC CORPORATION LIMITED & # & # % AR I

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BB WK M

For the year ended 31st March, 2014 #Z - F—M#F= H=+—HI - FZF

6.

g7/

DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S AND
EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS

The emoluments paid or payable to each of the directors

6. EE -FETHRAEREEME

ENHENTEEEREIETRABZME

and the chief executive were as follows: N
(a) Directors’ emoluments (o) EEM S
Retirement
Salaries benefit
and other scheme  Discretionary

Fees benefits  contributions bonus Total

FMR RAKER
ne HiER AR WA “wme
HKS’ 000 HK$’ 000 HKS$’ 000 HKS$’ 000 HKS$’ 000
FET FAT FET FET FET

2014 “Z-mEF

Chan Kwok Keung, Charles (e 10 3,840 384 10,000 14,234
Chau Mei Wah, Rosanna AxE 10 3,840 384 4,000 8,234
Chan Kwok Chuen, Augustine  FREI# 10 2,040 102 1,200 3,352
Chan Fut Yan BRHE 10 600 60 - 670
Chan Yiu Lun, Alan [ 10 1,560 15 3,000 4,585
Chuck, Winston Calptor 2EE 200 - - - 200
Lee Kit Wah FHE 200 - - - 200
Shek Lai Him, Abraham AigH® 200 - - - 200
Total @it 650 11,880 945 18,200 31,675
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ITC CORPORATION LIMITED & # & # % AR

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BB WKW

For the year ended 31st March, 2014 #Z - F—M#F= H=+—Hi - FZ
6. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S AND 6. EE - FETHAEBREEM S

EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS (continued) (%)
(a) Directors’” emoluments (continued) (o) EEM 2 (&)
Retirement
Salaries benefit
and other scheme  Discretionary
Fees benefits  contributions bonus Total
MR RINER
we Hit w7 at B BiERA BHe
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000 HKS$’ 000 HKS$’ 000 HK$ 000
FET FET FHET FET FET
2013 —2-=%
Chan Kwok Keung, Charles PR Bl 5 10 3,600 360 4,000 7.970
Chau Mei Wah, Rosanna X 10 3,600 360 3,000 6,970
Chan Kwok Chuen, Augustine BB 10 1,932 64 2,500 4,506
Chan Fut Yan B 10 600 60 - 670
Chan Yiu Lun, Alan RIRE 10 1,440 15 2,000 3,465
Chuck, Winston Calptor BE 200 - - - 200
Lee Kit Wah FHE 200 - - - 200
Shek Lai Him, Abraham hig# 200 - - - 200
Total @t 650 11,172 859 11,500 24,181
Ms. Chau Mei Wah, Rosanna is also the chief executive FAEELTTRAEANAT TETHRAL -
of the Company and her emoluments disclosed above IXWEZHEE BEENTETRA
include those for services rendered by her as the chief EEMIEHREZME -
executive.
(b) Employees’ emoluments (b) EE®MZE
Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments in REBRUSSHFAED MOy (==
the Group, four (2013: four) were directors and the —=F ) ARATESERETET
chief executive of the Company whose emoluments HAE HBEEi A LK) -
were included in note (a) above. The emoluments EH—%(—F—=F: —()ABZ
of the remaining one (2013: one) individual was as MawmT :
follows:
2014 2013
—E-mF —E-=F
HK$°000 HK$000
FET TET
Salaries and other benefits B K B Ath 12 A 2,033 1,636
Discretionary bonus B TEAT 750 384
Retirement benefit scheme RIRAEFET &
contributions HR 15 15
2,798 1,935
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ITC CORPORATION LIMITED & # & # % AR I

89,'

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e BB WK M

For the year ended 31st March, 2014 #Z - F—M#F= H=+—HI - FZF

EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS (continued)

(b) Employees’ emoluments (confinued)

The emoluments of the above individual were within
the band of HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000 (2013:

HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000).

During the year, no emoluments were paid by the
Group to the five highest paid individuals, including
directors, as an inducement to join or upon joining
the Group or as compensation for loss of office. In
addition, neither the chief executive nor any of the
directors has waived any emoluments during the year.

The discretionary bonus is based on the directors’ and
employees’ skills, knowledge and involvement in the
Group'’s affairs and determined by reference to the Group’s
performance, as well as remuneration benchmark in the
industry and the prevailing market conditions.

6. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S AND 6. EBE FETHAEREEMZ

(&)
(b) EEME (&)

Lt A B Z B £ N 2,500,001 T =
3,000,000/ 7T (—=&— =4 : 1,500,001
7 7T 2 2,000,0005 7T) 2 [ °

RER  AEEYERNAUSRSHASR
(BRER) XNEAMESERSREER
FERFMA (LERFMAR) 2B
FERBERERMZBEES - tho -
REALEETBTHABKREAESH
RAEFBE ©

BBIRATNENESE MER 2B - Bk
SDEAEEEB2RE  US2EAEE 2R
BURITAHFMELERERTRMEE

FINANCE COSTS 7. BMERK
2014 2013
—E—mF —E—=F
HK$°000 HKS 000
FET FET
Interest on: FERTATRIE. -
Bank borrowings wholly repayable ARAFAZIEEZ
within five years AT 2,012 401
Convertible notes payable wholly ARAFAZIEEZ
repayable within five years A R[S 2255 R 5 5O 3,405 13,981
Margin account payable ER{RE SR KIA 1,863 =
7,280 14,382
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ITC CORPORATION LIMITED & # & # % AR

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BB WKW

For the year ended 31st March, 2014 #Z - F—M#F= H=+—Hi - FZ

8. NET LOSS ON NET DECREASE IN INTERESTS 8.
IN ASSOCIATES

BMENTAREB IR 2EEFE

2014 2013
—E—mF —E—=F
HK$'000 HKS'000
FET FHET
The net loss comprises of the following: EEFREBEENATRIA
Loss on deemed disposals of partial BIELEBME N RO ERZ
interests in associates (Note (a)) &8 (Hit)) 66,787 35,330
Net loss on acquisitions and deemed g RAREL & — & 2 A
disposals of interest in an associate R AEAREE REEAIN
resulted on the conversion of A TRl FRF 8E3 AT AR R R
convertible notes by the Group and B 7 iR ERE
outside parties concurrently (Note (b)) (e ) 86,417 =
153,204 35,330
Notes: H1:z -

(a) Loss on deemed disposals of partial interests in associates:

Such loss for the year ended 31st March, 2014 was mainly
resulted from the deemed disposals of partial interest in
an associate which was resulted from the dilution effect of
exercise of share options and conversion of convertible notes
issued by the associate by parties other than the Group and
Ms. Ng Yuen Lan, Macy ("Ms. Ng“), spouse of Dr. Chan Kwok
Keung, Charles, the Chairman and an Executive Director of
the Company, and the issuance of scrip dividends by that
associate.

Such loss for the year ended 31st March, 2013 was mainly
resulted from the deemed disposal of partial interests in
associates which arose from the dilution effect of conversion
of convertible notes issued by an associate by parties other
than the Group and the distribution of scrip dividend by an
associate to its shareholders while the Group selected cash
dividend and exercise of share options by outside parties
during the year.
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ITC CORPORATION LIMITED & # & # % AR I

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BB WK M

For the year ended 31st March, 2014 #Z - F—M#F= H=+—HI - FZF

8. NET LOSS ON NET DECREASE IN INTERESTS
IN ASSOCIATES (continued)

o1

Notes: (continued)

(b) Net loss on acquisitions and deemed disposals of inferest in an
associate resulted on the conversion of convertible notes by
the Group and outside parties concurrently:

®

(i

On 11th April, 2013, the Group and Ms. Ng converted
ITCP Notes (as defined in note 17) with principal amounts
of approximately HK$54.4 million and HK$297 million,
respectively, into approximately 25.9 million and 141.3
million shares of ITC Properties Group Limited (*ITC
Properties”, an associate of the Group) at the conversion
price of HK$2.102 per share (the “April Conversion”). The
Group’s interest in ITC Properties decreased by 6.39%
from 37.37% to 30.98% as a result of the April Conversion
by both the Group and Ms. Ng concurrently. A net loss
of HK$112,511,000 was recognised in the profit or loss,
which was determined as the aggregate of the net
reduction in the share of net assets of ITC Properties and
its subsidiaries ("ITC Properties Group”) at the date of
the April Conversion and the carrying values of the debt
portion of the ITCP Notes held by the Group and the
related embedded conversion options at the date of the
April Conversion.

On 22nd August, 2013, the Group further converted
the entire ITCP Notes held with principal amount of
HK$43.85 million into approximately 20.9 million shares
of ITC Properties. Certain holders of the ITCP Notes also
converted the ITCP Notes on the same date concurrently
with the Group. As a result, the inferest in ITC Properties
held by the Group increased from 31.99% to 33.75%. A
net gain of HK$26,094,000 was recognised in the profit
or loss, which was determined as the difference of the
net increase in the share of fair values of the identifiable
assets and liabilities attributable to the Group’s interests
in ITC Properties Group on 22nd August, 2013, and the
carrying values of the debt portion of the ITCP Notes held
by the Group and the related embedded conversion
options at the date of the conversion.

8.

BMENTEZFRRLOZERFR

(%)

Hiat : (&)

(o) WEENARIEHLE—fHEE QRS REARE
(3 % 5= [ DA SN A L [F] B 88 3 AT 40 AR SR AR S B
ZIEEER

®

@i

R-_ZE—Z=ZFWA+—8B A&H
BAZTIRRKRESR21028 TH
Bl & # K & & %8 554,400,000/ 7T M
297,000,000/8 LR E S B B R
AR ([BREME]  AREEZHE
DNE) BTz EEHEZR(TEER
M aE17) &5 Bl 4925,900,0000% & 49
141,300,000f% = E A% 15 ([P0 A 82
BREBEIE]) - AEEREFMEZ Es
AAEE K EZLREETENA @R
E T8 M H37.37% | %£6.39%%30.98% °
B AR P RERR 2 B5 18 % 88112,511,000
EIL AR R A PO B e B8 A HRE (S
EHEMEREWNB AR ([EEnESE
EDEEFEZRDFE AEBEFA
BEFHEZRaES > 2REE -
AR A8 E18 A H AT IR =&
WS 2 ARG RE 4B AT ©

RZTE—=FNNA=Z+=ZH &*&
B —SPEBRBE2HEASEER
43,850,000/ T Z B M E RIB K &
20,900,000/% B E MK 5 - & T 12
HEHWEZEERBEATEAEERE
AR EFEESEER Bt A58
RIEFMERB 2 #%5 B31.99%1% =
33.75% c Bm P R 2 W FEA
26,094,000 7T © IiIRBER =T —=4F
NAZ+ZAAREEREFHEEE
BEZrBNEERABBEATEEEZ
FEMN AAEEMFEELERR
BEBH,ZEEME  UERERE
Z AR IR 2 Rk 2 R A=
o
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ITC CORPORATION LIMITED & # & # % AR

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e BB WKW

For the year ended 31st March, 2014 #Z - F—M#F= H=+—Hi - FZ

9. PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION 9. BR%AIER
2014 2013
—Z2—MF —E—=F
HK$'000 HKS 000
FETT FEIT
Profit before taxation has been arrived FR A A
at after charging: Bk
Staff costs, including directors’ B TR
emoluments: (BREESH2) :
Salaries and other benefits e RHEART] 30,799 28,644
Retirement benefit scheme RIREAETEI
contributions R 1,296 1,352
32,095 29,996
Auditor’s remuneration ZEETI & 1,605 1,589
Depreciation of property, plant M - BEREEC
and equipment e 1,903 5,098
Amortisation of intangible assets BT A E 184 161
Minimum lease payments under R LA BIED
operating leases in respect ZEEMERE
of rented premises I8 3,203 3,269
and after crediting: WEEFTA -
Net foreign exchange gain b 5 W 2= 5 R 16 11
Gain on disposal of property, HEMSH - KE K& E
plant and equipment Z Wz 659 519
Rental income under operating leases HEME 2 EEHENES
in respect of rented premises, net WA - IR RE
of negligible outgoings X 8H 1,063 1,089
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e BB WK M

For the year ended 31st March, 2014 #Z - F—M#F= H=+—HI - FZF
10. TAXATION

Taxation represents the deferred tax recognised by the
Group. Details are set out in note 25.

No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax has been made as
the Group had no assessable profits arising in Hong Kong
for both years.

The taxation for the year can be reconciled to the profit
before taxation per the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income as follows:

10. B 18

BRI AR E R ZRLERIA © FBEHNH
25 e

HRASEYERE TR ZEFHMNE - &
WEREFEELEFBNSHEE -

REFRZRARGEA B MEME2EKAR
P oI ER B A A < H AR AT

2014 2013

—E-0F —E—=F

HK$°000 HKS 000

FET FEIT

Profit before taxation B 5 B4 A 109,710 214,136

Tax at Hong Kong Profits Tax rate of 16.5% & BFIEF E16.5%51 8 2 Fi1E 18,102 35,332
Tax effect of expenses not deductible ERB AR RS2

for tax purposes BT E 49,880 9,922
Tax effect of income not taxable ERE T EBAERBR WA Z

for tax purposes Dbk (2.690) (3.761)

Tax effect of tax losses not recognised RER MIBEB R E 7.019 6,296

Tax effect of share of results of associates — #{hEE N R EE 2 MK E (72,189) (47.781)

Taxation for the year RNEEFERIA 122 8
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ITC CORPORATION LIMITED & # & # % AR

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e BB WKW

For the year ended 31st March, 2014 #Z - F—M#F= H=+—Hi - FZ

11. DISTRIBUTIONS

11. 2K

2014 2013
—E—-mF —E—=F
HK$’000 HKS 000
FETT FEIT
Dividends recognised as distributions RERERDIK TA QT
to owners of the Company during BEAZKRE :
the year:
- Final dividend for 2013 - HK3.0 cents — T =FZRHKRE -
(2013: HK3.0 cents for 2012) BR3.0BW (ZT—=%F -
per share —E——FA3.081) 37,528 23,511
- Interim dividend for 2014 - HK1.0 cent ——_E-MFEZHRHARE -
(2013: HK1.0 cent for 2013) BR1.0BIL (Z2—=%F:
per share —E—=FA1.081) 12,702 7.876
50,230 31,387
Dividends proposed in respect RFEEREZIE
of the current year:
- Final dividend for 2014 - HK3.0 cents ——ZE-MFEZRERE —
(2013: HK3.0 cents) BAR3.0EW (ZZT—=%F :
per share 3.0 38,107 27,828
- Special dividend for ——FAFZRERKRE—
2014 - HK3.0 cents (2013: Nil) BR3.08M (ZT—=%F:
per share ) 38,107 =
76,214 27,828

The directors of the Company have resolved to recommend
the payment of a final dividend of HK3.0 cents per share
(2013: HK3.0 cents) and a special dividend of HK3.0 cents
per share (2013: Nil) for the year ended 31st March, 2014,
which will be payable in cash, with an option to elect
scrip dividend of shares, in respect of part or all of such
dividends.

The aggregate amount of the final dividend for 2013
declared and approved during the current year
amounted to HK$37,528,000 representing cash dividend of
HK$31,130,000 and scrip dividend of HK$6,398,000 (2013:
cash dividend of HK$21,755,000 and scrip dividend of
HK$1,756,000).
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ITC CORPORATION LIMITED & # & # % AR I

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MW R MW

For the year ended 31st March, 2014 #Z - F—M#F= H=+—HI - FZF

12. EARNINGS PER SHARE

12.

The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings per share
attributable to the owners of the Company is based on the

following data:

BRER

ARAHEEANEEZBREAREERFTS
BATBEAE

2014 2013
—E—NF T =%
HK$°000 HK$ ‘000
FET FEIT
Earnings for the year attributable REERNTHEB AELEF
to the owners of the Company AT E SRR E AR Z T
for the purpose of basic earnings
per share 109,588 214,128
Effects of dilutive potential shares: BIEESERD 2 &
Adjustment to the share of result of =R E QR EA
an associate based on dilution BRAN 2 EHER
of its earnings per share EHFAEE - (51.773)
Adjustment of the interest income on E—RHEBEARETZ
the convertible notes issued by AMARR 5 2 FI B A
an associate EHFAEE - (7.155)
Adjustment of finance costs on R AT A SR AR R SR IR 2
convertible notes payable B SR ANE T A B 3,405 13,981
Earnings for the purpose of diluted AU E S REES AT
earnings per share 2 BH 112,993 169,181
Number of shares
BB EE
2014 2013
—E-NF —EF—=F
Weighted average number of shares R ESREREF 2
for the purpose of basic AR I -5 2
earnings per share 1.154,396,674 789,558,877
Effect of dilutive potential shares VB TE ] HEE AR () 1= AT AR
of convertible notes payable EEENFIBzZE 103,771,689 466,136,986

Weighted average number of shares
for the purpose of diluted earnings
per share

AN ESREERTZ
B 7 D 15 24

The potential ordinary shares attributable tfo the convertible
notes of an associate had anti-dilutive effect for the year
ended 31st March, 2014 as the assumed conversion would

result in an increase in earnings per share.

o5/

1,258,168,363 1,255,695,863

E-T-NE-A=t—HLFE —H
e NE T MRREOBEEARARE
T*E' £ ARKREBLEEHSRBAIEN -

AI\‘

%z
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ITC CORPORATION LIMITED & # & # % AR

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BB WKW

For the year ended 31st March, 2014 #Z - F—M#F= H=+—Hi - FZ

13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 13.ME¥E - -HERS®E
Plant, Yacht
machinery and Furniture
Land and and office motor and
buildings equipment vehicles fixtures Total
BE -
HER
TREF BAERE EERASE HEREE HE
HKS 000 HKS’ 000 HKS 000 HKS* 000 HKS 000
FEr FEr T T FEr
COST OR VALUATION R A= & E
Af 1st April, 2012 RZE-—ZFMOA—H 3,374 4,023 36,103 2,945 46,445
Translation adjustments & 5, 5 % 61) 5) (18) (26) 110)
Additions RE = 179 913 5 1,097
Disposals & - (397) (4,396) @n (4,814)
Revaluation increase B fh1%(E 10 = = = 10
At 31st March, 2013 RZE-—=%=H=+—H 3,323 3,800 32,602 2,903 42,628
Translation adjustments & & 58 & (270) (20) (85) 112) (487)
Additions A= - 403 - 9 412
Disposals & = (204) (4,396) ©®) (4,609)
Revaluation increase B {H1%(E 147 = = = 147
At 31st March, 2014 RZE-—NMFE=A=+—H 3,200 3,979 28,121 2,791 38,091
Comprising: B
At cost B - 3,979 28,121 2,791 34,891
At valuation - 2014 BZT—NFZHE 3,200 = = = 3,200
3,200 3,979 28,121 2,791 38,091
DEPRECIATION weE
At 1st April, 2012 RN-_ZE——FMB—H - 3,535 28,782 2,522 34,839
Translation adjustments (& 5 F8 % M 4) (18) (25) (48)
Provided for the year ~ RNEEEF 95 298 4,444 261 5,098
Eliminated on disposals (& B 4K §4 - (388) (4,396) (20) (4,804)
Reversal on revaluation & {5 82 ] (94) - - - (94)
At 31st March, 2013 RZE—=F=A=+—H - 3,441 28,812 2,738 34,991
Translation adjustments B 3, 8 % %) A7) (85) 1) (217)
Provided for the year REFEE 97 237 1,443 126 1,903
Eliminated on disposals & FF i #5 - (203) (2.931) 9 (3.143)
Reversal on revaluation & ff K& o] (93) - - - (93)
At 31st March, 2014 RZE-—NME=A=+—H = 3,458 27,239 2,744 33,441
CARRYING VALUES REE
At 31st March, 2014 RZE-—NMFE=A=+—H 3,200 521 882 47 4,650
At 31st March, 2013 RZE—=F=A=+—H 3,323 359 3,790 165 7,637
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For the year ended 31st March, 2014 #Z - F—M#F= H=+—HI - FZF
13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued) 13.ME¥E - -BERSE#E)

14.

o7/

The above items of property, plant and equipment are L%  BMERSEGEEBLNEGETE -
depreciated on a straight-line basis at the following rates FERAOT -
per annum:
Freehold land Nil KA EREL M i
Buildings 4% B 4%
Plant, machinery and 20% - 33'/s% MR~ 22 & 20% - 33'%:%
office equipment N
Yacht and motor vehicles 20% WEE e E 20%
Furniture and fixtures 20% FELGERE 20%
The carrying value of land and buildings held by the Group REBNSHERRAF LM EEFT  FEHEHE
as af the end of the reporting period represented freehold RHEMNMERKAEREL W RYE -
land and property in Canada.
If the land and building had not been revalued, they WMt REFAREEY  AFEESIKFES
would have been included in these consolidated financial AR 2 5T E LA1,008,00008 0 (2 —=
statements at historical cost less accumulated depreciation £ 11,119,000/ 70 ) 5T ARG S B ISR K -
of HK$1,008,000 (2013: HK$1,119,000).
INVESTMENT PROPERTY 14. REWHE
HKS'000
FET
FAIR VALUE AYEEE
At 1st April, 2012 R-_ZT——FMA—H 22,303
Translation adjustments PE % (403)
Increase in fair value recognised in R8P ER A FEEE INEE
profit or loss, unrealised REIH 66
At 31st March, 2013 N_E—=F=HA=1+—H 21,966
Translation adjustments M H R (1,791)
Increase in fair value recognised in RIBEP R AT EELINEE -
profit or loss, unrealised REIR 975
At 31st March, 2014 MZE—ME=H=+—H 21,150
The fair value of the Group’s investment property at the end RREHR AEEREYWELAFEEBT
of the reporting period have been arrived on the basis of a X FITARHERBBRARNZA 2 GE
valuation carried out on that date by RHL Appraisal Limited. R o

ANNUAL REPORT 2014 & E 3§ &
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31st March, 2014 #Z - F—M#F= H=+—Hi - FZ

14.

INVESTMENT PROPERTY (continued)

The fair value measurement for the Group’s investment
property is categorised as Level 3 (see note 3). The fair
value was determined based on the direct comparison
method, which makes reference to the recent transactions
for similar properties in the proximity and adjusted for a
number of unobservable inputs, including discounts of 5%-
10% for the spread between the ask prices and transaction
prices of the properties, discounts of approximately 20%
for difference in floor levels, etc., between the comparable
properties and the subject matters. A slight change in any
of the unobservable inputs above holding all other factors
constant would have no significant effect to the fair value of
the investment property. In estimating the fair value of the
properties, the highest and best use of the properties is their
current use. There has been no change to the valuation
technique or level of fair value hierarchy during the year.

The Group’s investment property represented property
in Canada and was held to earn rental and for capital
appreciation purposes is measured using the fair value
model and is classified and accounted for as investment
property.

14. REWME (&)

AEERENEZ AT EBENERDELASE
3 (FE2HMEE3) - R FEEBENE2EMRE
HEIEUYE 2R 5% A EEE T AE
FENW A L EGA IR SRR A T AR T &
ZIAN A B 7 HUE (B BT E5%10%1 %
BEBEEE  ETREREMmITELD20%E) #
THE - HITAAETATERR 28 AZE Y
REEE)  MATEEMARERTE B
"SR EMEZ AT EEEKEATE -
WEFHEZ AFEER  HEakiEL
MENFEBEABNAR RAFE  HE
Rk A B E B 4R K 7 7 R 4 A fa]
@Jo

AEBREMEZEMEADE @ TIHA N
RIEMRBUVE S RENIEE - AREERIARF
BERAGFEXLINFREMERIRIALRK -

15. INTANGIBLE ASSETS 156. B EE
HK$ 000
FHET
COST B
At Tst April, 2012 MN-ZE——FMA—H 2,931
Additions NE 337
At 31st March, 2013 and 2014 RZE—=FRk_F-—NF=H=+—H 3,268
AMORTISATION AND IMPAIRMENT BERITE
At 1st April, 2012 R=—ZE——FmA—H (1,282)
Provided for the year NS = (1em)
At 31st March, 2013 RZZE-—=F=A=+—H (1,443)
Provided for the year AN S A (184)
At 31st March, 2014 RZZE—MFE=A=+—H (1,627)
CARRYING VALUES REE
At 31st March, 2014 RZE—mFE=A=+—H” 1,641
At 31st March, 2013 RZZE—=F=A=+—H 1,825
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For the year ended 31st March, 2014 #Z - F—M#F= H=+—HI - FZF

15. INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued) 15. BILEE (&)
Intfangible assets represent club memberships in Hong Kong ML EERIENEERTPRZEMMEE - K
and the PRC. Other than club memberships of HK$525,000 B A525,00008 T (— & — = £ : 709,000/5
(2013: HK$709,000), which were acquired with membership ) EeE s BWEAIERIIEIN  HE
periods of 3 to 11 years, the remaining club memberships eENABETRFH ESCECEREE
have indefinite life. The directors have reviewed the carrying ZEREE  WRABRMBERET  £FR
amounts of the intangible assets and considered that, MAEAEE 2B HEZRMEEIE -

under the current market conditions, no impairment loss has
been recognised in profit or loss for both years.

16. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES 16. BEZE N R REH
(a) Investments in associates (o) BHEQARKRE
2014 2013
—E-NF —F=F
HK$°'000 HKS 000
FET FHET
Share of consolidated net assets BB E DR ZERE
of associates: BEFE :
Listed in Hong Kong REBH L™ 3,038,786 2,778,910
Listed overseas REINET - =
Goodwill B 6,470 6.470
3,045,256 2,785,380
Market value of listed securities: FhESETmE
Hong Kong B 1,066,034 813,146
Overseds gl 189,525 153,881
1,255,559 967,027
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31st March, 2014 #Z - F—M#F= H=+—Hi - FZ

16. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued) 16. Bt & NTE (&)
(b) Particulars of the Group’s associates at 31st March, (b) AEEBREQNTIR-ZE—"NEFRER_-F
2014 and 2013 —=E=ZBA=+—H2H1E
Percentage of
issued share capital
Place of Principal and voting rights
Place incorporation/ place of held indirectly
Name of associate of listing registration operations by the Company Principal activities
Rt/ ARAEERECRT
BENTER Lg% M IREENYE  REABALRRER IERE
2014 2013
“B-mE “T-=F%
% %
ITC Properties Hong Kong Bermuda Hong Kong 30.65 37.37  Investment holding in companies
EHHE 7% A5E b engaged in property development

and investment in Macau, the PRC
and Hong Kong, development and
investment of golf resort and leisure
operations in the PRC, securities
investment and the provision of
loan financing services
REBRREM  PEREELE
NEERRRE  MPERERIRE
BRARERNBRER
EHRE  RRHETRE

0 N
PYI Corporation Limifed Hong Kong Bermuda Hong Kong 26.81 26.81  Investment holding in companies
(CPYI) 7% A5E b engaged in port and infrastructure
RESEABAT development and investment, and the
(IRE]) operation of ports and logistics

facilities, land and property
development and investment in
association with ports and
infrastructure development and
provision of comprehensive
engineering and property-related
services
RABRRESAORERER
HRE BORMRAGLEE
HEORERERARN LI
NEERZRRE REZEIR
ROFEBR% AR
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ITC CORPORATION LIMITED & # & # % AR I

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BB WK M

For the year ended 31st March, 2014 #Z - F—M#F= H=+—HI - FZF

16. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued) 16. BtE QAR =R (4)

(b) AEEHREQXTAR-_F-NER_-F
—=f=ZA=t-H2#HKE(#E)

(b) Particulars of the Group’s associates at 31st March,
2014 and 2013 (confinued)

Percentage of
issued share capital
Place of Principal and voting rights
Place incorporation/ place of held indirectly
Name of associate of listing registration operations by the Company Principal activities
HIt%/ ARAEERECRT
BeNRER Lt e IREENYE  REAEALRRER IERE
2014 2013
“E-mF —T-=F
% %
Rosedale Hotel Holdings Hong Kong Bermuda Hong Kong 29.76 29.76  Investment holding in companies
Limited (“Rosedale” ) Bk BRE &k engaged in hotel operation in the
BERERRERAT PRC and Hong Kong and frading
(el of securities
REBRRTEREELLEESH
WREFEEZ N
Burcon NutraScience Canada, United Canada Canada 20.88 20.88  Investment holding in company
Corporafion States ond nex nex engaged in the development of
("Burcon”) Germany commercial plant protein
mex - xER REBRNEZHRAR
(e ENEREXBK AR

(c) HELARREMBERBE

(c) Summarised consolidated financial information of
associates

Summarised consolidated financial information in AT ANEES EEBERR 245G

101?

respect of each of the Group’s material associates
is set out below. The other associate invested by the
Group is not individually material. The summarised
consolidated financial information below represents
amounts shown in the associates’ consolidated
financial statements prepared in accordance with
HKFRSs and adjusted for the effects of the significant
fransactions or events that occur between the date
of which the associate’s consolidated financial
statements are prepared and that of the Group’s
consolidated financial statements where applicable.

All of these associates are accounted for using
the equity method in these consolidated financial
statements.

MBERE - ARERE Z Bl
REMERIM S L TEKX o« INTERE MBS
BRI E %M 2 R AR BB B
SEANREZGEAMBERRP IR
TH - UEBEEBN DT BZBERF
FAEMBRRREAPEAKESZEY
BHRERAPMEAZEARSHAFRZF
EHFEHHE-

PIABE RARN U ERAMBERRP R
RESEAARK -
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ITC CORPORATION LIMITED & # & # % AR

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BB WKW

For the year ended 31st March, 2014 #Z - F—M#F= H=+—Hi - FZ

16. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued) 16. BE AR R (4)

(c) BEQARAGEMBENME (&)

(¢) Summarised consolidated financial information of
associates (confinued)

Material associates FTEBEE T
2014 2013
—E-mF —Z-=f
Imc e
Properties PYI Rosedale Properties PYI Rosedale
BRIBE RE HE EEE RE nE
HK$ 000 HKS$ 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HK$ 000
&7 A7 AR AT TAT TET
(restated)
(1 =5)
(Note (i) (Note (i) (Nofe (iii)) (Note (7)) (Note (i) (Nofe (i)
iGN (&) (Wit i) (Hrita) () (i)
Financial information of hERREM
consolidated statement LANAEZ
of profit or loss and other TBEH
comprehensive income
Revenus WA 35,274 998,652 447,220 33,551 6,497,590 429,466
Profit (loss) for the year, affributable & 2 5B AZ(E
fo the owners of the associates ~ AEE 4 (B#E)
- from continuing operations -FELEER 386,853 85,586 851,966 137,561 262,343 (143,188)
- from discontinued operation —BREBEERK - - - 442,040 5 -
Other comprehensive income BENREE NS
(expenses) for the year, AEEEBRE
attributable to the owners WA
the associates 45,710 37,509 (101,397) 19,486 34,369 5,822
Total comprehensive income BENRERANER
(expenses) for the year, REERARA
affributable fo the owners (Bx)a%
of the associates 432,563 123,095 750,569 599,087 296,712 (137,366)
Dividends declared by the REEEEHENA
associates during the year, FEREERRE
attrioutable to the Group 44,321 12,270 - 22,744 18,405 =
Financial information of GEIBHEERZ
consolidated statement HEEH
of financial posifion
Property, plant and equipment 1% - BER R 230,107 1,585,828 576,679 232,339 1,517,924 2,202,407
Investment properties RENE 382,000 859,327 299,000 1,001,000 975,658 324,000
Project under development BEARIEE - 256,064 - = 637,648 =
Inferests in associates and BENAREE
joint ventures NAlER 1,216,933 1,776,605 460,627 771,303 1,641,352 17,054
Other non-current assets HitnegeE 723,480 1,194,806 361,158 795,837 1,092,986 158,877
Stock of properties EEN 1,157,755 1,723,474 - 1,156,705 1,130,558 =
Other current assefs A RBAE 1,688,944 1,701,078 1,703,802 1,652,862 2,629,202 427,804
Other current liabilfies EtRBAR (1,661,043)  (2,044,004) (401,869)  (2379.657)  (2773.974) (608,408)
Other non-current licbilities AtEnBAE (1578)  (1,546,568) (310,804) (383,219)  (1,479,005) (631,976)
Net assefs of the associates BERRZBERE 3,736,598 5,506,610 2,688,593 2,847,170 5,372,349 1,889,758
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—AFE=A=+—HILFE

16. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued)

(¢) Summarised consolidated financial information of
associates (continued)

16. & NTF R (&)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(c) BEQARAGEMBENME (&)

Material associates (continued) FEBEE NG (Z)
2014 2013
—g-pE —=F
I1C I1C
Properties PYI Rosedale Properties PYI Rosedale
EHHE ¥ HE BRE RE nE
HKs'000 HKs'000 HK$'000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS"000
FiEx &7 &7 FAT T FET
(restated)
(&)
(Nofe (if)  (Nofe (i))  (Nofe (i) (Note (7)) (Note (i)~ (Nofe (i)
(&) (&) (Wt i) (Hrite) (B#am) (B i)
Reconciliction to the carying BRIz KEE
amounts of inferest in the ZEHE
associates:
Net assets of the associates F-UNGI V9 3,736,598 5,506,610 2,688,593 2,847,170 5,372,349 1,889,758
Less: i
Aftrioutable 1o holders of RANER
- convertible notes/share —~BERRMEL
options issued by the RREE/
associates BERE (4.258) - - (124,242) - -
- non-controlling inferests ~ R ES 1293 (583,936) (242,439) 19 (631174 (184771
Net assefs attrioutable fo the UG =N
owners of the associates BIEEERE 3,733,633 4,922,674 2,446,154 2723124 4,841,175 1,704,987
Net assefs atfributable fo the AEERBEAAER
Group's interest in the associates B (A EF(E 1,139,539 1,296,323 729,055 997,076 1274477 507,357
Goodwl HE - 1177 - - 1177 -
Impairment loss on inferest BENTERL
in an associate HEBE - - (126,131) - - -
Carrying amount of the Group's ~ AEERBE LT
interest in the associates Ex/ERE 1,139,539 1,297,500 602,924 997,076 1,275,654 507,357
Fair value of listed associates, ITHBENRZAT
valued based on the quoted prices BIE (ERRAEEE
in active markets for the identical ~ NERTS 2 HE
asset directly, and categorised s HE - TEATFEE
level 1 of the fair value hierarchy RA5IRER) 730,240 208,585 127,209 497,343 230,671 85,132
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For the year ended 31st March, 2014 é?é_-t_ —E=H="1—HIFZF

16. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued) 16. BE AR R (4)

(c) BEQARAGEMBENME (&)

(¢) Summarised consolidated financial information of
associates (confinued)

Other associate p=g 41— A
2014 2013
—E-NF —T-=F
HK$’000 HKS'000
FETT FEIT
The Group’s share of: AREE (G
Loss for the year REEEE - (4,098)
Other comprehensive income Hab 2wk A - 80
Total comprehensive expenses ZHEMZ BT - (4,018)
Aggregate carrying amount of the REEREBE QAR
Group'’s interests in the associate 2 HBERTE 5,293 5,293
Notes: Hat
@iy ITC Properties >y BEME
During the year ended 31st March, 2014, the Group BE-ZT—MF=A=+—RHIEF
acquired shares of ITC Properties in the open market for E AEERAHMSANERERND
an aggregate consideration of approximately HK$41.8 41,800,000/ 7T 8 AEFEHIERR (D - DA
million, and converted ITCP Notes (defined in note 17; EnEEERRE (ERRME17:
see notes 8 and 17 for details). A gain on acquisition HERMFSR7) - BEEHEMER
of additional interest in ITC Properties of approximately YN 28 2 W25 4926,400,00058 7T 2 R 1B
HK$26.4 million was recognised in the profit or loss. tEFERR o
During the year ended 31st March, 2013, the Group BE_Z—=6=ZA=+—8BL*#F
converted ITCP Notes with a principal amount of B AEBDRER22BTZRRE
HK$26.5 million into approximately 12 million shares 15 N & 4 %8 526,500,000/ JT 2 B EEH
in ITC Properties at a conversion price of HK$2.2 per EE IR S I 4 %12,000,000% @1 b 2=
share. A gain on acquisition of the additional interest f& ) - B B @A E R IME R 2 W e
in ITC Properties of approximately HK$21.4 million was #721,400,0007% 7L B R ES R L 1B 25
recognised as a result of the conversion in the profit or R (FEBRWE17) -
loss (see note 17 for details).
@iy Pl iy fRE

During the year ended 31st March, 2013, the Group
acquired from the open market an aggregate of
approximately 13.4 million shares of PYIl, representing
approximately 0.3% equity interest in PYI, for an
aggregate cash consideration of HK$2.3 million. As a
result of the acquisition, a gain of approximately HK$11
million, determined by comparing the fair value of the
identifiable assets and liabilities of PYl on the dates of
acquisition attributable to the additional interest acquired
by the Group with the cost of acquisition of the additional
interest, was recognised in the profit or loss.
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For the year ended 31st March, 2014 éié_—t_

16. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued)

108

(¢) Summarised consolidated financial information of
associates (continued)

Notes: (continued)

(i

@v)

Rosedale

Rosedale is a company listed on the Hong Kong Stock
Exchange and its financial year end is 31st December. As
such, the Group has equity accounted for this associate
using published financial information of Rosedale. For
the Group’s financial years ended 31st March, 2013 and
2014, the Group has used the consolidated financial
statements of Rosedale for the financial years ended 31st
December, 2012 and 2013 respectively in applying the
equity method of accounting in respect of the interests
in the equity shares of Rosedale held by the Group.
Adjustments are made for the effects of the significant
transactions or events that occur between 1st January
and 31st March of 2013 and 2014 respectively, when
applying the equity method for the years ended 31st
March, 2013 and 2014 respectively.

The Group’s share of net assets and interests of Rosedale
at 31st March, 2014 is calculated based on the net assets
of Rosedale at 31st December, 2013 and the results
up to 31st December, 2013, respectively, as stated in
Rosedale’s consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 31st December, 2013, and adjusted for the effects
of a significant transaction that occurred between 1st
January, 2014 and 31st March, 2014, being the disposal
of 60% equity interest in and corresponding shareholder’s
loan due by More Star Limited, a then wholly-owned
subsidiary of Rosedale, whose principal asset is the
ownership of a hotel property in Hong Kong. Further
details are set out in the announcements and circular
of Rosedale dated 10th November, 2013, 18th February,
2014 and 14th March, 2014.

There were no significant fransactions occurred between
1st January, 2013 and 31st March, 2013.

Assessment for impairment of associates

During the years ended 31st March, 2014 and 31st March,
2013, the directors of the Company have assessed the
recoverable amounts of interests in associates using
value in use calculation for assessment of impairment on
interests in associates listed in Hong Kong as the carrying
values of each of the interest in associates are higher
than the market values of the listed securifies. Except
for the Group’s interest in Rosedale as at 31st March,
2014 (see below for details), the value in use as at 31st
March, 2014 and 2013 was higher than the carrying
value for each of the interest in associates and hence no
impairment loss was recognised on any of the interests in
associates for both years.

—HFE=A=+—HIFZ

16. B &

NEERE B

(c) BEQARAGEMBENME (&)

Bz - (&)

(i)

@)

i

HEAR - HERBBIM LD Z
AEHEUVBREFEFHEBR T H
_+ Bt NREBERHE

%ZW%%H%%%EQEEM
FAARBERR -BAEEEE —F
—=ER-_T-HFE=A=+—81
MRFRE  AEEREAIHERS
%@Z%\F%%%ﬁgufF“ﬂ
ERHEBEE—T——Fk_
FT_HA=1+— Hﬁ%ﬁiqum
MBERK -PRBE-_FT—=FR_-F
—mE=R=+—-—HIFEERE
HEHER  EORERFER_-Z
—=FRk-_T-MFE-F—-HE=A
=+t BHABELECERRGHER
ZRHBIEHAE -

AEEBEEER-F—NE=A
S RRARREENSAEER
BE-F SFi-Ast AL

FEZEZRAUBRRAMMMAER
T—=—FF+-_A=1+—HZFEERK
BE_Z—=Ff+-_A=+—Hz%¥
BEE YH-_T—WOF—A—A=E
—E—NFE=RA=+—HEEBELE
—REBAXRS (i EMore Star Limited
(HEER2ZEMEBR ﬁﬁ%w%
$%m&ﬁm% ERZBRER %
NAIZEEBERBA— E@E%%
Z%ﬁ%)Zweﬁmﬂ% DR
EHRHERHA-_T—=F1+—A78
+A - —ZE—mWFE_A+N\BR=-Z
—NFE=A+MHEZ A M RBHK
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ITC CORPORATION LIMITED & # & # % AR

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B Ww R MG

For the year ended 31st March, 2014 é]é_-t_ —E=H="1—HIFZF

16. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued) 16. BE AR R (4)

(c) BEQARAGEMBENME (&)

(¢) Summarised consolidated financial information of
associates (confinued)

Notes: (continued)

Bz - (&)

(iv) Assessment for impairment of associates (continued)

On 11th April, 2074, the Group entfered into a sale and
purchase agreement (the "Agreement”) with Hanny
Investment Group Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary
of Hanny Holdings Limited, to dispose of its entire
equity inferest in Leaptop Investments Limited, a wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company, which indirectly

@v)

FEEE S AR ZRE (&)
R-ZF-—WFNA+—H AKEHA

Hanny Investment Group Limited (&#
BEBAERARZZAMBAR) ]
NEEWE ([&iHE]) - Mﬁ.:./\
Leaptop Investments Limited (2422

ZEEWBR ﬂ)Zi%U‘&ZK(EZAﬂ

holds 195,706,000 Rosedale shares at the date of the % 755 B B B 35 B 195,706,0000%
Agreement at a total consideration of HK$575,000,000 IHERL D - 421K (8 A575,000,0007%8 T
(the "Disposal”). As part and parcel of the Disposal, (TEE=EHE]) - fEALESETA 5
the Group required to place and/or donate 47,200,000 R—E o » ANE @ﬁ@%ﬁﬂj'ﬁ%E*

Rosedale shares to independent third party(ies) and/or
charitable organisation(s) before the completion of the
Disposal such that upon completion of the Disposal (i)

RATEE &, E K memkm
%Eﬂxﬁwﬁ*”_ﬁ&/iﬁzﬁ rE
CBERERHEEEEE  ()E

the purchaser and parties acting in concert (as defined jﬁ&ﬁ @("@j)\i (EERBHBE
under the Code on Takeovers and Mergers issued by the A RHEEREECHMEKBZEED
Securities and Futures Commission of Hong Kong) will a7k Eﬁ&/\@:} al) H—rTAHﬁfEIEE

not hold in aggregate 30% or more of the voting rights of
Rosedale and (ii) the Company and its subsidiaries will
cease to hold any shares of Rosedale. Any net proceeds
from the placement will, according to the Agreement,
be attributable to the Group. Other conditions precedent
and further details of the Disposal are set out in the
announcements of the Company dated 23rd April, 2014
and 9th May, 2014.

Taking info account of the estimated proceeds from
placement of the 47,200,000 Rosedale shares, the
proceeds from the Disposal, net of transaction costs,
special dividend of HK$0.1 per Rosedale share declared
by the board of directors of Rosedale (which is subject to
completion of any one of the transactions announced by
Rosedale on 23rd April, 2014), and the Group'’s interests
in Rosedale in applying equity method based on the
published financial information of Rosedale for the year
ended 31st December, 2013 adjusted for the effect
of the significant transaction that occurred between
1st January, 2014 and 31st March, 2014 as disclosed
above, the carrying amount of the Group’s interest in
Rosedale has been written down fo ifs value in use of
HK$602,924,000, and an impairment loss amounting to
HK$126,131,000, has been included in profit or loss.

In determining the estimated value in use of the above
inferests in associates, the directors of the Company
estimated the Group’s share of the present value of the
estimated future cash flows expected to be generated
by each of its investments in the associates at the end
of the reporting period, including its cash flows from the
operations of the associates and the proceeds from the
ultimate disposal of the relevant interests by the Group.
The key assumptions for the value in use calculations
represent the estimated fair values of the underlying
assets and liabilities of the associates.
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ITC CORPORATION LIMITED & # & # % AR I

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BB WK M

For the year ended 31st March, 2014 #Z - F—M#F= H=+—HI - FZF
16. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued)

(¢) Summarised consolidated financial information of
associates (confinued)

Notes: (continued)
(v) Unrecognised share of losses of an associate

The Group has discontinued recognition of its share of
loss of an associate, the amounts of unrecognised share
of the associate, extracted from the relevant audited
financial statements of the associate, for the year and
cumulatively are as follows:

16. & NTF R (&)

(c) BEQARAGEMBENME (&)

Bt (&)
(v) REREE—HEEARZER

AEEERILEIAHLEE -—HBEEQ
AZEE e RFEERZF RERENG
ZMENRz 2R (FEaEZEE AT
HEgEZERA)MT

2014 2013
—E-pmEF =%
HK$°000 HKS$'000
FET FET

Unrecognised share of loss of the N EARMERB G ZEE DA
associate for the year 258 7,086 2,888

Accumulated unrecognised share RET ARG ZEE QA

of loss of the associate Z A 13,372 6,286

17. DEBT PORTION OF CONVERTIBLE NOTES

107?

AND CONVERSION OPTIONS EMBEDDED IN
CONVERTIBLE NOTES

In April 2012, the Group converted the 3.25% convertible
notes issued by ITC Properties (the “ITCP Notes”) with a
principal amount of HK$26,500,000 into 12,045,454 shares
of ITC Properties at the conversion price of HK$2.2 per share
and the equity interest held by the Group in ITC Properties
increased by 1.96% as a result of the conversion. A gain
on acquisition of the additional interest in ITC Properties
of HK$21,355,000 was recognised in the profit or loss,
which was determined by comparing the fair value of the
identifiable assets and liabilities of ITC Properties on the
date of acquisition attributable to the additional interest
acquired by the Group with the total of the carrying amount
of the debt portion of the ITCP Notes and the fair value
of the embedded conversion option on the date of the
conversion.

In August 2012, the Group acquired additional ITCP Notes
from an independent third party with a principal amount
of HK$10,500,000 for a consideration of HK$11,085,000
(including transaction cost).

17. TR EHE
2

BESBORTERRE

Z
BHE 2z BRRE

==

RZE—ZFNA AEBBELAEEH
26,500,000/% JT 7 128 #F Hb B 8 17 2 3.25[F 7]
MR EE ((EEERE]) ZRBRESR
2.278 TLEEHA 512,045,454 % B RE b E AR 1D -
MR L  NREBREEEMFZ
RS S HE 25 B 12 I11.96% o 1 B 128 X 3 2 FE O
T 2 W %521,355,00008 70 2 R IE 5 HER
T AR R E AT R E R NE R B
BEMHNEERGBEZ AT EEEEFEL
ERE 2 EIE I AR A & A7 A i i A
BRBBZAFEEAFTMET °

RZEBE—ZFNA  AEBURE
11,085,000/ 7T (BIER S A) RIBEILE =
77 1% B8 N 5 < 58 410,500,000/ JT 2 B EEH
EEE-
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ITC CORPORATION LIMITED & # & # % AR

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BB WKW

For the year ended 31st March, 2014 #Z - F—M#F= H=+—Hi - FZ

17. DEBT PORTION OF CONVERTIBLE NOTES

AND CONVERSION OPTIONS EMBEDDED IN
CONVERTIBLE NOTES (continued)

As at 1st April, 2013, the Group held ITCP Notfes with a
principal amount of HK$54,400,000 and initial conversion
price of HK$2.102. As disclosed in note 8(b)(i), these ITCP
Notes were fully converted info 25,880,113 shares in ITC
Properties on 11th April, 2013.

On 19th April, 2013, the Group acquired ITCP Notes in
an aggregate principal amount of HK$43,850,000 at a
consideration of HK$55,150,000 including the transaction
costs, of which HK$44,710,000 is included as debt portion
of convertible notes and HK$10,440,000 is included as
conversion options embedded in convertible notes. These
newly acquired ITCP Notes were fully converted info
20,861,082 shares of ITC Properties on 22nd August, 2013,
as set out in note 8(b)(ii). The Group did not hold any ITCP
Notes since then or at the end of the reporting period.

The Group classified the debt portion of the convertible
notes as loans and receivables and the embedded
conversion option is deemed as held for trading and
recognised at fair value on initial recognition. Upon
conversion by the Group, the amount of additional
shares of ITC Properties acquired would form part of the
interests in associate and accordingly, the debt portion
of the convertible notes held by the Group, together with
the conversion options embedded in convertible notes
are classified as non-current assets on the consolidated
statement of financial position.

The fair values of the conversion options embedded in
convertible notes on initial recognition and as at 31st
March, 2013 were determined by the directors of the
Company with reference to the valuation performed by
independent professional valuers not connected with the
Group using Black-Scholes Option Pricing Model. Details
of the method and assumptions used in the Black-Scholes
Option Pricing Model in the valuation of the conversion
options embedded in convertible notes as at 31st March,
2013 are as follows:

el
=
i3

BeBEBORITREER
"R RE 7

NZ L

R-ZE—=FEmMA—H AEEFHELLS
¥H54,400,000/8 7T 2 B E R 1R - Y12 H
AR B £2.102/8 7T © AR EE8(b) (i) T EE -
ZEEFWEZRREN T —=FNA+—
H & 882 405 880,1130% &£ ih Z= B 1D ©

RZE—Z=ZFWA+ILE AEEUKE
55,150,000/ T (BIER S K K) BALX S
48 %8 543,850,000/ T 2 BEE I E B -
#44,710,000/8 TLAT A ] AR B4 2 & (& 5F
5 510,440,000/ JT AT A AJ #2 % 22 4 BT A
2 ARG HE o BN BT FES(b) (NPT - X E
BAZEBEHEZEER _-_Z—=FNA
~—+ - HE2EEIRA20,861,0820% 1= £ 1 E
B&AD o NS B (& I LA 1R SR R 25 HA R IF 4%
EEMEEDESE -

RERERE - AEES I RERRE 2 ER
MO BERE R R EMGRIR - M iR
AR SR EEBRLRAFEERR - RAE
B - EEEEMERID ZHE K
BRI ERE) 2 - Bt - AEBME
A R SR iR 2 AR TR AR 0 & [F) AT R A R R A Y
L BRREERERA MBI R AR R IE
MEEE °

ZE BRI ZRME 2 B X R
ER-—_E—=F=A=+—HBz2AFEEH
AAREERLEEANEEMEREZE
37 B ¥ (H{E BT {2 FABlack-Scholes HA#E F (B
NFTETZHEREE N —=F=A8
=-+—H - Black-Scholes i1 B = £
R BB R E 2 R EEEZ A
ERBRERFEBOT

2013
—E-=F
ITCP Notes EHEMEEE
Adjusted stock price (HK$) FARERE (BT) 2.82
Conversion price (HK$) BmiRE (BT) 2.102
Volatility ] 22.00%
Dividend yield ZEEXK 5.03%
Option life (Year(s)) migESs (F) 0.65
Risk free rate Py R 0.099%

The effective interest rates of the debt portion of convertible
notes ranged from 15.76% to 18.10% per annum for the year
ended 31st March, 2013.
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ITC CORPORATION LIMITED & # & # % AR I

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BB WK M

For the year ended 31st March, 2014 #Z - F—M#F= H=+—HI - FZF

18. DEBTORS, DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS

1091'

18. EBWRAR AT RAMNKE

2014 2013

—E-NF —T=F

HK$’000 HKS 000

FiET FEIT

Trade debtors FEWE 5 8RR 604 2,101
Cash held by securities brokers BELLTRPATIERS 7.703 16

Other debtors, deposits and HhEWERS - 5]k

prepayments TETRIE 2,392 2,868
Less: Allowance for doubtful debts W REREHE (1.344) (1.344)
8,751 1,540

9.355 3.641

Trade debtors arising from leasing of investment property
business are payable monthly in advance and the credit
tferms granted by the Group to other tfrade debtors normally
ranged from 30 days to 90 days. For interest receivable,
there are no credit terms granted by the Group.

The following is an aged analysis of tfrade debtors presented
based on the invoice date at the end of the reporting
period:

REMEREEBELEZRWE SHENAR
Aeft MALEFEMEKRE SRR
ZIEEH—#RH0EEOETE - KEEW
EHERFERHEER -

JEWE SRR RE BRIZEZ A H 2 BRER
DT

2014 2013
—E-MF —F—=F
HK$°000 HKS 000
FET FET

Trade debtors JEUE 5 R
0 - 30 days 0 -30H 603 2,099
31 - 60 days 31 - 60H 1 2
604 2,101

Before accepting any new customer, the Group will assess
the potential customer’s credit quality and defines credit
limits by customer. The directors of the Company will
continuously assess the recoverability of the receivables.

As at 31st March, 2014 and 2013, the entire trade debtors
balance was neither past due nor impaired. In the opinion
of the directors of the Company, all trade receivables that
are neither past due nor impaired have good credit quality
at the end of the reporting period with reference fo past
settlement history.

ZREMMEFA - ARERFZEETP
ZEEERIRERPZIEERSE - ARF
BB REREREZ AT EE -

RZBE—NEER_ZT—Z=ZF=A=+—8 -
2 EFEWE 5 BR R AE 17 N0 B 8 B T R (E o
ARREERA  2EHBAE 2HF28
REERRERRL BN ERE B
ERESGERODABRITFEERER -
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ITC CORPORATION LIMITED & # & # % AR

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BB WKW

For the year ended 31st March, 2014 #Z - F—M#F= H=+—Hi - FZ

18. DEBTORS, DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS

(continued)

19.

The balance of allowance for other debtors as at 1st April,
2012, 31st March, 2013 and 2014 were HK$1,344,000,
representing individually impaired debtors which had been
in severe financial difficulties. The Group did not hold any
collateral over these balances.

NOTE RECEIVABLE FROM AN ASSOCIATE/
AMOUNTS DUE FROM ASSOCIATES

(o)

(b)

Note receivable from an associate

As a result of the disposal of Top Precise Investments
Limited and its subsidiary (collectively be referred
to as the "Top Precise Group”) in prior years, the
Group received a 2-year loan nofte with a principal
amount of HK$100,000,000 issued by a subsidiary of
ITC Properties on 16th November, 2011 as part of the
sefttlement of the consideration on the disposal of the
Top Precise Group. Loan note with principal amount
of HK$50,000,000 was repaid during the year ended
31st March, 2013 and the remaining HK$50,000,000 has
been seftled in full during the current year.

The loan note carried interest at HKD best lending
rate quoted by The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking
Corporation Limited (the "Best Lending Rate”) plus
1% per annum, with effective interest rate of 6% per
annum.

Amounts due from associates

The amounts are unsecured, repayable within one
year and non-interest bearing. The amounts due from
associates are repayable upon request for repayment,
the amounts are neither past due nor impaired and
have no loan default history.
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19.

EWER - T RASKE#)

R—ZZE——FNHA—AB - —T—Z=ZFK=_F
—MF=ZR=+—H  HtEWERZEHE
FRRE/31,344,0008 7T © K&K ERIBRE 2R
EUREBA - ANEBEWERZEETFE
E IR G -

FEW — R E D RRE R E

D E KA
(o) B —MBEARRR

£ 4 H &Top Precise Investments
Limited X E Kt B 2 & ([ Top
Precisei @) 2R AEBR=F
——F+— A+ NBEMREELE—
BB AR ZITANEME A28 A
100,000,000 T2 EREE fEAX
<3817 H ETop Precise =B 7 A E o #
HE-_Z—=F=A=+—HItEE
N4 % %850,000,0008 T Z ERZEREE
¥ {838 I £ 50,000,000/ 7T 2 A AN F
BB o

ZERERDEEE LBESRITAR
RABE 2 REEEEBTERN X
(IXEBEMNXDMEZFEFE B
BREFI X ROE -

(b) FE U HE & N R FNIR
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B EWEE AR RIBEAEEERE
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For the year ended 31st March, 2014 #Z - F—M#F= H=+—HI - FZF

20. LOANS RECEIVABLE

21.

111?

20. EWE

2014 2013

—E-MF —E—=F

HK$’000 HKS 000

FET FéET

Unsecured EIE 1,898 29,898
Less: Impairment loss recognised B BERERRESRE (1.898) (1.898)
- 28,000

The amounts as at 31st March, 2013 were unsecured,
repayable within one year and carried interest ranging from
Best Lending Rate to Best Lending Rate plus 1% per annum
with the range of effective interest rate of 5% to 6% per
annum.

Before approving any loans to new borrowers, the Group
has assessed the potential borrower’s credit quality
and defined credit limits individually. Limits attributed
to borrowers are reviewed ftwice a year. The directors
continuously assess the recoverability of the loans
receivable. In the opinion of the directors, the borrowers
have sound financial background and there has not been
any significant change in credit quality. An aggregate
amount of HK$28,000,000 has been settled during the year.

The allowance for doubtful debts of HK$1,898,000 at 31st
March, 2014 and 2013 related to an individually impaired
loan receivable for which the debtor was in severe financial
difficulties. The Group did not hold any collateral over this
balance. There is no movement on the allowance for loans
receivable for the both years.

SHORT-TERM BANK DEPOSITS AND BANK
BALANCES

The short-term bank deposits and bank balances carry
interest at prevailing market rates ranging from 0.01% to
3.5% (2013: 0.01% to 3.5%) per annum.

21.

R-E—=F=ZA=1+—H B@EZEE
T AR —FANEERIRFRNEN T E
BMEEFEBIMNERINE  AEBRFEH X
BEEE6EE R o

NASN

HHEERNERTFHERARN  AEEEFTHE
BEBRAZEEEXZTAE@EIALZ
EERRE - LA TERAZREBEDEFRT M
Ko BEREETHRRERZATWEE - &
ERE EBRAEEGREEZZVEES UK
HEEEXIWHESE NS (L - 42%628,000,000
BILERAFEEE -

RZBE—NER_T—=ZF=A=+—8 -
RER M ER(E R B RUE 2 FE W E 11,898,000
BILER MEBRESABRAREZENR
o ASEVWENMEHRITHEEAERR -
MEFE 2 ERERE G ESE -

BHRITFRRRITEF

HHRITERMBITEFUTISBITERF
K8 FENT00IERISE(ZT—=
F:001EE3BLE) T
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For the year ended 31st March, 2014 #Z - F—M#F= H=+—Hi - FZ

22.

23.

B 0% W®RM

CREDITORS AND ACCRUED EXPENSES 22. BERNBRRRETHX
Included in creditors and accrued expenses are frade FE BRI N FEET 7 S A B #5495,00076 7T (=
creditors of HK$495,000 (2013: HK$2,613,000) and their aged T — =4 :2,613,000080) 2 EN B S EE
analysis presented based on the invoice date at the end of o MESERREERIRXEHH ZERER D
the reporting period is as follows: T -
2014 2013
—E-mEF —E—=F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET TET
Trade creditors FERTE 5 R
0 - 30 days 0 - 30H 485 2,601
31 - 60 days 31 - 60H 10 12
495 2,613
The average credit period on purchases of goods is 90 BE Y TEHE=EE AR - NEBHEE SR
days. The Group has financial risk management policies BEEEERE  BIEMEARENZELAESEE
in place to ensure that all payables are within the credit =ZEBRR o
fimeframe.
MARGIN ACCOUNT PAYABLE/BANK 23. ENNRBESRFNE HITEX

OVERDRAFTS

(a) Margin account payable

Margin account payable as at 31st March, 2014 are
secured by certain listed shares of an associate held
by the Group and carries interest at prevailing market
rate at 11.25% per annum.

(b) Bank overdrafts

Bank overdrafts as at 31st March, 2014 and 2013 are
unsecured and carry interest at prevailing market rates
which range from 4.00% to 5.75% (2013: 4.00% to 5.75%)
per annum.
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For the year ended 31st March, 2014 #Z2 =%

24. CONVERTIBLE NOTES PAYABLE

113?

—HFE=A=+—HIFZ

24. AT AR BB EKIE

2014 2013
—E—mF —ET—=fF
HK$'000 HK$ 000
FET FEIT
Liability component: BEHD

At the beginning of the year REA]) 95,852 131,299
Interest charge B H 3,405 13,981
Interest paid [EXNEESS (1.641) (6.992)
Conversion during the year RE AR (97.616) (42,436)
At the end of the year RER - 95,852

On 2nd November, 2009, the Company issued 5%
convertible notes which were unsecured, at par value
of HK$200,000,000 (the “Convertible Notes”). Interest
was payable semi-annually. The Convertible Notes were
denominated in HKD and entitled the holders to convert it
into ordinary shares of the Company at any time between
the period commencing on and including the 7th day
after the date of issue of the Convertible Notes up to and
including the date which was 7 days prior to the maturity
date on 2nd November, 2011 at an initial conversion price
of HK$0.50 per conversion share (subject to anti-dilutive
adjustments), which was subsequently adjusted to HK$0.30.
If the Convertible Notes had not been converted, they
would be redeemed on 2nd November, 2011 at 100% of the
outstanding principal amount. The Company was entitled to
purchase the Convertible Notes at any time and any price
agreed by the holders. The effective interest rate of the
liability component was 11.52% per annum.

On 29th September, 2011, the Company extended the
maturity date of the then remaining outstanding Convertible
Notes of an aggregate principal amount of HK$143,000,000
for two years from 2nd November, 2011 to 2nd November,
2013 (see circular dated 14th September, 2011 issued by
the Company for details). All the other terms and conditions
of the Convertible Notes remain unchanged. The effective
interest rate of the liability component is changed to 12.33%
per annum.

During the year ended 31st March, 2013, the Convertible
Notes with an aggregate principal amount of HK$44,000,000
were converted into 146,666,662 shares of the Company at
the conversion price of HK$0.30 per share.

During the year ended 31st March, 2014, the remaining
aggregate outstanding principal amount of the Convertible
Notes of HK$99,000,000 were fully converted into
329,999,992 shares of the Company at the conversion price
of HK$0.30 per share.

RZZBEZENFE+—A=-H  ANARETHE
200,000,000/% 7T 2 58 AT 2 % = #% ([ 0] A%
Z|) o EWEKE  ASFEFEIAFE -
%%HX?KTJ%J’/(/%EH-I—{E I?_'Eg/ﬁ;%_fﬁ/\ﬁ—
% 4] 5 iR (B B 3%0.5078 7T (7] 7 A R #58E
) (HE AR A0308 T) RAl R EE
BITAMERELH (BEZB) B2 BRE
Fﬂ%a T——F+—A-HAEB (8
FEzA) HHENEZE#RAARQR 2 LR

FER%1D - HATER ER AR - HEBR
—T——Ft+—A-HENREELAS S
100% T AMEE - KRR BHEERUALEESR
AREZERERER R ER - & &S
DZERFERE RN S2E -

R=F—FRLA=+NHB KRFHEHT
REETBRREE (B $F/4143,000,000
B ZEHPER =T ——F+—A=ZRHL
EMEFE-ZT—=F+—A=ZB (FEBR
ARABR=ZFE——FNLA+HEBRER
) o ATIRARR IR 2 FT A B A IR R R (4
BAE - BERD 2ERFHEAFE12.33% -

HE-Z—=F=-A=+—HLEFER "

7K & & ¥E 44,000,000 T 2 A 42 % 2 ﬁﬁ&
B T I0.30/8 TLEEIR 51 46,666,6621% 7K
NR ©

HE-_Z-—"NF=ZA=Z+—HLEFERN"
é‘foHaaaT%ﬁH ZR(BEASSEA
99,000,000/ JT) B & #1881 5329,999,992
AR AR (SRR A% {0.307 L) o
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For the year ended 31st March, 2014 #Z - F—M#F= H=+—Hi - FZ

25. DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES 25 EEHRIREE
The following table summarises the major deferred tax RAERNRNEEECERAZ T BRELEFTE
liabilities (assets) recognised and movements thereon BEBE)ARBBESHBIMT X

during the current and prior years:

Accelerated

tax Revaluation Tax

depreciation of properties losses Total

MERHRTE EfftME HEEE st

HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000

TFAET THET TET FAT

At st April, 2012 R-ZE—=-FNA—H 1,681 553 (1,220) 1,014

(Credit) charge to profit or loss 7 82 (HA) #1K (495) 8 495 8
Charge to other R 2 E A R

comprehensive income - 13 - 13

At 31st March, 2013 RZZE-—=4=A=1—H 1,186 574 (725) 1,035

(Credif) charge to profit or loss 7182 (5 A) 1k (297) 122 297 122
Charge to other REA 2 E AR

comprehensive income - 30 - 30

At 31st March, 2014 RZZ—WE=A=+—H 889 726 (428) 1,187

At 31st March, 2014, the Group has unused tax losses MN-ZE—NME=FB=1+—H KNEBEAH

of HK$670,655,000 (2013: HK$629,925,000) available 670,655,000 70 ( —F — = 4 : 629,925,000

for offset against future profits. A deferred tax asset B Z A A IBEE T B IKE AR

has been recognised in respect of HK$2,591,000 (2013: Ao REBE #EF2591,0008T (—F

HK$4,399,000) of such losses. No deferred tax asset in — =4 14,399,000/ ) ERRIEERIBE

respect of the remaining tax losses of HK$668,064,000 E o AR RRLIE T A 3K 5% F 2R - I 4=

(2013: HK$625,526,000) has been recognised due to the o H 4 FTE E38668,064,0008 T (2 —=

unpredictability of future profit streams. Tax losses may be F 1 625,526,000/8 7T ) MERELEFTIBEE

carried forward indefinitely. IS E A N MR Hi 4k 8 o
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For the year ended 31st March, 2014 #Z - F—M#F= H=+—HI - FZF

26. SHARE CAPITAL 26. B2
Number of shares Value
R EE BE
HK$'000
FEIT
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each: FiEEE.0VE L ERAR ¢
Authorised: JRRE
At 1st April, 2012, RZZE——_FMHA—H -
31st March, 2013 **—*—ﬂi A=+—H
and 31st March, 2014 kZZE—NF=F=+—H 102,800,000,000 1,028,000
Issued and fully paid: BEETRER
At Tst April, 2012 RZFE——FMHA—H 777.028,676 7.770
Conversion of the Convertible Notes s O] A Y TR
(Note (a)) (Kat(a)) 146,666,662 1,467
Issue of shares (Note (b)) BITRRAD (B et (b)) 3,904,762 39
At 31st March, 2013 RZZE—=%F=H=+—H 927,600,100 9,276
Conversion of the Convertible Notes ] AR R R
(Note (c)) (HtiEcc)) 329,999,992 3,300
Issue of shares (Note (d)) BTG (K5t (d)) 12,629,897 126
At 31st March, 2014 RZZE—MFE=A=+—H 1,270,229,989 12,702
Notes: H1aT -
(@) 146,666,662 shares of HK$0.01 each were issued upon the (@) RZE——F+LtA+N\NB ZE—=F=

(®)

©

(@

conversion of the Convertible Notes with an aggregate
principal amount of HK$44,000,000 on 18th July, 2012, 22nd
February, 2013, 13th March, 2013, 14th March, 2013, 20th
March, 2013 and 27th March, 2013 at a conversion price of
HK$0.30 per share.

3,904,762 shares of HK$0.01 each were issued by the Company
to the shareholders who had elected to receive scrip dividend
in respect of the final dividend for the year ended 31st March,
2012 on 26th September, 2012 at HK$0.4496 per share.

329,999,992 shares of HK$0.01 each were issued by the
Company upon the conversion of the Convertible Notes with
the aggregate principal amount of HK$99,000,000 on 4th
July, 2013, 10th July, 2013, 15th July, 2013, 1st August, 2013,
8th August, 2013, 12th August, 2013, 20th August, 2013, 21st
August, 2013 and 29th August, 2013 at a conversion price of
HK$0.30 per share.

12,629,897 shares of HK$0.01 each were issued by the
Company to the shareholders who had elected to receive scrip
dividend in respect of the final dividend for the year ended 31st
March, 2013 on 4th October, 2013 at HK$0.5066 per share.

These shares rank pari passu with the then existing shares of
the Company in all respects.

115?

®)

©

C))

A-+=ZH ZZ—=%=A+=H =%
—=F#=A+mWE - —E—=F=A=-+H
F—ZFE—=%=ZA=++tH  A2aEALXL
% © ¥844,000,0007% 7T 2 Al #8 % =B LR
BESA%0.30/8 TTEE A 841 T146,666,662% &
A E E0.01 7 T 2 B ) °

AR ER—ZE——FhA-+/NBREE
RBEE—_ZT——F=A=+—RHLFEZ
REARR B UER A B (X B 2 AR 3R LA 2 % 0.4496

B ITLE 173,904,762 B IREE0.018 7T 2 I’

1/'\ ®

R-ZE—=F+ANH - —T—=F+A+
B ZF—=FLA+THA - 2T =F)N\
A—B ZZE—=F#/\A/\B - =ZZ2—=F
NB+=-B - —ZE—=%FN\A=-1+H =%

—=FNAZF+—BUERZZE—=FNA
Z+NA - AREREBAERE S E9,000,000
BT 2 R BB IRIRRE ST AR0.30E T E
%ﬁﬁ%ﬁwwwm%ktkﬁ@am%ﬁ
25 o

ARRERZZE—=F+AMAMRERE
2T =F=ZA=1+—BUEFEZREK
BUEUA R B 2 BR 3 LA & 10,5066 7T 3%
1712,629,897 X T X E{E0.018 L 2 IR 17 °

SZ:HX@}EAKEEEE$ RIERRAE RN E
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For the year ended 31st March, 2014 é]é_t_y —E=H="1—HIFZF
27. SHARE OPTIONS 27. IR E

The Company’s existing share option scheme (2011
Scheme”) was adopted at the annual general meeting of
the Company on 19th August, 2011 (the "Adoption Date”).

The purpose of the 2011 Scheme is to provide incentive
or reward to eligible persons for their contribution fo, and
continuing efforts fo promote the interests of, the Company
and its subsidiaries and/or any invested entity(ies) and its
subsidiaries.

The board of directors of the Company may in its absolute
discretion, subject to the terms of the 2011 Scheme, grant
options to, infer alia, employees or executives, including
executive directors of the Company, the conftrolling
shareholder of the Company and any invested entity and
their respective subsidiaries, non-executive directors of
the Company and invested entity and their respective
subsidiaries, supplier, advisor, agent, consultant or
contractor for the provision of goods or services to any
member of the Group or any invested entity and its
subsidiaries and any vendor, customer or celebrity of
any member of the Group or any invested entity and its
subsidiaries or any person or entity that provides research,
development or other technological support to the Group
and any invested entity and its subsidiaries.

At the time of adoption by the Company of the 2011
Scheme on 19th August, 2011, the aggregate number
of shares which may be issued upon the exercise of all
options to be granted by the Company under the 2011
Scheme and any other share option scheme(s) adopted
by the Company must not exceed 10% of the total
number of issued shares of the Company as at the date
of shareholders’ approval of the 2011 Scheme. As at the
date of these consolidated financial statements authorised
for issuance, the total number of shares available for
issue under the 2011 Scheme is 111,760,009 shares (2013:
77.702,867), which represented approximately 9% (2013:
8%) of the issued share capital of the Company as at the
date of these consolidated financial statements authorised
for issuance. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the maximum
number of shares which may be issued upon exercise of all
outstanding options granted and yet to be exercised under
the 2011 Scheme and any other share option scheme(s) of
the Company must not, in aggregate, exceed 30% of the
total number of issued shares of the Company from fime to
fime.
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NREREAREERLENBARRMER
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AKRABIR=ZZTE——FNA+ L HEH
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RNARM 2 EAHE M ERER S AR A K
FTREZE2HEREHITERER TET
2 e ERBE B REES
T——FHEERAARARARIZEERTRMNAE
H210% o RILFER G B SRR IE R RT3
2B BEZZT——FFE TR
DHEAE111,760,0008 i h (=T — =4 :
77,702,867 ) * th i W F4R & B 75 R R IE R
T ABARR 2B BITRANEERLY
9% (=T —=14F :8%) - BEWY - RE=F
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27. SHARE OPTIONS (continued)

117,'

Unless approved by the shareholders of the Company
in general meeting, the total number of shares of the
Company issued and to be issued upon exercise of the
options granted and to be granted (whether exercised,
cancelled or outstanding) under the 2011 Scheme and
any other share option scheme(s) of the Company to any
eligible person in any 12-month period up to and including
the date of further grant shall not exceed 1% of the total
number of the Company’s shares in issue from time to time.
Options granted to a substantial shareholder and/or an
independent non-executive director of the Company or
any of their respective associates (as defined in the Listing
Rules) in any 12-month period in excess of 0.1% of the total
number of shares of the Company in issue and having an
aggregate value exceeding HKS5 million must be approved
by the shareholders of the Company in general meeting in
advance.

The period within which the options may be exercised under
the 2011 Scheme will be determined by the directors of
the Company at the time of grant. This period must expire
in any event not later than the day falling 10 years affer
the date on which the offer relating to such option is duly
approved by the board of directors. The 2011 Scheme
does not provide for any minimum period for which an
option must be held before it can be exercised. Options
may be granted at an initial payment of HK$1.00 for each
acceptance of grant of option(s). The directors of the
Company shall specify a date, being a date not later than
30 days after (i) the date on which the offer of the options is
issued, or (ii) the date on which the conditions for the offer
are satisfied, by which the eligible person must accept the
offer or be deemed to have declined if.

The exercise price of the options will be determined by
the directors of the Company (subject to adjustments
as provided in the rules of the 2011 Scheme) which shall
not be lower than the nominal value of the shares of the
Company and shall be at least the higher of (i) the closing
price of the shares of the Company as stated in the Hong
Kong Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on the date
of the offer, which must be a business day; and (ii) the
average of the closing prices of the shares of the Company
as stated in the Hong Kong Stock Exchange’'s daily
quotations sheets for the five business days immediately
preceding the date of the offer.

Subject to early termination in accordance with the
provisions of the 2011 Scheme, the 2011 Scheme is valid
and effective for a period of ten years commencing after
the Adoption Date, after which period no further options
shall be granted.

27. BRE (&)

BRIEEARRIREERRAE LHE - BRI
HEMBEBE L BBIEEM 6 A 8
N REZZS——F58 RARR 2 EME
HERET S RERNEEBATELRET
BREZERE(THERDHITE « sFiHK
M ARITE 2 BIRE) EITERMETRE T
BOIZARNRRMDBE - TR BEARR T
BEBEITRMAE 21% > REM+ 1@ A
R T ARBIEBRR KRB IERTT
EFNEARESACHBEAL(EER L
MHRA) 2 EREBEARREBITRMDE
£020.1%IM A& (BB 185,000,000 7T * WA
EEERREREERERE LHOE -

T —FFEETEREZ TR SRS
BMARBEFTERBEIRE - Ew - bk
HRREVAEBREENEESSHAER
Bt m +FHEE R IBER - —T——
FREYEREBRELSAZERERSE —
BT AITE - ARABREAREZE
PR ISR E .00 BT Z MM - KRR
MEEAEE —EAH  BEGE L ERE
ZXHRFA=THAR  H@MHBOZEHERZ
REF=THAA  AERATLAEILAM
RNEMEREYN  BRIRGIFEEREMAE
#) o

BREZTFEESHARRZESAE (AR
BT ——FalzAEmMELARE) - 17
FERTERAAFTBRHDzEEREDA
BUATEBEZRESEOARBRBRMNEEL B
(NEREER) EBEBBMRXMzEBMER
FT# 2 WmE : RMHARBROEREEL
Bz AEEERAEEBHMIM2STHRE
KE 2 WmEZ FHE -

BRiRIE —F — — Fat 8l 2 R MR AT R
Sh T ——FFEIERA B BER TFH
RAA - EUHIRAERE - T2EILHE
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27.

28.

29.

SHARE OPTIONS (continued)

As at 31st March, 2013 and 2014, there were no outfstanding
share options granted by the Company pursuant to the
2011 Scheme. No share options were granted, exercised,
cancelled or lapsed during the year and prior year.

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital fo ensure that entities in
the Group will be able to confinue as a going concern
while maximising the return to owners of the Company
through the optimisation of the debt and equity balance.
The Group’s overall strategy remains unchanged from prior
year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of debts, net
of cash and cash equivalents and equity attributable to
owners of the Company, comprising issued share capital,
accumulated profits and other reserves.

The directors of the Company review the capital structure
on a regular basis. As part of this review, the directors
consider the cost of capital and the risks associated with
each class of capital. The Group will balance its overall
capital structure through the payment of dividends and
new share issues as well as the issue of new debt or the
redemption of existing debt.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(a) Categories of financial instruments

27.

28.

29.

Bk e

RZE—=FR_ZT—NF=A=+—8 -
BIEZF——F51E8 AR AIBEHRITE
ZERE  MAFAREFA - HEBRE
R - 170 - RS R -

EXxERER

AEEEEEEA  SHEBRAEEEER
FERE  WEBEBLEBRERERAAR
NEEE NG REARIR - NEE 2 EBR
B AR — BT o

AEBEZEARBREGER KRS KA
SEEBEBARARREAARLER  EFP
BREDETERA  RFbaM R EMHE -

ARREZER R EARE - ERRFZ
—#0  BEEREEEARARZHREARNE
B - AEESEBNIE REITHK
REZTHEGXERREER  FHHER
BEARE -

E@mIT A
(o) SRMTESE

2014 2013
—E-0F —E-=fF
HK$'000 HKS 000
FETT FEIT
Financial assets SHEE
FVTPL BAFEERN R SEE IR
- Conversion options embedded — BRI
in convertible notes il g3 - 18,634
Loans and receivables (including ERRENKFIE (BERER
cash and cash equivalents) REFEIHEE) 42,179 176,829
Financial liabilities cHAE
Amortised cost BEEERR 105,695 153,877
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29. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

119?

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Group’s financial instruments include trade and
other debtors, loans receivable, short-term bank
deposits, bank balances and cash, amounts due
from associates, debt portion of convertible notes,
conversion options embedded in convertible notes,
note receivable from an associate, trade and other
creditors, margin account payable, bank overdrafts
and convertible notes payable. Details of these
financial instruments are disclosed in the respective
notes. The risks associated with these financial
instruments and the policies on how to mitigate these
risks are set out below.

The management manages and monitors these
exposures to ensure appropriate measures are
implemented in a timely and effective manner. There
has been no significant change to the Group’s
exposure to market risks or the manner in which it
manages and measures the risk.

Market risks
(i) Currency risk

At the end of the reporting period, the carrying
amount of the Group’s net monetary assets
and advances fo foreign operations within the
Group denominated in currencies other than
the respective functional currencies of the
relevant group entities include HK$29,466,000
(2013: HK$23,703,000), which is denominated in
Canadian dollars ("CAD"). 5% is the sensitivity
rate used when reporting foreign currency risk
internally to key management personnel and
represents management’'s assessment of the
reasonably possible change in foreign exchange
rates.

On this basis, there will be an increase/decrease
in post-tax profit by HK$1,230,000 for the year
(2013: HK$990,000) where CAD strengthens/
weakens against HKD by 5%. Management has
closely monitored foreign exchange exposure to
mitigate the foreign currency risk.

—HFE=A=+—HIFZ

2. €W I H (&)
(b) cHMEAKREEBEEREE

rEEzeRMIABERKE SRR
Hh EURIR - [BIRE K - EHIRTTE
R ROTBERRE  BREBERER
IE —J—#}'HXmH&Zf IEJB —J—#Z.'HXT
BB BIR—RBERATZ
EE  EHREMEMNKIEA - BARE
iﬁE}E‘ RIE - RITBEX R AR ERE
HRIE - ZEL/ T AFIERE BT
?&Eﬂéﬁiu FeMT AR AR LN
TT/JEW%;E%HMZ[BZ REZIAT -

ERETENEHZERR  BREE
%Eﬁ%ﬁ&ﬂ%ﬁaﬁziﬂzﬁﬁ o REEZ TS

R EEREEZERFTERRE 25 AL
EEK& ‘‘‘‘‘‘ °

45 A B
() E¥EE

é LR AEBEBKEEZ

aafﬁ&ﬁ T A B A E SN
%i&z RIEAHEEEERE Y
e EB N2 E¥FE EF
29,466,0008 7T (—ZF — = 4F :
23,703,000/ 70) LA in= K 7t ([ 40
JL)) FHE ° Wﬁﬁﬁig‘%%f@}\%

2 O BLIR B - 5% 5% B
X ﬁ%E@AEwﬁ% s
A B

RULE%E Wi B/
55 3% 259 - F AR E R
#hn 9 421,230,000 T (= =

—=F BB BT BN
42990,000/87T) - EIREC BT
BINETE H, » IR EB =R EINE R,
|§uu °
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29. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies
(continued)

Market risks (continued)

(ii) Interest rate risk

20. €T B (&)
(b) SREAKREEBEREEK (&)

mEEE (&)
(i) FE @ g

The Group is exposed to fair value interest rate risk
in relation fo fixed-rate debt element of convertible
notes and fixed-rate convertible notes payable
issued by the Group.

The Group is also exposed to cash flow interest
rate risk in relation to cash held by securities
brokers, bank deposits and balances, loans
receivable, note receivable from an associate,
margin account payable and bank overdrafts
which are mainly arranged at floating rates.

Management has employed a freasury team
to closely monitor interest rate movement and
manage the potential risk. The Group currently
does not have an interest rate hedging policy.
However, management monitors interest rate
change exposure and will consider hedging
significant interest rate change exposure should
the need arise.

The Group’s exposures to interest rates on
financial liabilities are detailed in the liquidity risk
management section of this note. The Group’s
cash flow interest rate risk is mainly concentrated
on the fluctuation of the Best Lending Rate
arising from the Group’s HKD denominated loans
receivable, note receivable from an associate and
bank overdrafts.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis below has been determined
based on the exposure to interest rates for the
financial instruments at the end of the reporting
period which carried floating market interest
rate. The analysis is prepared assuming fhe
amount of assets and liabilities outstanding at
the end of the reporting period was outstanding
for the whole year. A 10 basis points increase or
decrease for short-term bank deposits and bank
balances and 50 basis points for other financial
assets and financial liabilities set out above are
used when reporting interest rate risk internally
to key management personnel and represents
management’s assessment of the reasonably
possible change in interest rates.

If interest rates had been 10 or 50 basis points,
as appropriate, (2013: 50 basis points) higher/
lower and all other variables were held constant,
the Group’s post-tax profit for the year will be
decreased/increased by HK$285,000 (2013:
increased/decreased by HK$253,000).
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29. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

121?

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies
(continued)

Market risks (confinued)

(iii) Other price risk

The Group was exposed fo equity price risk
through the Group’'s conversion options
embedded in convertible notes as at 31st March,
2013. Management closely monitors the exposure
to price risk. The Group'’s equity price risk is mainly
concentrated on the underlying equity instruments
quoted on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange for the
embedded conversion options.

The conversion options embedded in convertible
notes held by the Group is required to be
recognised at fair value at the end of the
reporting period. Changes in fair value are
recognised in profit or loss as long as the
convertible notes are outstanding. The fair
value change will be affected either positively
or negatively, amongst others, by the changes
in share price volatility of the convertible notes
issuer.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis on conversion options
embedded in convertible notes for the year ended
31st March, 2013 set out as below have been
determined based on the exposure to the change
of share price of the convertible notes issuers at
the end of the reporting period with other variable
remained constant.

If the share prices of those convertible notes
issuers are 5% higher/lower and all other variables
are held constant, the Group’s post-tax profit
for the year will be increased/decreased by
HK$2,161,000/HKS$2,183,000 for the year ended
31st March, 2013, as a result of changes in fair
value of conversion option embedded in the
convertible notes.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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29. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

29. €T H (&)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies

(continued)
Credit risk

The Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk in the
event of the counterparties’ failure to discharge their
obligations at the end of the reporting period in
relation to each class of recognised financial assets
are the amounts stated in the consolidated statement
of financial position. In order to minimise the credit
risk, management of the Group has determined
credit limits, credit approvals and other monitoring
procedures to ensure that follow-up action is tfaken to
recover overdue debts. In addition, the Group reviews
the recoverable amount of each individual trade and
loan debtor and convertible notes receivable at the
end of the reporting period to ensure that adequate
impairment losses are made for irrecoverable amounts.
In this regard, the directors of the Company consider
that the Group’s credif risk is significantly reduced.

The Group had significant concentration of credit
risk on note receivable from an associate and loans
receivable amounting fo approximately HK$50 million
and HK$28 million, respectively, at 31st March, 2013. In
addition, the Group also had significant concentration
of credit risk on convertible notes receivable issued
by an associate amounting tfo HK$53 million as at
31st March, 2013. As the debtors or issuers of the
convertible notes have good payment record in the
past, the directors of the Company consider that
the Group’s credit risk to these counterparties is not
significant. Other than the above, the Group had
no significant concentration of credit risk. As at 31st
March, 2014, the Group does not have significant
concentration of credit risk.

The credit risk on liquid fund is limited because
the counterparties are banks and other financial
institutions with high credit ratings. The Group does not
have significant concentration of credit risk on liquid
fund.
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T ARAICEERAAREZEER

% B A IE R o

R_ZT—=F=ZA=+—8 " $%lz
BEREFREER D B2 G & — M
ENREEREREZ + 450,000,000
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For the year ended 31st March, 2014 #Z - F—M#F= H=+—HI - FZF

29. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

123?

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies

(continued)

Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group
monitors and maintains a level of cash and cash
equivalents deemed adequate by the management
to finance the Group’s operations and mitigate the
effects of fluctuations in cash flows. Management
monitors the ufilisation of borrowings and ensures
compliance with loan covenants.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements,
the directors of the Company have given careful
consideration to the future liquidity and going
concern of the Group in light of the Group’s current
liabilities exceed its current assets by approximately
HK$66 million as at 31st March, 2014. The directors of
the Company are satisfied that the Group will have
sufficient financial resources to meet its financial
obligations as they fall due for the foreseeable future,
after taking into consideration that there are available
borrowing facilities, the future plan of the Group and
that there are assets available to pledge for obtaining
further banking facilities.

The following table details the Group’s remaining
contractual maturity for its financial liabilities based
on the agreed repayable terms. The table has been
drawn up based on the undiscounted cash flows of
non-derivative financial liabilities based on the earliest
date on which the Group can be required to pay. The
table includes both interest and principal cash flows.
To the extent that interest flows are floating rate, the
undiscounted amount is derived from interest rate at
the end of the reporting period.

2. €W I H (&)
(b) EREAKERBEERNKE (&)

REBEZEE

REERPDECRARE  AREERY
HEBRAKEZREMNREFEEAR -
IR ASEEERE - WHIERSRE
KB eFE EREEREEZER -

HRAEER T NE=ZA=+—
B R BB RBEERHD
66,000,00078 7T * B ILL A 4R AR & B 75
WK ARFEREEEZEEAEE
HRZESTRBMRIBELEEND - &
ZRINBIHEERE AEBEZ AR
STEI KB 0] IR A — S EUSRTTE
BrEER ARAEREM ~5£E
158 TR 75 B TRTE AT B A% 7K FE {2 R
BMBEME -

TRAMAEESRABEIHTAOH
R (ZHEEEGERR - RIFTES R
BEMS  TRRESBMBE KRR
REREMAKEAIGEEERBEZR
FEEMMGER - RABRENERETER
ERE - WMAMERALEE - REES
BAREHEHRZFE
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For the year ended 31st March, 2014 #Z - F—M#F= H=+—Hi - FZ

29. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 29. W IT B (%)
(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies (b) RIEMEEEERBE (&)
(continued)
Liquidity risk (continued) HBHELERE (E)
Liquidity tables TEEZIF
Weighted Total
average Less than 3 months  undiscounted Carrying
interest rate 3 months to 1 year cash flows amount
miE =fEA AERRE
TiHFE  LR=@EA E-F RERE REE
% HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BAl FET FAT FET FAET
2014 “2-ME
Non-derivative financial EXNE A
liabilities =R
Creditors JE T ER R - 23,446 - 23,446 23,446
Margin account payable ERRESER 11.25 19,780 - 19,780 19,596
Bank overdrafts BITEX 4.95 62,913 - 62,913 62,653
106,139 - 106,139 105,695
2013 —E-=f
Non-derivative financial EXNE A
liabilities 8f
Credifors JEfT AR - 5,470 - 5,470 5,470
Bank overdraffs ROTEX 5.00 52,773 - 52,773 52,555
Convertible notes EE &S
payable BT 30E 5.00 1,198 99,446 100,644 95,852
59,441 99,446 158,887 183,877
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For the year ended 31st March, 2014 #Z - F—M#F= H=+—HI - FZF

29. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

125?

0]

(i)

(c) Fair value measurements of financial instruments

Fair value of financial instruments that are
measured at fair value on a recurring basis

Conversion options embedded in convertible
notes (see note 17) were measured at fair value
as at 31st March, 2013. The fair value of the
conversion options embedded in convertible
notes were determined based on option pricing
models whose fair value measurements were
categorised as level 3 as set out in note 3.

Reconciliation of level 3 fair value measurements
of financial asset:

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

29. €M I EH (&)
(c) EMIAZATEME

() BEEHEEUAFEEHEZ

EBMTRAZAFIEE

AR IR IR M A 2 HapRE (R M
NN =—ZT—=F=ZA=+—8H
ZAFEEE o KM EIME -
AR EBRNS 2 mREDQTE
EREARTEREAEETHEQT
BE BEIMRK-

TREENEIR L TEETEN
Bk

Conversion options

embedded in

convertible notes

ARREE

Bt 75 2 2 IR A

HK$ 000

FET

At 1st April, 2012 N-ZE——FMA—H 11,421
On initial recognition BIRTER 1,810
Conversion it (4,299)

Gain for the year recognised RiB=EP R 2

in profit or loss RNFE W e 9,702
At 31st March, 2013 RZE—=F=H=+—H 18,634
Addition NE 10,436
Conversion i (29.070)

At 31st March, 2014

Fair value of financial instruments that are
recorded at amortised cost

The directors of the Company consider that the
carrying amounts of financial assets and financial
liabilities recorded at amortised cost in the
consolidated financial statements approximate
their fair values at the end of the reporting period.
There were no significant changes in the business
or economic circumstances that affect the fair
value of the Group’s financial instruments.

RZZE—HWFE=A=+—H

(i) BEBFEXXTCHEYZHBTRZ A

FEME

ARAEZRRNEA U BREK
REHKATENEREERS
MEBENREERENHRERR
MAFEERE  AEEWERLE
BEREBEREEREEE N
TEAEECRIAZATEE-

ANNUAL REPORT 2014 4 £ 3 &



ITC CORPORATION LIMITED & # & # % AR
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For the year ended 31st March, 2014 #Z - F—M#F= H=+—Hi - FZ

30.

31.

32.

MAJOR NON-CASH TRANSACTIONS

As detailed in note 17, during the year, the Group
converted ITCP Notes in an aggregate principal amount of
HK$98,250,000 (2013: HK$26,500,000) to 46,741,195 (2013:
12,045,454) shares of ITC Properties shares.

As detailed in note 26, during the year, the Group issued
329,999,992 (2013: 146,666,662) shares upon the conversion
of the Convertible Notes in an aggregate principal amount
of HK$99,000,000 (2013: HK$44,000,000) to the holders of the
Convertible Notes.

RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES

The Group operates a defined contribution scheme which
is registered under the Occupational Retirement Scheme
Ordinance for qualifying employees. The assets of the
scheme is separatfely held in funds under the control of
frustees.

The cost charged to profit or loss represents contributions
paid and payable to the funds by the Group at rates
specified in the rules of the scheme. Where there are
employees who leave the scheme prior to vesting fully in the
contributions, the conftributions payable by the Group are
reduced by the amount of forfeited contributions.

At the end of the reporting period, there were no significant
forfeited contributions which arose upon employees
leaving the scheme prior to their interests in the Group’s
contributions becoming fully vested and which are
available to reduce the contributions payable by the Group
in future years.

The Group also joined a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme
("MPF Scheme”). The MPF Scheme is registered with the
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Authority under the
Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme Ordinance. The assets
of the MPF Scheme are held separately from those of the
Group in funds under the conftrol of an independent frustee.
Under the rules of the MPF Scheme, the employer and its
employees are each required to make contributions to
the MPF Scheme at rates specified in the rules. The only
obligation of the Group with respect to the MPF Scheme is
tfo make the required conftributions under the MPF Scheme.
No forfeited contributions are available to reduce the
contributions payable in future years.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

On disposal of subsidiaries in previous years, the Group had
given indemnities relating to unrecorded taxation liabilities,
if any, and the affairs and business of the subsidiaries up
to the date of disposal to the purchasers. The Group will be
released from the indemnities in November 2014.
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30.

31.

32.

BERIBERS
a0 B EE 7T A AN B R F R R R
% 4 %8 /598,250,000 T (— T — =4 :

26,500,000/8 70) Z EEME ZIBEEIR A
46,741 195X EREHME R H (ZF —=4F ¢
12,045,454/% B (7)) °

OB sE20pT Al - AL E R F M EIRAE
K4 % 58 599,000,0008 T (ZF— =4 :
44,000,0007 7o) 7] #2 B8 =ik 2 Al AR 2 K
A A E17329,999, 9920 K h (=& — =
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For the year ended 31st March, 2014 #Z - F—M#F= H=+—HI - FZF

33. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS/ 33.EEMARH AE
COMMITMENTS
(a) The Group as a lessee (o) XEBEBAEA
At the end of the reporting period, the Group had RMEHR - NEBAETAIREZ A ME
commitments for future minimum lease payments THRYESEELY A RKRERE
under non-cancellable operating leases in respect of S FRIEANE - ILEREZ IHHT
rented premises, which fall due as follows:
2014 2013
—g-mF —E-=%
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT T
Within one year —F R 2,206 2,641
In the second to fifth year inclusive £ _ZFRF (HEMFEEEN) 106 1,570
2,312 4,211
Leases are negotiated, and monthly rentals are fixed, — R IEHERME(ZE—=F : WE)
for an average term of two years (2013: two years). EEALORETHAMAE -
Included in the sums above is an amount of Mt 4EE B FE—2 51,570,000 T (—
HK$1.570,000 (2013: HK$4,081.000) where the EE—:¢ 4,081 OOO%E)Z&%@ i
counterparty is an associate of the Group. BARTEEZHERA
(b) The Group as a lessor (b) REEEABEEA

127"

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had
contracted with a tenant for future minimum lease
payments which fall due as follows:

RIMEMKR - AEREEBF B RR &
ERSRIBRTH - AT :

2014 2013
— Lk —T—=%
HK$°000 HKS ‘000
FET TET
Within one year —FR 353 981
In the second to fifth year inclusive F_ZFHF (HEMEBEEN) - 385
353 1,366
The investment property held has committed tenant for FMEYWEREEESARARKR —F(ZZF
the next one year (2013: two years). —=F WE)ZBP -
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For fhe year ended 31st March, 2014 é?é_—t_ =

34.

35.

0% ®RMESE

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

At the end of the reporting period, the following assets
were pledged by the Group to secure banking and other
financing facilities:

—HmFE=A=+—HIFZ

4. BEEHRM

RB|BEBMR  REESEATINEE - AR
BRITIEMBEERE :

2014 2013

—E-MEF T —=fF

HK$°'000 HK$ ‘000

FETT FET

Land and buildings TH KRBT 3,200 3,323
Investment property "EME 21,150 21,966
Interest in an associate ) ANl 588,131 =
612,481 25,289

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

During the year, the Group entered into a standby
commitment agreement, inter alia, with an associate
pursuant to which the Group has agreed to subscribe for
certain number of rights shares in the rights offering of the
relevant associate for an aggregate amount of no more
than CAD1,341,000 (equivalent to HK$9,413,000) if the
subscription of the rights shares by other shareholders fall
short of the pre-determined level. The rights offering of the
associate has been completed subsequent to 31st March,
2014 and the subscriptions of the rights shares by other
shareholders were in excess of the pre-determined level.
The Group has therefore been released from the standby
purchase commitment.
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35. EARRIE

RARFE  AEE (P E1E) B— g
ARIFIMERAERY B AEERE -
i £ IR SR SR BB A AR AR (5 (R AR FERR K 18
BRERERE QR ERPETEHE 2®
RE LD 48 %E 1R 3E1,341,00000 7T (4B Z 7
9,413,000/ ) ° Bf & A E 2 HEREBEER
—E-NE=ZA=1+—H7%K ' BEMKE
FaRiE 2 AR R D BB TE AR « At + A&
CEEDERGERABEAE-
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For the year ended 31st March, 2014 éjé_—t_ =
36. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES

(a) Related party transactions

During the year, the Group had transactions with

—HFE=A=+—HIFZ

36 AEANLTHE
(o) BEALRES

RER > REBEATHAREALET

129?

related parties, details of which are as follows: IR ZEHEBWOT -
2014 2013
—E-OF T4
Class of related party Nature of transactions HK$°000 HKS ‘000
BREALZER RHHE FETT FAET
Associates of the Group Rentals and related building management
AREE 2B R T] fee charged by the Group 684 764
AEBYWRAS RIEEYMEERE
Rentals and related building management
fee paid by the Group 2,702 2,702
AEEXNHEERAEMEERE
Service fees charged by the Group 305 359
REBEWEARTE &
Interest income received and receivable by
the Group 816 11,357
2 SEN IS TSN PN
A director Interest expenses paid and payable by the
—RES Group in respect of the Convertible Notes 587 128
AEEZNRENEATRERER
ZF BRI
(b) Non-trade balances (b) FE &
Details of the Group’s non-trade balances with related ﬁﬁﬁﬁ%. 1 AT 2 IEE SR EF
parties are set out on the consolidated statement of BENERE M B ARM FF17%19 ©
financial position and in notes 17 and 19.
(c) Compensation of key management personnel (c) EBEEBEEZ2H 2

Only the directors and chief executive are considered
fo be the key management personnel of the Group.
The remuneration of directors and the chief executive
is disclosed in note 6. The remuneratfion of directors
is determined by the remuneration committee having
regard to the performance of individuals and market
frends.

EEENTETHRABHRAREARSE
ZEBEES BEBEFEREBITHABLZ
FHERW TR EE -ES 2T
HFMZEESLREEAMNAE ZKRBART
HBEMETE °
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For the year ended 31st March, 2014 #Z - F—M#F= H=+—Hi - FZ
37.FINANCIAL INFORMATION OF THE

COMPANY

37. FRALRAZHMBER

2014 2013
—E-NF —T-=F
HKS’000 HKS'000
FEIT FET

Assets BE
Investments in subsidiaries BB AR E - -
Other receivables H i & R 263 230
Amounts due from subsidiaries R SNGIE S 1,869,002 1,928,201
Bank balances and cash RITHEGFE MRS 10,009 4,762
1,879,274 1,933,193

Liabilities =L
Other payables H {th FE A 3RIE 1,427 3,570
Bank overdrafts RITEY 9,947 9,918
Convertible notes payable AT AR B AR e A SR8 - 95,852
11,374 109,340
1,867,900 1,823,853

Capital and reserves BAR e
Share capital [N 12,702 9,276
Share premium and reserves [0 m (E M 1,855,198 1,814,577
Total equity (Note) BT (HaE) 1,867,900 1,823,853
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For the year ended 31st March, 2014 #Z - F—M#F= H=+—HI - FZF

37.FINANCIAL
COMPANY (continued)

131§

INFORMATION OF THE

37. FRARRAZHMBER (&)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note: Details of movements of the Company’s share capital, share Hiix : ARABZERAN KO @EELREEZE
premium and reserves are as follows: E =i
Capital ~ Convertible
Share Share  Contributed  redemption notes Accumulated
capital premium surplus reserve reserve profits Total
RARE THEREE
R R EE BB ik ik EE v At
HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000
FET FET FET FET FET FET FET
At 1st April, 2012 R=ZE--FEmA—A 7,770 577,765 222,435 908 17,255 1,005,190 1,831,323
Loss and fotal comprehensive ~ AEEFER2HE
expenses for the year gk - - - - - (20,220) (20,220)
Issue of shares Bk
- conversion of convertible —#ERmak
notes Zig 1,467 46,278 - - (5,309) - 42,436
- scrip dividend ~UBRR SRS 39 1717 - - = = 1,756
Transaction costs onissue of ~ E{TIRID 2
shares RPRA - (55) - - - - (55)
Dividend paid BERRE - (1,756) - - - (29.631) (31,387)
At 31st March, 2013 RZZ-=#=A=+-AH 9,276 623,949 222,435 908 11,946 955,339 1,823,853
Loss and total comprehensive  AEEHER 2 ERX
expenses for the year 8% = = = = = @.711) ©.711)
Issue of shares 1k
- conversion of convertible —BRAAR
notes 25 3,300 106,262 - - (11,946) - 97,616
- scrip dividend —BRRBREA 126 6,272 - - - - 6,398
Transaction costs on issue of AT Z
shares RPRA - (26) - - - - (26)
Dividend paid BERRE - (6.398) - - - (43,832) (50,230)
At 31st March, 2014 RZE-ME=A=1—H 12,702 730,059 222,435 908 - 901,796 1,867,900
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For the year ended 31st March, 2014 #Z - F—M#F= H=+—Hi - FZ

38. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 3. FEMBLAAIER
Details of the Company’s principal subsidiaries at 31st RARTEWBARIR_ZET—NERKL_-F
March, 2014 and 2013 are as follows: —=F=ZA=+—HZHBWOT:

Percentage of
issued share capital

Place of Issued and HERTRE
incorporation/ fully paid held by attributable
Name of subsidiary registration share capital the Company to the Group Principal activities
WEARAR RYE%/EMit% ERTRARRL HEAARE REEES TEEHR
2014 2013 2014 2013
“E-PE —T-=F -“¥-PF —T-=F
% % % %
Directly owned
BERHR
All Combine Investments British Virgin Uss1 100 100 100 100 Investment holding
Limited Islands ordinary share REER
EBRAES 1XTEBR
Great Infelligence Limited British Virgin Uss1 100 100 100 100 Investment holding
Islands ordinary share REER
EBRAES 1XTEBR
[TC Investment Holdings British Virgin Uss1 100 100 100 100 Investment holding
Limited Islands ordinary share REER
EBRAES 1XTEBR
[TC Management Group British Virgin Uss2 100 100 100 100 Investment holding
Limited Islands ordinary shares REER
EBRAES B EBR
Large Scale Investments British Virgin Uss1 100 100 100 100 Investment holding
Limited Islands ordinary share REER
EBRAES 1XTEBR
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For the year ended 31st March, 2014 #Z - F—M#F= H=+—HI - FZF

38. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

(continued)

Details of the Company’s principal subsidiaries at 31st
March, 2014 and 2013 are as follows: (confinued)

3. TEMBLARER (&)

ARABTEMBRAR -_ZT-—HER_-F
—=F=A=t—HZHBOT : (&)

Percentage of
issued share capital

Place of Issued and HERTRA
incorporation/ fully paid held by attributable
Name of subsidiary registration share capital the Company to the Group Principal activities
HWEARAR RUBE/AMEE BRIRMZRE HEAAREE REEES TEEHR
2014 2013 2014 2013
ZE-mE —2--F ZB-NF —T-=F%
% % % %
Indirectly owned
HERE
Burcon Group Limited Canada CAD1,000 100 100 100 100 Investment and
JIIEYN class A common property holding
share RERMEHE
1,000007C
AEEBR
Great Infelligence Holdings ~ Hong Kong HK$2 100 100 100 100 Securities frading and
Limited E% ordinary shares freasury investment
BT ERR EHEEREBRE
[TC Finance Limited Hong Kong HK$2 100 100 100 100 Provision of finance
BHUBERDE 5 ordinary shares RIEERE
WL EBR
[TC Management Limited Hong Kong HK$2 100 100 100 100 Provision of
BHLXERERDA 5 ordinary shares management,
2B LB administration and

None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities at
the end of the year.

All of the above subsidiaries are limited companies.

Other than Burcon Group Limited which operates in
Canada, all of the above subsidiaries have their principal
place of operations in Hong Kong.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company
which, in the opinion of the directors, principally affected
the results of the Group for the year or formed a substantial
porfion of the assets of the Group at the end of the year. To
give details of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the
directors, result in particulars of excessive length.

133?

financial services and
freasury investment

REER  THRME
R REKRE

RAFEER  BENBARETERNERKE
# o

e LM B AR RBRAF -

Burcon Group LimitedfE INE AL & 4)
B LEAWBARZ E2ELEME Y AES
7 o

ERINBZARBTMBRR - DNEEFRRE
B EAREFREXGUBRAREFRE
EEREMNZAT - BEFRA - FHEMKH
BRAASEHREANTE
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For the year ended 31st March, 2014 #Z - F—M#F= H=+—Hi - FZ

39. EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD 39. REHREE
As set out in note 16(c)(iv), certain condition precedents BN 16 (V)FTEL - B zH T
set forth in the Agreement have not yet been fulfilled or SR R E MBS E R HENESES
waived, as appropriate, and the Disposal has not yet R RBETEAS  FEEFEEHART
been completed up to the date the consolidated financial A o

statements were authorised for issuance.
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY
L/

RESULTS
EY
Year ended 31st March,
HE=A=t-HLEE
2010 2011 2012 2013 2014
—E-FF T——F ZT-—_F _FT-=F ZB-0AF
HK'$'000 HK'$'000 HK$'000 HK'$'000 HK$'000
FET T FET FET FHET
Revenue KA 59,014 36,102 19,548 17,798 7.121
Profit (loss) before taxation B A A (B548) (1.192)  (585,925) 434,334 214,136 109,710
Taxation 118 (639) (74) - (8) (122)
Profit (loss) for the year ZAN/NEIEZ 2SN
attributable to owners & 1 7R 5 [ Vg
of the Company (B18) (1,831)  (585999) 434,334 214,128 109,588

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

EERERE
As at 31st March,
R=A=t+—8H
2010 2011 2012 2013 2014
—TFF ZF—F ZF--F ZT-=F =F-WF
HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET TET TET TET FET

Total assets EERE 3,368,266 2,483,505 2,793,883 3,013,732 3,115,635
Total liabilities =REEt (313,889)  (345,847)  (180,623)  (159,340)  (110,454)

Shareholders' funds attributable 7282 &% A A (L
to owners of the Company fERE & 3,054,377  2,137.658 2,613,260 2,854,392 3,005,181
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